
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Paul James, Governance Services 
on 01432 260460 or e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
General Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Monday 10 December 2012 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 260460 
Email: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the General Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor A Seldon 
Vice-Chairman Councillor EPJ Harvey 
  

Councillor EMK Chave  
Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor JW Hope MBE  
Councillor RC Hunt  
Councillor TM James  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor R Preece  
Councillor GR Swinford  
Councillor DB Wilcox  

 
 

 
 

Statutory co-optees (for educational matters only)  
  
Mr P Burbidge – Roman Catholic Church  
Miss E Lowenstein – Secondary School Parent Governor  
Mr T Plumer – Primary School Parent Governor  
Mr P Sell – Church of England  

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  10 DECEMBER 2012 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
4. MINUTES   5 - 14  
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2012. 

 
 

   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is 
raised. Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the 
Committee’s work programme when compared with other competing 
priorities.) 
 

 

   
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC     
   
 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 

relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so 
long as the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have 
a question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working 
days before the meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting).   
 

 

   
7. BUDGET AND EMERGING OPTIONS 2013/14     
   
 To receive a presentation on the budget and emerging options and consider 

the report to Cabinet on 13 December and make recommendations to 
Cabinet. 
 

 

   
8. TASK & FINISH GROUP REPORT - COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE 

LEVY (CIL) REVIEW   
15 - 38  

   
 To consider the findings arising from the scrutiny Task & Finish Group – 

‘Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Review’ and to recommend the report 
to the Executive for consideration. 

 

   



 

 

9. UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & FINISH GROUP 
REPORT ON FEES & CHARGING   

39 - 48  

   
 To note the updated task and finish report on fees and charges council 

procurement and monitor progress against the Executive Action Plan. 
 

 

   
10. UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & FINISH GROUP 

REPORT ON COUNCIL PROCUREMENT POLICY AND LOCAL BUSINESS 
AND LOCAL EMPLOYMENT   

49 - 64  

   
 To note the updated task and finish report on council procurement policy 

and local business and local employment and monitor progress against the 
Executive Action Plan. 
 

 

   
11. UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & FINISH GROUP 

REPORT ON TOURIST AND TEMPORARY EVENT SIGNAGE   
65 - 92  

   
 To note the contents of the report and to seek the views of the General 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the draft Policy and Guidance Notes, 
arising since the Task & Finish Review.  
 

 

   
12. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   93 - 126  
   
 To consider the Committee work programme.  
   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present 
if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and 
consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an 
item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask 
then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the 
Committee Officer can be found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell 
Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar 
Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with 
Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 

 

2



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located 
in the circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

3



4



�

�

����������	���
���
	
�

�������� 	
� ��
� �

����� 	
� �
�
���� ��
���
�� �� ���������
�	�����

��
��������
��	�����������
� �!�	�"����	� �#$�%�
	��
&	�� �%
�

	���	��'������(��	�
��
��)*+)����+*,**����
� �

-�
.
��/� �	������	��0��
��	��1��������2�
�	������	���-3�%���
��14��
���������2�

� � �
� �	������	�./�0��0�"��.	� ���5�����
 �!0�6��"�� �67���

�	� �37�%	8
��!� �

���3��
. �!����-�3	�
.��!� �37������� �&�-�

�
 �3���	�
������&�����
	���
�
� �
������
�����
/� �	������	�.�-�%�����
� �&!�%�����	� �3�%������" ��0'�%������ �3��3����. �

394�5
��	� �&�������
�. �-3�������� �������	��. �037�-	�
�. �-6�-���
�����
�3�&	�
��.	��

� �
�

��
�./� �6�����	� �0���������

��:
�����
;���%���
. �6��
��	��
	��-���
.�����

�	�������
.;�6�-	�
�� ����

��

��
��'�����
����	��
�����;������8��� �
0..�.�����6��
��	��9�� ��	�
�����
�����&
.���
��
;�-�3��
. �6
�	�������
�
����
.��

��
�,�
�

+,� 0-�9������'�&�0!��������
�
�����������������������������
�������������
���� !�"�
��#�!��$�%����&'�#���(��)�����*�
�

),� �0��6���!�����������
�

����������+�� ������,� � � �������
�����������
���� �

�����������(�� -��������,� � � �������
����������"�
��#��

����������+%�(���#����,� � � �������
�����������$�%����&*�
�

#,� 6��90&0�������'�����&������
�
.*������ ������#�	 ���/�
#��/������
#,��� ����������
���������� 0��1#��# ���� �� 0���� #���
2�#� ���3����
���� ��-�(#�-� 4����������� ��������� *�

����������+"�+#����'�����#����#�������#�����/������#�5��� ���� �#��#����,������ 0��
����������� �����$�#��*�
�

<,� ����������
�
&���94�6/��������
������
.�	
���
��

����.��
���#����	�
������+)����	�
��)*+)��
�

�	�
���
���.����	��
����
�	�������.���
�������
���������,�
�

$,� ������������'&������!�&���'��%��-�!9�������������'�&�'���&��
��&����=���
�
��������� ����������� �������� ��5�������#��*�
�

>,� ?���������'&����%��-�!9�����
�
60��
����  ������������#����,������7��� �����������# ���� �� 0������� �#����#�� ���8�
#��/���
���
#,��� ����������
���������� 0��1#��# ���� �� 0���� #���2�#� ���3����
���� ��-�(#�-� 4�
���������� ��������� *��60�������7��� ����'�#������������������� �5�#�#��#,��'������
������# ���# � 0����� ���*�%��  �������������������,������#����� �� 0��(��,����#���
��� ��,� ���*�

AGENDA ITEM 4

5



�

�

�
60��
0#���#�� 0#�-��� 0����� ��,� ����������,��  ���� 0����7��� ����*�
�

@,� �&�����0���60������A��099A����'��0!�����6�������������&������%��
40&�0���������%��&��0�9�?�0&��&�1�96�9�4�����5��0&5��2�
6�4�9�-�����0�&��������3)#����.�/�9:4�
�
60��
0#���#������������� 0# �������#�������������#��������� #������� ��� �,����'� 0��
� ����0�����,�������������# � 0����� ����#��#��#  ������������5*�
�
60��
0#���#���&��#����� 0# �
#,��� �0#�� ��# ��� 0���#  ���#������� �,��#���� 0����#��
#��#;�����������#�� �#��#� �����0��0�0#��,������,;�� � ������ �# ������������� ����#���
0#����7������#������� ����,5�<9��� �,���=:9=*�	��#��#�������# �� 0�������� �� ��# � 0���
,��������#������� � ��#5*�
�
60��
����  ������������ 0�����������=:9=*
�$*:>?�31#��# ��������� #���2�#� ���3����

���� ��-�(#�-� 4����������� ��������� '��#���,5�
#,��� ���� 0��<9��� �,���=:9=*��
60������������� ����#��� 0������� � ��
#,��� ��� 0�� ��#����������0#��,�����#���
#�#��#,���#��#���������� � �� 0��#����#����� 0���
����  ��*�
�

����������+"�+#����'�
�#������� 0��
������'�����#����#�������#�����/������#�5��� ���� �
#��#����,������ 0������������� �����$�#��*�
�
60��
0#���#�������� ��� 0# ����,������� 0����,����0#����,��  ���7��� �����,������
 0����� ����#���#������������� ����������,���#���#�#��#,���#�������#�������,��*��
2��� �����#������������������� �5�#�#��#,��������������# ���# � 0����� ���*�������5�0#��
,����#�������� �� 0�������� ��*�
�
60�� 0��������# ������ �� 0���#��/���3
��������������!��)+��#���5�@�"����������4�
��#,��# �������� 0����#��������� 0���#��/���#���� ��� ���� 0��#����#������ �# ��#�#��#�0�
<*�����#��� ���#�������� ��#���#��� 0# � 0�������������0�����0#���,���������������#��
#�� #��/#��������������#����� �#��#���������������� 0����������� #-������������=:9=*�
�
60��
0#���#�����������(��,������� 0��
����  ��A�����������# ������#���9<�������
=:9='������������0��0�0#��,����������# ��'��0��� 0��
����  ���0#���#����/���#����������

#,��� ����������������������#��# ����� �� 0������������ �#������� *��
�
60������� #� ������ ���
#�'�"�����#����#���������������&��#������05� 0���#  ����#��
�� �#�-�5����������#���������# ���#��� ����  ������ �0�����#������*�
�
60��
�#������� 0��
������������� ���������# ���� �� 0�����������
#,��� �������������B�
������=:9=�#���0��� 0�� ��������������� �����# ��*�����#������� 0��
����  ��� 0# �

#,��� �(��,����0#��,��������5�,���������� 0�����-��#����� ��# ������#������������ ��
 0��
#,��� ���� ����<9��� �,��*��60��-�5����������7��� ����0#��,�����#������#�����
���# ���� ��������5*����#���������� ��� 0# �0��0#��,�������������� 0# � 0����0#��,����
#���������#� ����-� 0# � 0����#���#����-��5� ���#��� 0����0��0����� 0������������� �,���#���
,5�
#,��� ����<9��� �,��*�����0#�����5�-����� 0���# �� ����� ��������������� 0��
���#���#������ �# �������� 0������#5�,������
#,��� *�
�
	������#��� ����� 0���#��# �����3CB::':::������ ������� 0���#�� #�������� �#���#������� �
 �� 0����7���������,���������/�� �4���������#��������# ������� 0������#�����0����
������������ 0�����������#���� 0�������� ����,����� �� 0# �������,��#������������ 0��
���������� *�
�
60��
0#���#���#������������� ����7��� ���������� ����������������� �����#������������
 ������� ������� ���#���,5�(�������()�#������#5�������()������������ 0�������
����#����� �����������������,��������#������������������,������������� ��,������'���� 0# �

6



�

�

 0�� #&��#5����#������ 0# ���������#������������5��#��,������, #������# 0��� 0#��0����
,�0������������#���������� �#�� 5*��
�
60��1����
0#���#����������� �� 0���� �������(� �����#��������+��5�=:9=��#������#,�� �
 0�����#���#���� �# ��������������� 0����� �#� �#���7��� �������0# �#� ����0#��,����
 #-��������� 0��� ����� �� � 0��
���������������#���#�����-*�
������������,,#�����#,��# ���
����� 0����������#�������� 0���� �������(� ����#���#������������� ����,��7��� �
����������������� 0� 0��(��� ���������������0��0�0�������� ��� 0# � 0��#������ �# ����
�����#���#�5�#�#����������������#�������0� 0���� #�0����#���$�� ��0�
#���������������
�������������#��*�
�
60��
�#������� 0��
����������������� 0# ������� 0���� �������(� ����#��������# ����0#��
 #-�����#����� 0�
������,,#��'������������ 0����������#����'�0������'�������������
������ ���� 0��#���� �����0#��,����,����0 �����#��*�
�
	�����0���� ���#���#������� �
#,��� ���� ���� 0��
�#���������� ��� 0# �0��0#��
������ ����� 0� 0��
0#���#����� 0��������  ��������������0�����#������������0���� ��
��#���� 0� 0���#��#������� ��&��� �� ���#���#�-���������� 0# � 0��
0#���#��0#��
�&��������#��������� �����*�����0#�������������� 0� 0������� ����/�&��� ���� ����#��
0��0#��,�������������� 0# � 0��#������� ��������#��� 0����0������ ������������� 0*�
�
����������� ���#������7��� ����'�(��$�� 0�� ��������� ��� 0# �#� ���0����� �# ����
� #����0#��,���� #-��*��������'� 0������� ����������� ��,�������� ������� 0�������� �
�������������# �*��60����� �#� ����� ����0#��,��������0 �5��������# ������,�����#� ��/
�#� � ��#������� �,� � 0����#���� ����������� ��*�������� ��#���� ������#������ 0��
�������� ��#� ���� �� 0����������#������� �#������ �#� � �� #-���������� �� #�����#���
����������� �����0#��������#������#� ���#��,��-������������������� ����� �# ����*�����
#�������������� 0# �� ��#���� ���-���������#;�����#������ 0����# ���������������'�
���� ��/��������#���� 0���������# ���� ��,����� 0����,�������#��*�
�
�����,���7��� ������#�5����#��������# �����#������������ 0����������'�����������
)#�#��#�0�=*?���� 0��)����� �(#�����#�������0��0�0#��,����������# ���# �
#,��� *��	��#�
;�����#������������ 0��#������� ��������� �# ��'�0��7��� �������0� 0��� 0��
��������#��
������#,��*�����#���������� ��� 0# '����� #�0����#���$�� ��0�
#����#�-���#�#5������ 0��
��#�'� 0��
�������������0#��� �����-���� 0���������� �*�����#�����#��� 0������ � 0# � 0��
��,������������������ 0�������5������������ 0������������� *�
�
�����,���#���������� ��� 0# � 0��
��������0�����,�������#��� �#���#��� '�,� �� ��#��
����� #� � 0# �#�5�#����# ������#������������5���,� #� �# ��*�
�
�����,���#�-���������� 0# � 0�����#5�,�����-���������������'�,� �#����7��� ������
�0# ����-�� 0�������������� �����������*�����#����7��� �������0� 0��� 0����������,��
��� 0�������� ��� ��������� #�0���D$�� ��0�
#��� �����-�#�5���� 0������#���#����� ��,� ����*��
���7��� �������0� 0��� 0�����#��#�5������# ���� �� 0��������� 0# � 0��
�������0#���#���
���� 0���� �������� ���*�
�
60��
�#������� 0��
�������� # ��� 0# �� #�0����0#�����#����� 0�������� ����# � 0���� �*��
������ 0������������� 0# � 0�������� �� # ����� 0����� �#� �������#� � 0# ����5� 0��

�������������#��������� �# ����� ����/������0����� 0�����#���#������ �����0#���*�
�
(��$�� 0�� �����#��������#��������#�������# ������ 0����� �#� *�
�
60��
�#������� 0��
����������������� �� 0���#������7��� ��������������� 0�����-������ �
����������'������� ���� 0# �#����� �� 0��� 0����� 0������ 5�������������� ����9':::�
;�,�'��#���#�-'������#'������ ����'�����#�-� �� ��� ����������� '��#�� #�������� ��#���
���������������������#���#�-�*��)0#���='��0���� ����������'�������,�������� 0���
,����� �*�

7



�

�

�
60��
����  ���7��� �������0� 0��� 0����0�����#��� �����#������������5*�	�����������
 0��
0���������������#����@�
�������#�������� ��� 0# �0��0#������0 �#�����������
(�� #�����#���#��� 0����#�������� � 0# � 0������#������#������������5�0#��,����
������������ 0������� � ��
#,��� ����<9��� �,��*�����#����,�����5������� ��������������
 0��"�������� A������� ��0#����� �� 0��,���������# ����0����#��� 0������� � 0���������
0#������������������ 0������������ *�
�
����������� ���#������7��� ���������������� 0���0#���� �� 0�����/�� ������5'�(��
$�� 0�� ������������� 0# �����0#����0#��,�����#��� �� 0��
�  ���������#����� �)����5�
���������5�#�������*����������� ��� 0# � 0������� �����������&����/�� �� ����������/�� ��
������������#,���$�� ��0�
#��D� #�0���� ����� ����� 0����������#��#������ �*��	 �������
#������ ����� �# �������#�� ����������� �����0��� #�-���� ���� �� �#�� ��#� �*�
�
60������� #� ������ ���
#�'�"�����#����#������������������� ��� 0# �)����� �(#�����
0#��������� 0�����#��#�����*�	�����# ���� �� 0���� �� �#������;�����#��������� 0�5�0#��
�&����������������� 0����-��5�0�������#�5�������������0#������*�������0#������ 0# �#�5�
�������������������������� 0���5�,�� 0����,;�� ������ ��# ���*��������������� 0������ �� ��
���#������� 0� 0������������ #-��'� 0�����#���� 0���� �������� � 0��#� 0��� 5������
��,��7��� �5������� ����� ������������#-���*�
��
(��$�� 0�� ����&��#����� 0# � 0�����#��������#�� 0# � 0���#��# �����0�����,����#� ��� 0�
������#����#�# ����� �#� � �� 0# ������ 0���#������ �#� '� 0���,5�������������������� 0��
� 0����0������ �,�����#��5��0#�������*�
�
60������� �������)�#����@�
������ ���������� ��� 0# ���� 0����#�������� ���������0��
�������� �������� � 0�������,��� 5� 0# �� #�0�����#5���7��� �#����#���#����� ��,� ���������
 0��
����������� 0����� ���� 0�������� �������-�� 0���0� 0�����#������,���# �������� 0��

������� ��#���������������������� 0��*�
�
2��� ����������#�#���#�-����0� 0������-��0#��,���� �#�-���#�������������� #��#,��*��
	 ��#��#������# ��� 0# ������#��� ������� �������������� #-���� 0�����#�����-'�,� � 0������ �
�#���#��� 0# � 0��
�������������� �����#��5������� #��� 0�����-����� ���*��	 ��#��
������ ��� 0# ��������&�=� �� 0������� � ��
#,��� �0#���� ������� ��� 0�� �������� ���'�#��
#����� �� 0��� 0������ �0#���� ������# ��� 0�����-�� �� 0��
���������� 0���#��# �����0#���� �
,����#�����*�
�
�����,��������� ��� 0# ����� #�0����#���$�� ��0�
#���0#��,����������#� 0������� 0�
�����������0��0� ����� 0��� 0�����#��#��#������ �'�� ��#�����#��� 0# � 0��
�������0#�����5�
,����������=?�0����A��� ���� ���#-�� 0���������������������� 0���#��# ����*�
�
����������� ��7��� �����(��$�� 0�� �����#������� 0���#������ ��������������� 0��� 0��
��  ����������5*�(��$�� 0�� ��������� ��� 0# � 0����  ����� �# ��5��� 0��� 0��#������� �
�#�������#�'���� 0# �� �������������#�0��0�������������� �� ���� �� 0���� 5���� ���#��<:�
,����������������� �#������� ��,��#����#�0���,5�� #�0���*�
�
��(��,������#  ���#���������� ��� 0# �� �������,���#�5�5�#���,������ 0��
�������
��������������#��#� �#���� �������� ������� ��� '�,�#�������������0������0� ����#���
����5�0#��,�������� �����#�*�����#����7��� �������05'����$�� ��0�
#���#���� #�0����
0#���������������� 0����0���'� 0�5�0#���� �,��������#���� �����#���� 0���0�� �#�����������
#��������� ��� 0# � 0�������� ��������������# ���#5���#�� 0�����;�� ��#���� �#��
#  �#� ����#��� �0#��,���*�
�
(��$�� 0�� ���#������� 0��
����  ��� 0# �� ��#������#�������#�������������� �� �� #-��
 ����#������# ��#��������������� �# ���*�60�����#��0#���� �,����0������,5� 0������� ����
��� 0���������������# ��#��� 0���#������� ������� 0��� 0��#������� *�����#�-����������
 0# �$�� ��0�
#���#���� #�0����0#����������,��� ���� �� 0�����0#��0������'�5� �� ��#�����#��

8



�

�

 0# �,� 0�����#������ �������0��� ������� ������������'�#�� 0�����#������#�-����
����������*�
�
60��
0#���#������0 ���#�����# ���������������0��� 0��:*=E��0#�����7�# ��� �� 0��C<��
#��� 0����� *��(��$�� 0�� ������������� 0# � 0������# ��� ��#����,�������#� ����,� ����
����#�5'� 0������� ���� 0���5���������� �����0���#������� ��#����;�� ������ ���������
#����&��# ��5�CB*.(����� 0�������� ������������� ����� �� 0��C<������� ��������#�� #��
�#���*�
�
60��
�#������� 0��
���������� # ��� 0# �
#,��� �(��,����0#�����������,���������,5�
���������#���(��$�� 0�� ��������� �� 0��
#,��� ���� ���*�����#���������� ��� 0# � 0��

��������#������ ����������C9*B�'������������� ��C9�����#�����#������ 0� 0���#��# ���'�
�������# ������� 0��#������� ���& ����-*�����#��������������0��������,��0#��5� �����
 0����0� 0������������ 0�
����+#����#���
����(#  0����# �#��# ����# �*�
�
2��� ����������#�-����05� 0��
#,��� �(��,���3�� ��������@�
�� ���4�0#���� �#  ������

#,��� ���� 0������ ���*��60��
�#������� 0��
����������������� 0# �
����������)0�������
�#���� ���� 0������ 5����
�������,�������'�,� �������,��#  �������
#,��� ����(���#5*�
�
����������� ��#���7��� �������#�� 5������ 0�����#��������� 0�����;�� '� 0��
�#������� 0��

����������������� 0# �#��#� ��0�� �������,����������� ��(��,����# �#��#�������# ��
� #��*�
�
	 ��#��7��� �������05� 0�����-����� ����������#�#��#�0�=*?����)����� �(#��������� �0#��A �
,��������� �������� 0�����-������ ���3�������&�=4*��60������� #� ������ ���
#�'�
"�����#����#������������������������ 0# � 0�����-�������#������������ 0���& ���#��
#��������������*���
�
(��$�� 0�� ��������� ��� 0# � 0�����-���� ���������)����� �(#��������� ���� ����� 0�
� #�0���'�#����� � 0��
������*�������� ��# ��� 0# �����# ���� 0����#� ���� 0��#������� �
����� 0���#������ �#� ����������#�������������� �� ���*��60����������#�����-� ��
� #�0�����#�� 0�5�,���������������,���#���� #�0����0#�� �� #-��#���������#������*�
�
(��,��������������� 0# �
#,��� �������� ��,�����#��#,�� � 0�����-�����������#���
������ ��� 0�����-��,���# ���������#�#��� ��#�0��#� 5���� 0��#������� �#������ � 0��
�� ��# ����,������� ������#��*�
�
��(��,������#  ���#�����#��� 0������ � 0# ���� 0�����#��# �����#��� ��,����#� ��� 0�,5�#�
� #��#�����#������� '� 0��� 0��������������� 0# � 0�����#��# �����#���#����#�# �����������
 �� 0# � #-����#�����*��	 ��0�����,��#�-�5����������#��� �������������� � 0����� ���#�����
,�������*��60������� #� ������ ���
#�'�"�����#����#����������������#������� 0# � 0����
�#��#���� ��� ����,� ����� 0��� ��� ������� 0�����#��#������� ��#��� 0�� � #�� 5���� 0��
������������� � � ����#�-�5���������*�
�
60��1����
0#���#����������� ��#������� �� �� 0��
��� � � �����#���,5�
�������
����������������� �������#�-�5����������#���#���������� ��� 0# � 0���
#,��� ����������
���#��5��� � 0�������� ���*�
�
����������7��� �����#,�� � 0���#��������� �#� ���#������'�(��$�� 0�� ����&��#�����0���
 0���#��������#����������# ��� ��-�5����� ����� 0��#������� �#���0��� 0�5����# ��� ��
�����������#���,5�
#,��� *�
�

����� ��#���#���#,�� � 0��#�������# ���������(��,���� �& �����#������������ 0��
��� ���*�
�
&�������60����/�
����������
��

9



�

�

�2� ���
���"
�
����
����
������
��
��	��
�	�.����
����������
�
	���	�
��
�����
�.�	��;�

�2� ��.��
������.�
8.����
��

����"
���	�.�

��������
��	�����B.�8	.���	��
���
����
����	8
���8�	���
�
������
.;�

�2� ��.��
��������
���.".��
�.	���������
�
���������.��
��.�	���
��
�	��
��
����.
��
���
���.��
��

�����.��	���������������	8
;�

�2� ��"
����
����
��
:�������	��	
�8������8��),<�	
���
��
8	������-��.
���
��.	�.�
�����
��-������-�	���
�
���0����
�����8�	���
���	������
��	��
#+����	�
�;�


2� ��.��
��������
��..�
�	
��	��
�������	�
��
����������
��	�.��
�
��

:��
�
������

������.����
�.	��
	�������	������8�8
�.�
�	�����.�
�	�����

;�

�
�

60����� ����������# �9=*9=���� �%0�&�0��

10



���������	��	
�����
����
�������
�����

���������	
		����
��������������
��	���

�

���������������������������
���� ��!����"
�

����������������������� ��#����"�����������$�����������
�"������
���������� ������������������
���� ��$�������������
�"����
���������������������� ��������
�

% �������&����$��������� ���������
�"�����
��'���"�
�� ����#
�������&
������
��#����
�

�

�����������������������

������
������� ��(�������
�"������������
���
������ ��)*+�,���������
��
�-�����#�����
*" ���� ��������"�����������
�*"
�����
��'��� �������#������ ���� ��������
�&�����##��
����
� �����������
�� ����.��+���
���'��
���&�����*"
������(���������/������������� �������
�� ��������
��	��0���� ���������
��������������"������������� �������&����$����������������
��� ����� �����&�
������������#�������12�3 ��� ��� �##��������� ��"�������������
#
����������
������ �������������"���"�$��
��
�&�� ���� ��)*+�������#������" ���4�
�
*������5�"��
���3���2!
����
0���
���
�
�

,��#�����2�% ��$�����������
������������ ��#
���������������
������ ����������� ��"���"�
$��
��
����� ��)*+��" �����������
������������ ��(���2���������&
������
��#�����&����
���#
���������#�
���������/
��3���2!
����
����� ��������

�

�

�����������������

6�"�

���
�����
�#�
������������ ���� ��"��������� ����������������� ������"��������
7���
����������8& �" � ��������������������"����
���'"����
9������ �
�&�� �� ��"�������� ������:��
#�
�����
� ��
����0� ���������
��������
��������
���
�� �
��(���"��
�

����
��0�� ������ �� ����

�����

���������"�0�#����"��������
������������
����������
��&�
7������
#
������#
�#�
���"����
����:��"����
"����������#����0�����
��� ���������#����� ��������
��� �
����������
���
�� �
��(���"��
�

'��;��'"����
��	��0���
���
������
�:��( ����).�"������<���� ���=
�� �
���������� ��
)��
���"��(�������/�������� ���>� ������?�8��1�� ��
�$��
���5�
����������� ��,���������
��
�
8'���@������"7�/�
7��9�-�����#�������
������9�� ������������������������� ��� ������
��
A���(���"����
��&�
����������
����� �����
����������� 
���&��7����
���
�� �
��(���"��� ���
����"������������>����
&
�����?�� ��������������&�
7�����.#�"����������(��������##
����
�

% ��" ��
�������� ������������������
���
��"������ ��� �� �����������"�
"������"�B����� �
�
����� ���"�����( ����).�"��������
�� ��-�
�"��
����!��"���C�(����������0���� ����& ���&�
��
�����������"�
�����&������##��
�� �������#
�"����&������������&��
�

MINUTE ITEM 7

711



��� (���� ��*"
������(��������12�

�9� ��"�
�����& �� �
���
���
�� �
��(���"��� ��������>����
&
�����?�� �������
�����������"��������"����
���'"����
4�

��9� �����0�& ������� ���������.#������
���#����;��'"����
��	��4�
���9� 3 ����� �
�������" �����

��������4�
��9� 3 ��&���� ��)��
���"��(�������/���������������
���0����"�������� ��&����

 ��������"����� ����"��������7��4�
���������&0��������� �����
�������������� ��������$��������
���������� ��(���������"���������;��
'"����
��	��
�

*�����������1�

/
���<�����
��
���
���
�

,��#�����2�% ����$����������
��������
�"����
������������ ��(���2��0�����#�
����
&
������
��#�����&�������#
�������& �" �&����"����
��� ���� �
�� �����������
����
&
���������� �������������"����������
���
�� �
��(���"��
�

�
�
���������� ������
��!����
�
�����
���"�

�*�.����� ��������
�$�����������
�������
���
������ ��"��"������������ �����������
����
��"�������� ���;� ��#
���������������'��
���&�C��"
�����
�% ��$����������������&�
��
#
�������&�
�12�

DE
�
�3 ��� ��������� ���������������������������
��������� �����������3�����
� �*�
���0�
*��������##
��" 0�� ��(������/�
7�������0���"����"�������������&�
��
�$��
������
���"������
�
� ��>@��7�,���?������##�
��� ��+
���-�����#����4�

#$
��
����������	��������$�������
��%�������
���&��	
'������
��������&���������$
��
(����
��������)������'���*�+���$���'�%������'��$����$�����
�����%��
�����������&����
&
�!���&�������'���
���
��
��������'������$�������
�*�

E
;�3 ������� ���.#�"����������������������������
������
�������
���� ������"�#�����"����
"���
�����
������
�������
������������������
�������
���� ��
���������
����
��������������
"��������
�
���"�����������
���������� ����&�)*+�������#�����"��#������&�� �� ���.�������
(����(���
�0���"����������������
������ ���&���������������� ���.�������'�����"����������4�


�������������,*-��%�	�.�

��9����� �������
�������&�������
�������
�$��
�����
�� �������
�����"�
����"��"��������������
�
��������
�� ����"�����.#���
0�& ������� �����&�
����� ����$��������0���&�� �������"�
�� ����
 ��������� �����#
�#�
�4�

,��#�����2�% ���$���������������
������������ ��"�

����"���2��0���&
������
��#����� ���
��&������#
������
�

��9�/��������)�����&�
���##�
������������#
������������������ ���� ��
������������#�����
&���������
�������������
��������F�
E�������
�������
������� ���� ��������������������
�

812



���������
�����&������&����G����F�
�E�������
���&�#
�������
��/��������)�������������
���� ������
�&�� �� ����������������& ������� ��
��7�����" ������� ��
�����������������
"��"�������0����
������������� ������������

�
�����
�4�

,��#�����2�% ���$���������������
������������ ��"���2���������&
������
��#�����&�������
#
����������������
������
�

�����
���-*�

% �������������� ��+���&���(��������0�& �" ���"������(��
�<�
���0�(��
�,�! ����#�0�� ��( ����
).�"�����������
���
�� �
��(���"�������/
�+�������� ��0�����H� �<�����	��0������������
�E
�
'���/�
7���*���I*��� �#�12�

DE
��% ��"���������&���������&�
������*��� �#�J��#
�#������
���
�����#
�G�"���������
�

E
;�D
���"���D�

E
K�% ��(������������"������� �����������#��
�$��
������"��"������ ����
����"���
�"��
�
+�������� ��� ���������������� �
�������#
�"���D
�

��9�3 ���&�
��*��� �#�J��#
�#������
���
�����#
�G�"�������������<���4�

,��#�����2�*��� �#�������� ��#
�#������ ���� ���&�����#������#��"��� ��#
�G�"��
��������&�� �=
���� ������!@(��������#���� ��"��������##
������
����#
��
�% ���
��$��
���������� ����7���������"����
���
�����#�������� ����������������"�
��##
��������
#��"�
�

*��� �#�����������������"��������"��#��������� ��������� ���� ���������������"�
��
�������"��
����
�������&�� �=
���� ���������� �&�� ���&�
��"������
�����##
��" ����
� ���������������
7����������
�
�

��9�3 ���&�
��� �����������#����
�������� ���"�����������
�/
�+�������� ������"��"������ ��
��
����"���
�"�������
�������������� �
���4�

,��#�����2�% ��+���&���(�����������
����������������#�0�� ��������������� �
����

���

������&���� ��������������� �
�������������/
���� ������� ��"���������"������
������������#
��
�

% ������&���"��������� ��������.�"��������� �
���������7����"������0�� ���&���
#�
������
���
��"������ ��������������� �
�������������"������
�

����� ���&������"������&���� ��������������
�"��#������� ���&�
7������
�������
"������
�

�����
���/*�

% �
�����������"������
�����#�����������
�� ��'���@������"7�/�
7�����������"��#�������� ��
 ����
�"�"����"���
�������
���
���������#
��������" �������� ������B����"��������
����
"��B�
��"
���&�� ���� ������
����"���I"�#�����
�"��#������� �������� ����������������
���������12�

�9�� �����������������������
������
�##�����
���F�
E�����������F�
�E��������#
�
���� ���������
���� �B�

913



��9�� ������
��"�#�����
�"��#�� �����������
���F�
E�����F��������B�

���9���
���
�� �
��(���"��� �����
��������
�#�������F�
E������������#�
" �������������
�� ��
���7�
���������##�
��� ��*��� �#��-�����#����B�

���& ���#����������� �������&�� �*��� �#�I=
���� �@����"�������������������
���������
�� ��
��"�����.#���
4�

,��#�����2�% ��"���"��� �����7�������#�����������"���
���/�������)�����������
� ��
������������ ��������#�������
����������� ���
�"����������
��"��� ���� ���

���������������
���������
�� ����"�����.#���

��

;�9�!������"����
��� ������#
����������������� ��
���
������������������"�����.#���
��"���
�.#�"������ ��
�������������������������� ��'���@������"7�/�
7���
�������" ���0�� �&����� ��
"��"������������������"�������"�

������&����������������#
���������������B�"�#�����"��������� ��
@��7�,���B�� ����&�@������"7�/�
7��B���"��������0�����"���
���������������� ��"�

����
����������"�#�����������"����
�"��#���� ���#
�G�"��&����������

��

,��#�����2�% ����������
������������ ��"���2��0�������&
������
��#�����&�������#
�������
���������
������
�

A��
�����"�
���0�

�/
��)�/�
�&��"7��

1014



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from: A Ashcroft  

(Lead Officer for the Review) (01432 383098) or P James, Democratic Services Officer (01432) 260460 

  

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 10 DECEMBER 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: TASK & FINISH GROUP REPORT – COMMUNITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) REVIEW 

REPORT BY:  Task & Finish Review Group 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To consider the findings arising from the scrutiny Task & Finish Group – ‘Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) Review’ and to recommend the report to the Executive for consideration. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) the Committee considers the report of the Task & Finish Group – 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Review, in particular its 
recommendations, and determines whether it wishes to agree the 
findings for submission to the Executive; 

(b) Subject to the Review being approved, the Executive’s response to the 
Review including an action plan be reported  to the first available meeting 
of the Committee after the Executive has approved its response; 

Key Points Summary 

• A scrutiny Task & Finish Review has been undertaken into the preparation of a Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule for Herefordshire. 

• The findings and recommendations of the Review Group are contained in the attached report. 

Alternative Options 

1 The Committee can agree, not agree or can vary the recommendations.  If the Committee 
agree with the findings and recommendations from the review, the attached report will be 
submitted to the Executive for consideration.  It will be for the Executive to decide whether 
some, all or none of the recommendations are approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

15



Reasons for Recommendations 

2 This Committee commissioned a Task & Finish Group to look at the preparation of a 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule for Herefordshire.  The Task & Finish 
Group has completed it task so far as it is currently able and its report is required to be 
submitted to this Committee for approval.  The recommendations also set out how the report 
should be progressed in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, if approved by the 
Committee. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Cabinet on 28 July 2011 considered the Economic Development Strategy, Local Development 
Framework (LDF) and the Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3).  Arising out of that debate Cabinet 
invited the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to inform the preparation of a Community 
Infrastructure Levy charging schedule for Herefordshire.  

4 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee commissioned a Task & Finish Group to undertake a 
review.  The Review has been undertaken within the limitations of having to meet a deadline 
for a report to be submitted to the Executive by December 2012.  The resultant findings and 
recommendations are to be reported to this Committee for its consideration prior to being 
referred to the Council’s Executive for consideration and approval. 

Key Considerations 

5 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is expected to provide additional monies for 
infrastructure but will not replace existing mainstream funding.  Core public funding will 
continue to bear the main burden, and the Council will need to utilise CIL alongside other 
funding streams to deliver infrastructure plans locally. 

6 The Task & Finish Group considered the range of information put before it and its principal 
findings were that a differential rates approach be taken to setting CIL rates in Herefordshire 
and that a locality-based approach to managing both the encouragement of development and 
the implementation and ownership of infrastructure projects – including those designed as 
‘strategic’ at county level, is recommended for Herefordshire.  

7 The Task & Finish Group were time limited in its investigations to meet the deadline for 
reporting to the Executive by December 2012.  The Task & Finish Group are of the opinion 
that the Group should be recommissioned early in the New Year when further evidence 
namely a report by Three Dragons consultancy will be available. 

Community Impact 

8 The findings and recommendations from the review are in accordance with many of the guiding 
principles in the Herefordshire Community Strategy.  If the Committee and the Executive agree 
with the findings of the Group, any community impact will be reported in the resultant report to 
Cabinet. 

Equality and Human Rights 

9 If the Committee agree with the findings of the Group the report will need to be considered by 
the Executive and, depending on their decision, any resultant implementation of a Community 
Infrastructure Levy will need to be assessed against the Equality Analysis and be reported to 
Cabinet. 

16



Financial Implications 

10 If a Community Infrastructure Levy is imposed then the level of income derived will be 
dependent on the evidence to support the fee levels in the charging schedule and how the 
payment of the fees is phased as defined by the payment schedule.  Both these elements will 
need to be considered by the Executive and, depending on their decision, any resultant 
implementation of a Community Infrastructure Levy will need to be assessed against the 
financial implications and be reported to Cabinet. 

Legal Implications 

11. The Council is required to take into account the changes to recent government guidance to 
which the review report refers.  If the Committee and the Executive agree with the findings of 
the Group, legal input will be given to the resultant report to Cabinet. 

Risk Management 

12. There is reputational risk if the Council does not operate a sound policy.  The 
recommendations in the Review report should help mitigate this risk. The potential risk has 
been highlighted to the relevant department to assess whether the risk warrants inclusion in 
the risk register. 

Consultees 

13 As part of the Review interviews were held with: Lin Cousins, Three Dragons Consultancy; 
Shropshire Council; Jane Thomas, Strategic Housing Manager, and Hayley Crane, Housing 
Development Officer.  

Appendices 

14 Task & Finish Review Group Report – Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Report (Appendix 
1). 

Background Papers 

• The Review Group received may documents which are listed in appendix 3 to the Review 
Groups report the majority of which are available via the respective websites. 

17



18



 

 

Task & Finish 
Group Report 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) Task & Finish Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For consideration by the General 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee –    

10 December 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

19



 

Task & Finish Group Report 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

What is the Community Infrastructure Levy? 

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new local tax on capital gain that local 
authorities in England and Wales can choose to charge on new developments in their area.  

The money can be used to support development by funding infrastructure projects that the 
council, local community and neighbourhoods want – for example, new or safer road 
schemes, or park improvements.  It applies to most new buildings and charges are based on 
the size and type of the new development. The term ‘infrastructure’ in this instance, is used 
in its broadest sense to mean any service or facility that supports the county and its 
population.  For examples of ‘infrastructure’ see Appendix 1. 

Background 

1. Cabinet on 28 July 2011 considered the Economic Development Strategy, Local 
Development Framework (LDF) and the Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3).  Arising out 
of that debate Cabinet invited the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to inform the 
preparation of a Community Infrastructure Levy charging schedule for Herefordshire. 
The Committee accepted and the work was to be part of the Task & Finish review of 
income and charging, however, at that time the CIL guidance was unclear and 
therefore the CIL element was deferred until it was practical to undertake the review. 
The guidance was somewhat improved by the summer of 2012 and the terms of 
reference of this task and finish group were agreed as being:  

• To review national guidance and best practice on the issue; 
• To review the applicability of CIL charging regimes elsewhere in the UK to 

Herefordshire; 
• To make recommendations to the Cabinet for the scope / scale / geographic 

applicability of the CIL. 
2. The full scoping statement for the review is set out at Appendix 2. 

3. This report addresses the key questions from the scoping statement and sets out a 
number of recommendations. 

4. In undertaking this review, the Task & Finish Group has not looked at: 

• Input into the evolving Local development Framework or its associated 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (however the Group have been kept advised of 
relevant progress and areas of concern). 

• Scrutiny of national legislation or guidance. 
 

5. The Task & Finish Group comprised of Councillors: EPJ Harvey (Chair); B Durkin, J 
Hardwick; MAF Hubbard; GR Swinford.  Councillor P Watts and Councillor EMK 
Chave have kept a watching brief on the review and have contributed some key 
comments.  The Group were supported by Mr A Ashcroft, Assistant Director  

20



Economic, Environment & Cultural Services (Lead Officer); Mrs Y Coleman, Planning 
Obligations Manager; Siobhan Riddle, Senior Planning Officer; Mr P James, 
Democratic Services Officer. 

6. Prior to the start of the review the Group were provided with a substantial briefing 
pack and this has been supplemented by a number of further documents (listed at 
Appendix 3).  Between 17 September 2012 and 20 November 2012 the Group 
carried out research, convened meetings; undertook interviews (see appendix 3) and 
undertook a visit to Shropshire Council.   

7. The Group would like to thank all those who participated or supplied information 
during the course of this review. 

Addressing issues from the Terms of Reference 

8. In undertaking this review the Group have taken into account national guidance ‘The 
Community Infrastructure Levy – Summary’ produced by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (November 2012).  The Group have received 
information on how CIL regimes have been introduced in the few local authorities 
who have already implemented this new tax, principally Shropshire Council and 
Newark & Sherwood District Council. The Group has also received information 
concerning the number of CIL rate areas (zones) and the charging rates set by those 
authorities.  Information concerning the scope, scale and geographic applicability of 
CIL is set out later in this report.  

Commentary and Findings on the Key Questions 

9. It must be emphasised that CIL is expected to provide additional monies for 
infrastructure but will not replace existing mainstream funding.  Core public funding 
will continue to bear the main burden, and the Council will need to utilise CIL 
alongside other funding streams to deliver infrastructure plans locally. 

10. The flexibility provided by CIL is that, unlike Section 106 which is site specific, funds 
from CIL do not have to be spent on projects local to the development and do not 
have to be spent within a fixed period of time. However, legislation requires that such 
projects need to be identified at county level and to be published in a regularly 
updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP). 

Q1 - Examine appropriate CIL charging rates, and the effect of these rates on 
the viability of development in the County; and whether different CIL rates 
should be applied in different parts of the County. 

11. Since CIL is a new and additional ‘tax’ on development it will, inevitably, impact upon 
the overall costs of development in parts of the country where the levy is 
implemented. 

12. Legislation requires a Charging Authority (Herefordshire Council) to use ‘appropriate 
available evidence’ to inform the drafting of the charging schedule it implements.  
Government guidance recognises that the available data is unlikely to be fully 
comprehensive or exhaustive. However the Charging Authority will need to 
demonstrate that the proposed CIL rate or rates are informed by what information is 

21



available  and that the rate/s are consistent with that evidence across the whole 
County.  

13. The Guidance indicates that where different rates are considered for application in 
different parts of the County then Charging Authority should use an area-based 
approach. This involves a broad test of development viability, informed by the 
evidence base, to ensure the CIL rates for an area are achievable. In doing this, the 
Charging Authority is advised to take a strategic view across its areas rather than to 
focus on the potential implications of setting a CIL for individual development sites 
within a charging area. 

 
14. The Regulations recognise that the introduction of CIL may put some potential 

development sites at risk. It is for the Charging Authority to decide what CIL rate sets 
an appropriate balance between the need to fund infrastructure, and the potential 
implications for the economic viability of development across its area of 
responsibility.  

 
15. The Council has contracted with consultants Three Dragons to produce the evidence 

base for Herefordshire; collating and interpreting inputs from land owners, developers 
and estate agents. Unfortunately, the timescales for this work have slipped and are 
now not compatible with the timescales to which this Task & Finish Group is working. 
This has impacted upon a number of aspects of this Group’s review and 
recommendations to address these shortfalls will be referred to later in the report. 

 
16. Review process: In setting a CIL rate, the Charging Authority will need to bear in 

mind that the economic circumstances and land values could change significantly 
during the lifetime of the charging schedule; and that it will be necessary to plan to 
review the CIL rates at appropriate points in the lifetime of the core strategy. Any 
such review may be achieved by considering the proposed CIL rates in the context of 
projected trend levels, over the longer term, of property prices and land values in the 
area; and will require that CIL rates are adjusted to maintain optimum revenue 
generation and broad alignment with market conditions.  It is recommended that the 
initial implementation of CIL in Herefordshire should be reviewed after 12 months of 
operation. 

 
17. The Council’s three strategic documents comprising the Local Development 

Framework, the CIL Charging Mechanism and the Infrastructure Development Plan 
are all linked and interdependencies exist between them – see Figure 1. Some of 
these plans look ahead up to 20 years and all will be ‘living documents’ being 
updated and revised throughout their lifetimes. 

22



 
 

 
Figure 1: Interdependencies between strategic policy documents and processes 

 
18. The Group recommend that both the LDF and IDP should contain implementation 

plans which identify the following: 

a) where strategic developments sit geographically within the county; 

b) when they are anticipated to be needed; 

c) what infrastructure projects are associated with those developments; 

d) whether their implementation needs to lead or lag the developments; 

e) who is responsible for their implementation (NOTE: Not all projects in the IDP are 
the responsibility of the Council to deliver) 

19. This will enable developments to be identified against localities and for a timeline 
view of developments planned within an area to be built and maintained as part of 
the annual update cycle of the IDP. 

20. The Group consider that this approach will also allow the segmentation of the three 
interlinked strategic documents (LDF/CIL/IDP) into fixed timeframes. This will assist 
in setting CIL rates for the near-term timeframe with a degree of confidence, 
supported by the current evidence base. It will also allow all stakeholders to see 
when future rate reviews are planned so that they can make allowance for possible 

23



variations in charging rates in negotiations on future developments. This will assist 
both in managing development timescales and in reduce uncertainty regarding 
development cost/profit modelling.  

21. CIL Rates: There are a number of different ways in which CIL rates can be 
structured. The Charging Authority may consider setting uniform rates, because they 
are simple to understand and to manage.  Alternatively, the Charging Authority may 
consider setting differential rates as a way of both optimising revenue generation and 
recognising variations in economic viability within the County. 

22. If differential rates are set the regulations require that the geographical zones are 
precisely defined on an Ordnance Survey map so that it is immediately clear which 
charging zone any particular development is in thereby providing a developer with 
certainty regarding what rate they should expect to pay.  The Charging Authority also 
needs to be mindful that complex patterns of differential rates need to be compliant 
with state aid regulations. Examples of approaches to the zoning of charges are 
given in Table 1 

 
Council Name Residential (new houses & extensions over 100sqm) 

 Differential Payment Lowest Charge per 
square metre 

Highest Charge per 
square metre 

Mid Devon District Council 1 Standard Charging Zone £90 £90 

Shropshire 2 Charging Zones – Urban & Rural £40 £80 

Mid Sussex District Council 3 Charging Zones – Rural, Village & 
Town 

£150 £235 

Newark & Sherwood 7 Charging Zones £0 £75 

Table 1: Example differential CIL rates 

23. The Group consider it to be important that infrastructure projects prioritised within the 
IDP are enabled by CIL.  Therefore it is the responsibility of the Charging Authority to 
optimise the revenue generated by CIL payments, within the moderating framework 
of the county’s market conditions and supported by an independently assured and 
regularly updated evidence base. 

24. The Group hasn’t been able to review the evidence collected by the Three Dragons 
consultants.  However, the Group has heard evidence that would strongly suggest 
that there are varying degrees of development viability across the County.  It is 
therefore recommended that the Council implement a differential CIL rate approach 
in Herefordshire. Differential CIL rates would require a charging matrix to be created 
which prescribes the CIL rate to be applied to specific developments according to a 
variety of assessment criteria. 

25. The criteria associated with setting of differential CIL rates may include the following: 

a) The geographical market area e.g. Locality  - this will be specific to the general 
location of a development 

24



b) Any development zoning defined within the Locality e.g. Urban, Village, Rural – 
this will be specific to the particular location of a development 

c) The development type, e.g. residential, employment, retail, agricultural, etc. – this 
will be specific to the nature of a development 

26. In developing differential rates it will be important to include sufficient variables in the 
charging mechanism to reflect the range of market conditions within the County. 
However, it must also be borne in mind that the more variables introduced into the 
charging mechanism the more complex the process will be both to administer and to 
communicate to developers and land owners as indicated by the table above.  

27. There may be two or more localities in Herefordshire which have similar market 
conditions and may therefore be able to use a common set of differential rates – 
which would make the system easier to administer. However, the evidence base is 
not currently available to enable this report to make specific recommendations 
regarding a CIL charging matrix. The Group consider it important that the evidence 
base is examined before making any detailed recommendations on a differential CIL 
charging matrix for Herefordshire. 

28. Recommendation: - that a differential rates approach, in terms of both areas 
and zoning within areas, be taken to setting CIL in Herefordshire. 

29. Recommendation: - that this Task & Finish Group be recommissioned early in 
2013 to review the available documentation, engage with stakeholders on the 
proposed charging schedule and make recommendations. 

Q2 - Examine whether charges should be applied for some types of 
development, or for all. 

30. The Regulations allow the Authority to vary CIL rates according to the intended uses 
of development (e.g. residential, retail, business, etc.) across their charging area 
provided that the different rates can be justified by a comparative assessment of the 
economic viability of those categories of development. Where the Authority has 
applied differential rates in this way, the charging schedule should reflect those rates 
by reference to the appropriate use categories. 
 

31. The Charging Authority should not exempt or set a zero rate for a particular zone or 
category of development from CIL, unless it can demonstrate that this is justifiable in 
economic viability terms and aligns with the guidance already in place on Income and 
Charging. 

 
32. Recommendation – That the guidelines set out in the Income & Charging 

Review be applied to the application of CIL rates. 

33. Recommendation - It is important to include all types of development in the CIL 
charging framework – although some categories may be given a £Nil rate in a 
particular charging timeframe. 

34. Phasing of CIL Payments: CIL payments must be paid. They are not negotiable.  It 
is therefore vital that when setting its payment schedule the Charging Authority is 
open and transparent about how the charges will be imposed (e.g. the percentage 

25



payable at any defined key point in the development) and sensitive to the type and 
scale of the likely development so as not to make the development unviable.  The 
Charging Authority has to get the payment schedule right first time. 

35. Once set, the phasing of the payment schedule against the staged completion of a 
development will have a significant impact on the cash-flow of the developer and 
ultimately the viability of the development in the round. Examples of payment phasing 
adopted in other authorities are given in Table 2. 

Council Name Details of Payment Phasing 

 Phasing Criteria Phases Schedule of Payment Instalments 

Bath & North East 
Somerset 

Up to £35,000 1 100% within 60 days of commencement 

 Greater than £35,000 3 33% within 60 days of commencement 
33% within 12 calendar months after commencement 
34% within 18 calendar months after commencement 

Newark & Sherwood Less than £50,000 1 100% within 60 days of commencement 
 

 £50,000 to £250,000 2 25% within 90 days of commencement 
75% within 270 days of commencement 

 Greater than £250,000 4 25% within 90 days of commencement 
25% within 180 days of commencement 
25% within 360 days of commencement 
25% within 540 days of commencement 

Shropshire Council 1 dwelling 2 15% within 60 days of commencement 
85% within 270 days of commencement 

 2 – 4 dwellings 3 15% within 60 days of commencement 
20% within 270 days of commencement 
65% within 365 days of commencement 

 5 – 25 dwellings 3 15% within 60 days of commencement 
25% within 270 days of commencement 
60% within 365 days of commencement 

 26+ 2 25% within 60 days of commencement 
75% within 365 days of commencement 

Huntingdonshire Less than £16,000 1 100% within 120 days of commencement 
 

 £16,000 to £50,000 3 25% within 120 days of commencement 
50% within 210 days of commencement 
25% within 270 days of commencement 

 £50,000 to £100,000 3 25% within 120 days of commencement 
50% within 240 days of commencement 
25% within 365 days of commencement 

 £100,000 to £500,000 3 25% within 150 days of commencement 
25% within 300 days of commencement 
25% within 450 days of commencement 

 Greater than £500,000 3 25% within 180 days of commencement 
50% within 450 days of commencement 
25% within 720 days of commencement 

Table 2: Examples of CIL payment phasing policies 

36. The Group consider this to be an important aspect of the successful implementation 
of CIL and Recommend - That this Task & Finish Group be re-commissioned 
early in 2013 to review the available documentation, and to engage with local 

26



stakeholders on the options for phasing of CIL payments before making further 
recommendations. 

37. Apportionment of CIL: The implementation of CIL needs to be undertaken in a 
manner which encourages positive behaviours in all stakeholder groups. This 
includes the local communities and the parish councils hosting the developments, as 
well as landowners, financiers and developers. 

38. Once collected, CIL needs to be apportioned against a variety of activities. How this 
is done will have a huge impact on how CIL and the whole development strategy for 
the county as a whole is perceived by local communities across the county. 

39. There are now a few CIL models around the country and some, due to local 
circumstances, seem quite complex.  However Shropshire, has implemented a more 
straight forward model which appears well aligned to the needs of Herefordshire. 

40. The Group were most impressed by the positive behaviours engendered in local 
communities, and the contribution this makes to realising county level strategies, that 
has been enabled by the approach to CIL implementation adopted in Shropshire. 
Their astute model both delivers major top-down infrastructure projects and 
encourages community support for bottom-up local developments by the way in 
which they have handled the apportionment of CIL and the Locality planning of 
infrastructure projects. 

41. To drive positive behaviours in the ‘Shropshire model’ they assign even major 
infrastructure projects to the Localities in which they are sited; and these are then 
contributed to by the 77% portion of the total CIL payment from any development that 
is retained in that Locality.  

Admin Charge 
(held at County 

level)
5%

Meaningful 
proportion (held 
at Parish level)

10%

Strategic 
Infrastructure 

projects (held at 
County level)

Local 
Infrastructure 

projects as 
defined by 

Locality Plan (held 
by Locality level)

77%

Example Apportionment of CIL Income by Use

 

Figure 2: CIL apportionment to use category and level of local government 

42. In Shropshire, they assign 5% of any CIL payment to overall administration and 10% 
as the ‘meaningful proportion’ of the CIL required by legislation to be returned to the 
parish in which the development takes place. Of the remaining 85%, 90% of it is 

27



retained at a ‘Locality’ level, with only 10% going towards county-level strategic 
infrastructure projects. 

 

Figure 3: Herefordshire Localities 

43. This approach requires that each Locality develop an area plan which is refreshed 
annually to reflect the infrastructure projects which are proposed for the coming year. 
These are then aggregated and used to update the county level IDP – which is 
required by legislation. The currently defined Herefordshire Localities are given in 
Figure 3. 

44. In addition to strategic developments which are assigned to their Localities, local 
communities are actively coming forward to propose development projects in the 
villages and rural areas – where they are starting to see the resulting CIL being an 
important enabler for local community projects. 

45. The Group consider that this is an important point for the Charging Authority to 
address.  Roughly a third of the total development planned for Herefordshire over the 
next 20 years in the LDF is expected to be small scale developments, infill projects 
and individual dwellings built across and throughout the whole county, evolving out of 
local need. It is important to have mechanisms in place which will actively encourage 
the bringing forward of this development. It is also important to have CIL, and the 
infrastructure projects it funds, regarded in a positive light across the county as this 
will reduce resistance to these developments and will increase local ‘ownership’ of 
the county level plans. 

46. Recommendation - That a Locality-based approach to managing both the 
encouragement of development and the implementation and ownership of 
infrastructure projects – including those designated as ‘strategic’ at county 
level, is recommended for Herefordshire. 

28



Q3 - Examine whether charging regimes could relate to building sustainability 
as part of a wider encouragement for improved building efficiency standards 

47. The Group consider that economic conditions and changing social priorities make it 
essential that the council delivers on its targets for affordable and social housing, 
perhaps even to exceed those targets. In addition the Group is concerned that 
housing built from now on is both affordable to buy/rent and also affordable to live in. 
The layout of houses on building plots, their roof geometry and aspect and their 
overall build to advanced standards of energy efficiency while delivering low impact 
on local resource and utilities are all crucial to the sustainable nature of the county’s 
future housing stock. 

48. Recommendation - To ensure that the implementation of CIL encourages and 
supports the Councils targets for affordable and social housing and advances 
the standards of building sustainability of the county’s housing stock. 

49. In addition, the Group recommends that careful consideration should be given to the 
creation of a special development category for high energy efficient, lifetime 
sustainable developments by the setting of a CIL rate that reflects the increased up-
front cost of developments which meet these higher build standards.  By 
implementing this via the means of a special development category the Group 
believe it will encourage this type of industry sector within the County. 

50. Recommendation – That a special development category be included in the CIL 
rate recognising high energy efficient, lifetime sustainable developments. 

 
Q4 - Examine and understand the transitional arrangements that will be 
required between Section 106 agreements and the introduction of CIL. 

51.  Traditionally Section 106 agreements have been applied to the more substantial 
developments which involve professional developers who are aware of the Section 
106 system.  While larger developers will be involved in the CIL process it is likely 
that smaller developers will become increasingly involved as buildings are extended 
or small developments over 100 square metres take place.  It is therefore important 
that the Charging Authority policy on CIL is open, transparent and clear and provides 
good advice as early in the development process as possible.  

52. Recommendation – That a communication plan and workshops be instigated in 
advance of the implementation date to ensure that clear advice is available to 
both the development industry and the general public. 

Other Matters 

53. The Group has sought assurance that the council has the software tools, staff cover 
and processes in place to enable the implementation of CIL to be handled effectively 
and efficiently. That assurance has been given, but has not been tested as part of 
this review. 

29



54. The Group identified the need to set up an Infrastructure Delivery Working Group to 
oversee the delivery of CIL.  A mechanism to deal with any appeals that may arise 
may also be required. 

55. The Group also recognises that CIL management is an important area both in terms 
of the Council’s ability to manage its own resources and to provide transparency to 
both the developers and the public alike.  The Group has been briefed by the 
Planning Obligations Manager on the current arrangements for managing Section 
106 monies, and is satisfied that these systems are both robust and effective.  It was 
however clear that different mechanisms will need to be introduced once CIL is in 
place to project manage major infrastructure schemes, to provide annual statements, 
and to ensure a correct and sustainable balance between debt repayment and CIL 
payments. 

56. In the timeframe of this review, the Group has not been able to obtain clear guidance 
on how the use of CIL payments will operate with respect to the other mechanisms 
open to the council for raising funds to pay for infrastructure projects. The way in 
which the cost of infrastructure projects are budgeted for and managed will have a 
major bearing on how CIL can be used at local and at county levels to enable 
community and more strategic infrastructure investments. 

57. The group considers that this is an important area of discussion which may well 
impact on how infrastructure projects are scheduled in the IDP, and how the payment 
schedule for development projects can be phased.  The group recommends that this 
is a subject which is investigated in more detail when the group is recommissioned to 
address outstanding questions in the New Year. 

58. Recommendation – That the question of how the cost of infrastructure projects 
are budgeted for and managed be investigated in more detail when the Task & 
Finish Group is recommissioned. 

The Recommendations contained in this report This table needs updating: 

Paragraph No  

28 Recommendation: - that a differential rates approach, in terms of both 
areas and zoning within areas, be taken to setting CIL in 
Herefordshire. 

29 Recommendation: - that this Task & Finish Group be recommissioned 
early in 2013 to review the available documentation, engage with 
stakeholders on the proposed charging schedule and make 
recommendations. 

32 Recommendation – That the guidelines set out in the Income & 
Charging Review be applied to the application of CIL rates. 

33 Recommendation - It is important to include all types of development 
in the CIL charging framework – although some categories may be 
given a £Nil rate in a particular charging timeframe. 

30



36 Recommend - That this Task & Finish Group be re-commissioned 
early in 2013 to review the available documentation, and to engage 
with local stakeholders on the options for phasing of CIL payments 
before making further recommendations. 

46 Recommendation - That a Locality-based approach to managing both 
the encouragement of development and the implementation and 
ownership of infrastructure projects – including those designated as 
‘strategic’ at county level, is recommended for Herefordshire. 

48 Recommendation - To ensure that the implementation of CIL 
encourages and supports the Councils targets for affordable and 
social housing and advances the standards of building sustainability 
of the county’s housing stock. 

50 Recommendation – That a special development category be included 
in the CIL rate recognising high energy efficient, lifetime sustainable 
developments. 

52 Recommendation – That a communication plan and workshops be 
instigated in advance of the implementation date to ensure that clear 
advice is available to both the development industry and the general 
public. 

58 Recommendation – That the question of how the cost of 
infrastructure projects are budgeted for and managed be investigated 
in more detail when the Task & Finish Group is recommissioned. 

 

 

31



Appendix 1 

Examples of Infrastructure 

1. The term “infrastructure”, in this instance, is used in its broadest sense to mean any service or facility 
that supports the county and its population. It includes but is not restricted to the following: 

a. Table 1.1 Defining Infrastructure  

Physical 
Infrastructure 

Social Infrastructure Green 
Infrastructure 

Road Improvements and 
Travel Management 

Affordable housing - social 
rented/intermediate 

Parks 

Rail Education - Nursery and pre-school; 
primary, secondary; further 
education, higher education, adult 
education 

 

Children’s play areas 

Buses and other Public 
Transport 

Health  - Hospitals; Health 
centres/GP surgeries; Public health 
and prevention 

 

Sports pitches and ball 
courts 

Cycle Network Community services - Libraries, 
Community centres, Youth 
services, Social services/over-
50s/support, police, fire & 
rescue, ambulance, cemeteries 
and crematoria, courts, prisons, 
hostels, places of worship, post 
offices, Children’s centres; 
special needs and disability 

 

Country parks & Accessible 
Natural Green space 

Footway Improvements Public Art and Public Realm Green public realm 

Car Parking Sport and Recreational Facilities Allotments 

Gas and Electricity 
generation and provision 

Culture  - Museum/galleries, Theatres 
/ Venues, Cinemas, events, festivals 
and town centre programmes, 
Markets 

Public Rights of Way 

Water supply, waste water 
treatment, drainage, flood 
defences 

 Rivers 

Telecommunications e.g. 
broadband 

 Canals 

 

32



Appendix 2 

TITLE OF REVIEW: Community Infrastructure Levy 

 

SCOPING  

Reason for Enquiry 

 

To assist in the formulation of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) policy and rates throughout 
the County. 

Links to the Community Strategy 

 

The review contributes to the following objectives contained in the Herefordshire Sustainable 
Community Strategy, including the Council’s Corporate Plan and other key plans or strategies: 

Summary of Review  and Terms of Reference  

Summary 

 

This review is to consider the setting of the Community Infrastructure Levy in the County. 

 

Terms of Reference 

• To review national guidance and best practice on the issue. 

• To review the applicability of CIL charging regimes elsewhere in the UK to 
Herefordshire. 

• To make recommendations to the Cabinet for the scope/scale/geographic applicability 
of the CIL. 

What will NOT be included 

 

• Input into the evolving Local Development Framework (although the group will need to 
be kept advised of relevant progress and to comment on areas of concern). 

• Scrutiny of national legislation or guidance. 
 

Potential outcomes 

To  

• Influence the setting of the CIL within the County. 

• Assess the applicability of recently introduced CIL models elsewhere in the UK to 
Herefordshire. 

33



 

Key questions 

To  

• Examine appropriate CIL charging rates, and the effect on these rates on the viability 
of development in the County. 

• Examine whether charges should be applied for some types of development, or for all. 

• Examine whether charging regimes could relate to building sustainability as part of a 
wider encouragement for improved building efficiency standards. 

• Examine whether different CIL rates should be applied in different parts of the County. 

• Examine and understand the transitional arrangements that will be required between 
Section 106 agreements and the introduction of CIL. 

 

Cabinet Member (s) 

 
Councillor Russell B Hamilton 

Key Stakeholders/Consultees 

• Community Groups in Herefordshire. 

• Development Industry / land owners. 

• Highways Agency. 

• Infrastructure Providers (including Environment Agency). 

Potential Witnesses 

• Community representatives from other counties. 

• Landowners/agents involved in proposed strategic sites. 

• Technical experts (Highways Agency / Environment Agency). 

• Retained consultants (Three Dragons). 

Research Required 

 

Largely completed – national legislation / other authorities work. 

Potential Visits 

To  

• Shropshire 

• Newark and Sherwood 

34



 

Publicity Requirements 

Launch of Review 
During Review 
Publication of the  Review and its recommendations 
Herefordshire Matters 

 

Outline Timetable (following decision by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to commission the Review) 
Activity Timescale 

Collect current available data for circulation to 
Group prior to first meeting of the Group. 

Completed 

Confirm approach, programme of 
consultation/research/provisional 
witnesses/meeting dates   

First meeting of the Review Group. 
Early September 2012 

Collect outstanding data Early September 2012 
Analysis of data  
Final confirmation of interviews of witnesses  
Carry out programme of interviews Early October 2012 
Agree programme of site visits as appropriate Early October 2012 
Undertake site visits as appropriate Early October 2012 
Present interim report to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, if appropriate. 

 

Final analysis of data and witness evidence  
Prepare options/recommendations  
Present Final report to Overview and  Scrutiny  
Committee 

 

Present options/recommendations to Cabinet 
(or Cabinet Member (s))  

 

Cabinet/Cabinet Member (s)  response (Within 
2 months of receipt of Group’s report) 

 

Consideration of Executive’s response by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Monitoring of Implementation of agreed 
recommendations (within six months of 
Executive’s response) 

 

Members Support Officers –  
Yvonne Coleman, Planning Obligations Manager.  
Siobhan Riddle, Senior Planning Officer. 

Councillors: 

Cllr EPJ Harvey (Chairman of 
Review Group) 

Cllr BA Durkin 

Cllr J Hardwick 

Cllr MAF Hubbard 

Cllr GR Swinford 

Lead Support Officer – Andrew Ashcroft – Assistant Director 
Economic, Environment & Cultural Services. 

 

 

 

Democratic Services Representative 

Paul James – Democratic Services Officer 

35



Appendix 3 
Evidence and Interviews 

Documents in initial briefing pack: 
(Note many of these documents are available from the respective web sites) 
Doc No.  
1 Communities and Local Government – The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Summary 
2 Newark & Sherwood District Council - CIL 
3 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Charging Schedule including Instalment 

Policy 
4 Newark & Sherwood District Council – List of CIL Funded Projects (Reg.123) 
5 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Form 

 Form to Accompany Planning Application Form 
6 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Form 2 

Assumption of Liability Notice of Chargeable Development 
7 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Form 3 

Liability Notice (Reg 65) 
8 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Form 4 

Claim for Relief (Affordable Housing or Charitable Purposes) 
9 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Form 5 

Commencement Notice (Reg 69) 
10 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL From 6 

Demand Notice (Reg 69) 
11 Newark & Sherwood District Council – CIL Appeals Procedure Note 
12 Newark & Sherwood District Council – Paying CIL in the form of land note 
13 Newark & Sherwood District Council –CIL Guide – Newark & Sherwood 
14 Shropshire Council – Community Infrastructure Levy 
15 Shropshire Council –CIL Form 0 v3 
16 Shropshire Council –CIL Form Guidance note v3 
17 Shropshire Council – CIL Form 1 assumption of liability 
18 Shropshire Council – CIL Form 2 claiming exemption and or relief 
19 Shropshire Council – CIL Form 3 withdrawal of assumption of liability 
20 Shropshire Council – CIL Form 4 transfer of assumed liability 
21 Shropshire Council – CIL Form 6 commencement notice 
22 Shropshire Council – Guide to CIL relief 
23 Shropshire Council – Notification of CIL relief 
24 Shropshire Council – Instalment Policy 
25 Shropshire Council – CIL FAQ for communities April 
26 Shropshire Council – CIL Detailed notes for applicants April 2012 
27 Shropshire Council – CIL Reg 123 list for April 2012 
28 Shropshire Council – Shropshire CIL Charging Schedule 
29 Herefordshire Council: Economic Viability Assessment Final Report – June 2011 

Three Dragons and Roger Tym & Partners 
30 CIL Charges – by various Councils (Charging Authorities) 
31 FAQ’s about the CIL 
 

36



 
Documents received during the Review: 
A Members seminar 6 September (postponed) PowerPoint presentation ‘Community 

Infrastructure Levy’  
B Comments on Scoping for CIL (LC August 2012) from Cllr Chave 
C Comments for T&FG – CIL meeting 17 September 2012 from Cllr Chave. 
D Link to the DCLG website to an overview of the CIL. (e-mail from Y Coleman 

19.9.12) 
E List of examples of ‘infrastructure’ (e-mail from Y Coleman 19.9.12) 
F Draft Herefordshire Core Strategy Infrastructure Delivery Programme. 
G Torbay Council – CIL – Preliminary draft Charging schedule consultation 

document – Dec 2011.   
H List of Local Authority (collection authority) ‘Phasing Amounts’ (Bristol; Bath & 

North East Somerset; Shropshire; Huntingdonshire). 
I Article in on line publication ‘Planning’ by Jamie Carpenter ‘Official hints that CIL 

will not fund affordable homes’. (e-mail from Y Coleman 14.10.12) 
J CIL Charging Comparisons – various charging authorities (excel sheets) 
K Flip chart notes of meeting 29 October 2012 
L PowerPoint presentation by Lin Cousins, Three Dragons, to the meeting on 10 

October with some post meeting updating. 
 
 
Interviews have been held with: 
Shropshire Council – a visit was undertaken on Monday 8 October 2012. 
Lin Cousins, Three Dragons Consultancy – Wednesday 10 October 2012. 
Jane Thomas, Strategic Housing Manager, and Hayley Crane, Housing Development Officer 
– Wednesday 10 October 2012. 
 

37



38



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Powell, Chief Officer: Finance & 
Commercial  on Tel: (01432) 383519 

 
g  

 
 

 

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 10 DECEMBER 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & 
FINISH GROUP REPORT ON FEES & CHARGING  

REPORT BY:  DAVID POWELL CHIEF OFFICER FINANCIAL & 
COMMERCIAL 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide  

4. Purpose 

To note the updated task and finish report on fees and charges attached at appendix A and monitor 
progress against the Executive Action Plan. 
 
5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

(a) the report be noted. 

6. Key Points Summary 

• Good progress has been made implementing the recommendations  

• Since the first report the overall Root and Branch process has developed and includes the 
review of charging for each thematic area. 

• Extensive cost benchmarking has been undertaken to understand our services 

AGENDA ITEM 9

39



 
 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no Alternative Options.  

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The executive response was brought to Overview & Scrutiny and approved. 

8.2 It was agreed that an updated position would be brought back to the Committee for noting six 
months after the initial report. 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 In June 2011 Cabinet agreed a number of charging principles.  The report arose from a 
benchmarking review that showed Herefordshire was in the lower quartile in terms of potential 
fees, charging and income compared to other authorities.  Cabinet requested ”Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, through the Vice-Chairman Corporate Services, to undertake a review to 
identify options for the development of budgetary policy to support further income generation”. 

9.2 At the meeting of Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 19 March 2012 the Committee agreed 
the findings and recommendations to the Executive arising from the review of income and 
charging (appendix A). 

9.3 In developing its response the Executive has taken into consideration the current financial 
climate and future efficiency savings that face local government. 

9.4 When Cabinet requested the review there was a need to understand how the rationale for 
setting fees and charges linked to service provision and how this fitted within the overall 
approach to budget policy. The move towards greater integration of fees and charges into the 
overall service delivery and budget process was indicated by Cabinet when it agreed draft 
charging and trading principles back in July. These principles required: 

a. A consistent approach to full cost recovery and increased income generation to be 
achieved through the adoption of corporate charging principles. This principle also 
requires that implementation of income proposals should be supported and driven using a 
properly managed process with clear timescales and priorities; 

b. The work already undertaken around traded services to schools had identified proposals 
totalling £1.9m, which related to existing income streams. Such services needed to be 
further developed to mitigate the risk of this income being lost due to external competition 
as academy status schools exercise newfound ‘choice’ by purchasing services from 
outside providers; 

c. A medium-term aim to develop an appropriate approach to extending the traded services 
model to provide a wider range of council services on a commercial basis; 

d. A benchmarking comparison with other unitary authorities in the council’s comparator 
‘family group’ shows Herefordshire in the lower quartile in terms of income generation. 
Cabinet formed the view that this indicates there is scope to generate additional income to 
offset budget pressures and to reduce the level of subsidy provided. 

10. Key Considerations 

10.1 The recommendations of the task and finish group were that: 

40



 
 

a. Council should consistently apply the principles for setting or amending fees and 
charges agreed last year and revised by this group and by PwC. These principles 
should be set out as part of the annual budget papers where the full schedule of fees 
and charges is included. Any future presentation of the schedule to members should 
include a covering report setting out how the principles have been met. 

b. Any new charges or any changes to existing charges in excess of inflation, should be 
tested and reported against the council’s stated principles for setting or amending fees 
and charges. Over a period of time, not exceeding 18 months, all existing charges 
should be tested against the principles in order to provide a baseline for future review.  

c. The council should develop a consistent approach to engaging service users and 
taxpayers more in decisions about whether and at what level to charge for services.  
Questions should continue to be asked in consultations about services and wider 
engagement exercises to do with council finances. As part of this engagement, the 
council should describe the financial and non-financial contribution of charging, and the 
rationale for levels of subsidy for services to local people. The council should make this 
information available on its website and at service hubs and information centres. 

d. Staff should receive the necessary training to behave in a business-like/commercial 
manner in developing and delivering  council services 

e. The appropriate finance mechanisms and tools should be made available to enable 
service costs and management overheads to be apportioned and managed effectively 
to ensure cost recovery. 

f. Benchmarking should be undertaken to learn from commercial markets exhibiting 
functional or capability similarities to council services. 

g. Enabling systems and tools should be in place to minimise the implementation and 
running costs of service charges and to ensure appropriate information about service 
use and user behaviour is captured to inform future planning and service delivery. 

h. Services should be classified to distinguish between those that are mandatory, 
discretionary and commercial to aid transparency and clarity for staff, councillors and 
the public. 

102. The Executive’s response is contained at Appendix A and progress against the 
recommendations is included.  The response covers the eight recommendations and 
indicates wide acceptance of the Task and Finish group’s report.  It is clear that the current 
financial climate and national financial context signal the need for a transformation in 
approach.   

10.3 The council has worked with Local Government Futures to analyse our statutory and 
discretionary activity to support the ‘Root and Branch’ process. As part of this a benchmarking 
exercise has compared Herefordshire’s spend across all major service areas. This has 
provided greater awareness of per capita spend and has also looked at comparisons by 
activity ‘drivers’. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 Increases in fees and charges will have an impact on communities across Herefordshire. 
However, significant cuts to front line service provision would be necessary if the increase to 
median levels of fees and charges were not implemented. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 Any decision to increase charges will be subject to an Equality Impact Assessment.  It is 
important that the council has due regard to the relevant part of the general duty under 

41



 
 

legislation covering the legislation equalities 
 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 All actions proposed will be met from within existing agreed budgets 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 There are no legal implications 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 The proposed actions must be considered alongside progress within other relevant service 
areas to ensure a strategic and cohesive approach to future opportunities with regards to 
income and charging. 

15.2 The response in Appendix A has a series of dependencies and interdependencies between 
tasks. These are critical and will be part of the wider implementation/action plan to aid the 
response to the task and finish group's report. Income generation is critical to the council 
delivering on its challenging budget and changing the culture internally and behaviours 
externally. Actions are spread across all areas of the council and slippage in individual areas 
of the attached response will have consequences on the overall schedule. In order to mitigate 
this an overall project plan will be developed for all action owners. This will help ensure that 
the risk associated with any slippage can be understood.  

16. Consultees 

16.1 None identified but future changes to some charges will require consultation  
 

17. Appendices 

17.1 Executive Response - Updated 

17.2 Task & Finish Group Report on Income and Charging – 19 March 2012 

18. Background Papers 

• Fees and Charges, Cabinet – 30 June 2011 

• Fees and Charges Update, Cabinet – 16 April 2012 

42



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
 

C
ou
nc
il 
sh
ou
ld
 c
on
si
st
en
tly
 a
pp
ly
 t
he
 p
rin
ci
pl
es
 f
or
 s
et
tin
g 
or
 a
m
en
di
ng
 f
ee
s 
an
d 
ch
ar
ge

s 
ag
re
ed
 la

st
 y
ea
r 
an
d 

re
vi
se
d 
by
 th

is
 g
ro
up
 a
nd
 b
y 
P
w
C
. T

he
se
 p
rin
ci
pl
es
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 s
et
 o
ut
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 a
nn
ua
l b
ud
ge
t p

ap
er
s 
w
he
re
 

th
e 
fu
ll 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f 
fe
es
 a
nd
 c
ha
rg
es
 i
s 
in
cl
ud
ed

. 
A
ny
 f
ut
ur
e 
pr
es
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 t
he
 s
ch
ed
ul
e 
to
 m

em
be
rs
 s
ho
ul
d 

in
cl
ud
e 
a 
co
ve
rin
g 
re
po
rt
 s
et
tin
g 
ou
t h

ow
 th

e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 h
av
e 
be
en
 m

et
. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
.  

O
ff
ic

er
s 

w
ill

 e
n
su

re
 t
h
e 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
ar

e 
ap

p
lie

d
.  

T
h
e 

b
u
d
g
et

 p
ap

er
s 

fo
r 

C
ab

in
et

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ci

l w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

a 
fu

ll 
sc

h
ed

u
le

 o
f 
fe

es
 a

n
d
 c

h
ar

g
es

. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

C
on
si
st
en
t a

pp
lic
at
io
n 
of
 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 

C
hi
ef
 O
ffi
ce
r;
 F
in
an
ce
 &
 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
2 

A
ll 
fe
es
 a
nd
 c
ha
rg
es
 a
ss
es
se
d 
ag
ai
ns
t 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 a
nd
 o
ut
co
m
e 
sh
ar
ed
 w
ith
 

C
ab
in
et
. 

O
n
 G
o
in
g
 -
F
ee
s 
an
d 

ch
ar
ge

s 
as
se
ss
ed
 a
ga

in
st
 

th
e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 

In
cl
ud
e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 w
ith
in
 

M
ed

iu
m
 te

rm
 F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
(M

T
F
S
) 

 

C
hi
ef
 O
ffi
ce
r;
 F
in
an
ce
 &
 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
12
 

In
cl
us
io
n 
of
 p
rin
ci
pl
es
 w
ith
in
 M
T
F
S
 fo

r 
C
ab
in
et
 a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n.
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 -
In
cl
ud
ed
 in
 

th
e 
fir
st
 d
ra
ft 
of
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
 

P
ro
vi
de
 fu

ll 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f 

fe
es
 a
nd
 c
ha
rg
es
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f 

th
e 
bu
dg
et
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

 

C
hi
ef
 O
ffi
ce
r;
 F
in
an
ce
 &
 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

S
ch
ed
ul
e 
ba
se
d 
on
 in
pu
t f
ro
m
 

di
re
ct
or
at
es
.  
S
ch
ed
ul
e 
fo
rm

s 
pa
rt
 o
f 

an
nu
al
 b
ud
ge
t p
ro
ce
ss
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
- 
F
irs
t d
ra
ft 

sc
he
du
le
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 fo
r 

in
cl
us
io
n 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 2
 

A
ny
 n
ew

 c
ha
rg
es
 o
r 
an
y 
ch
an
ge

s 
to
 e
xi
st
in
g 
ch
ar
ge

s 
in
 e
xc
es
s 
of
 in
fla
tio
n,
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 te
st
ed
 a
nd
 r
ep
or
te
d 
ag
ai
ns
t 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 s
ta
te
d 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 f
or
 s
et
tin
g 
or
 a
m
en
di
ng

 fe
es
 a
nd
 c
ha
rg
es
. O

ve
r 
a 
pe
rio
d 
of
 ti
m
e,
 n
ot
 e
xc
ee
di
ng

 1
8 

m
on
th
s,
 a
ll 
ex
is
tin
g 
ch
ar
ge
s 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
te
st
ed
 a
ga

in
st
 t
he
 p
rin
ci
pl
es
 i
n 
or
de
r 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 b
as
el
in
e 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 

re
vi
ew

. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
.  

It
 is

 t
h
e 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

ll 
ex

is
ti
n
g
 c

h
ar

g
es

 o
ve

r 
a 

p
er

io
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e.
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

A
ll 
ne

w
 c
ha
rg
es
 o
r 
ch
an
ge

s 
w
ill
 b
e 
te
st
ed
 a
ga

in
st
 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
. 

D
ire
ct
or
s 

A
s 
re
qu

ire
d 

an
d 
pa
rt
 o
f 

th
e 
bu
dg
et
 

E
vi
de
nc
e 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t a
ga

in
st
 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 w
ith
 o
ut
co
m
e 
he
ld
 in
 a
 s
in
gl
e 

do
cu
m
en
t. 

G
ui
da
nc
e 
pr
od
uc
ed
 

43



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

pr
oc
es
s.
 

E
xi
st
in
g 
ch
ar
ge

s 
to
 b
e 

te
st
ed
 a
ga

in
st
 p
rin
ci
pl
es
. 

 

D
ire
ct
or
s 

M
ay
 2
01
3 

A
ll 
ex
is
tin
g 
ch
ar
ge

s 
te
st
ed
 a
ga

in
st
 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 a
nd
 r
es
ul
ts
 r
ep
or
t t
o 
C
ab
in
et
. 

G
ui
da
nc
e 
pr
od
uc
ed
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 3
 

T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
sh
ou
ld
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 c
on
si
st
en
t 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 t
o 
en
ga
gi
ng
 s
er
vi
ce
 u
se
rs
 a
nd
 t
ax
pa
ye
rs
 m

or
e 
in
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 

ab
ou
t 
w
he
th
er
 a
nd
 a
t 
w
ha
t 
le
ve
l t
o 
ch
ar
ge
 f
or
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  
Q
ue
st
io
ns
 s
ho
ul
d 
co
nt
in
ue
 t
o 
be
 a
sk
ed
 in
 c
on
su
lta
tio
ns
 

ab
ou
t 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 w

id
er
 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 
ex
er
ci
se
s 
to
 d
o 
w
ith
 c
ou
nc
il 
fin
an
ce
s.
 A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 e
ng
ag

em
en
t, 
th
e 

co
un
ci
l 
sh
ou
ld
 d
es
cr
ib
e 
th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 a
nd
 n
on
-f
in
an
ci
al
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n 
of
 c
ha
rg
in
g,
 a
nd
 t
he
 r
at
io
na
le
 f
or
 l
ev
el
s 
of
 

su
bs
id
y 
fo
r 
se
rv
ic
es
 t
o 
lo
ca
l 
pe
op
le
. 
T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
sh
ou
ld
 m

ak
e 
th
is
 i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
on
 i
ts
 w
eb
si
te
 a
nd
 a
t 

se
rv
ic
e 
hu
bs
 a
nd
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ce
nt
re
s.
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
 a

n
d
 it

 is
 t
h
e 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 u

se
 t
h
e 

R
o
o
t 
an

d
 B

ra
n
ch

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
h
er

ev
er

 
p
o
ss

ib
le

 t
o
 c

h
al

le
n
g
e 

su
b
si

d
y 

le
ve

ls
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

E
ng

ag
e 
pu
bl
ic
 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 

us
er
s 
vi
a 
Y
ou
r 
C
om

m
un
ity
, 

Y
ou
r 
S
ay
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

 

D
ire
ct
or
s 

A
ut
um

n 
20
12
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 e
ng

ag
em

en
t a
nd
 fe

ed
ba
ck
 

ab
ou
t c
ha
rg
in
g.
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
- 
A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 

pr
oc
es
s 
pu
bl
ic
 e
ng
ag
ed
 

ab
ou
t f
un
di
ng
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
s 

R
ev
ie
w
 c
ha
rg
es
 to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
le
ve
l o
f s
ub
si
dy
 

as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 r
oo
t a
nd
 

br
an
ch
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

F
in
an
ce
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

C
la
rit
y 
ab
ou
t l
ev
el
 o
f s
ub
si
dy
 in
 e
xi
st
in
g 

ch
ar
gi
ng
 le
ve
ls
. 

P
ar
ti
al
- 
H
oo
pl
e 
be
in
g 

en
ga
ge

d 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 

an
al
ys
is
. 

G
re
at
er
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 

ch
ar
gi
ng
 th
ro
ug
h 
be
tte
r 
us
e 

of
 w
eb
si
te
. 

 

D
ig
ita
l C

ha
nn
el
s 
P
ro
je
ct
 

M
an
ag

er
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

C
ha
rg
es
 to
 b
e 
pu
bl
is
he
d 
on
 w
eb
si
te
 a
nd
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 a
t c
us
to
m
er
 s
er
vi
ce
 c
en
tr
es
. 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 –
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o-

on
e 
in
 p
os
t. 
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

re
vi
ew

ed
 w
he
n 
po
st
ho
ld
er
 

is
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
. 

 

44



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 4
 

S
ta
ff 
sh
ou
ld
 r
ec
ei
ve
 t
he
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 t
ra
in
in
g 
to
 b
eh
av
e 
in
 a
 b
us
in
es
s-
lik
e/
co
m
m
er
ci
al
 m

an
ne
r 
in
 d
ev
el
op

in
g 
an
d 

de
liv
er
in
g 
 c
ou
nc
il 
se
rv
ic
es
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
 t
h
at

 t
ra

in
in

g
 is

 a
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

t;
 h

o
w

ev
er

 t
h
is

 is
 a

 m
at

te
r 
fo

r 
th

e 
H

ea
d
 o

f 
p
ai

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 t
o
 c

o
n
si

d
er

.  
A

 m
o
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

an
t 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

t 
is

 t
o
 c

h
an

g
e 

th
e 

cu
lt
u
re

 o
f 
th

e 
o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

so
 

th
at

 it
 o

p
er

at
es

 in
 a

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

m
er

ci
al

 m
an

n
er

. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 

m
an
ag
er
s 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
H
oo
pl
e 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 fu

nc
tio
n.
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

A
ll 
se
rv
ic
e 
m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 
ab
ov
e 
to
 a
tte

nd
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 e
ve
nt
s.
 

C
o
m
m
en
ce
d
 -
 A
 th
re
e 

po
in
t t
ra
in
in
g 
an
d 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 

cu
rr
en
tly
 b
ei
ng

 d
ev
el
op
ed
 

an
d 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
es
en
te
d 
to
 

th
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 A
ca
de
m
y 

to
 in
cl
ud
e:
 

 (i)
 
 C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

A
w
ar
en
es
s 
– 
co
un
ci
l 

w
id
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
al
l 

st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 a
cr
os
s 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l –
 w
ou
ld
 

co
ns
id
er
 th
is
 a
s 
pa
rt
 

of
 th
e 
in
du
ct
io
n 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 

(ii
) 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 T
ra
in
in
g 

– 
ad
va
nc
e 

co
m
m
er
ci
al
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

fo
r 
al
l c
ou
nc
il 
of
fic
er
s 

th
at
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 

co
m
m
er
ci
al
 o
r 

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t a
ct
iv
iti
es
 

as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
ir 
ro
le
 

(ii
i) 

Lo
ca
l S

up
pl
ie
rs
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 –
 a
 s
er
ie
s 
of
 

45



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

“H
ow

 to
 T
en
de
r”
 

w
or
ks
ho
ps
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 

lo
ca
l s
up
pl
ie
rs
 a
nd
 

in
cr
ea
se
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 

to
 w
in
 b
us
in
es
s.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 5
 

T
he
 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 
fin
an
ce
 
m
ec
ha
ni
sm

s 
an
d 

to
ol
s 

sh
ou
ld
 
be
 
m
ad
e 

av
ai
la
bl
e 

to
 
en
ab
le
 
se
rv
ic
e 

co
st
s 

an
d 

m
an
ag
em

en
t o

ve
rh
ea
ds
 to
 b
e 
ap
po
rt
io
ne
d 
an
d 
m
an
ag

ed
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
co
st
 r
ec
ov
er
y 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
.  

T
h
e 

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 h

av
in

g
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t
h
at

 
d
el

iv
er

s 
g
re

at
er

 c
la

ri
ty

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
p
ro

vi
si

o
n
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f A

gr
es
so
 

sy
st
em

 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 g
re
at
er
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t i
nf
or
m
at
io
n.
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

F
in
an
ce
 (
C
ou
nc
il)
 a
nd
 

H
ea
d 
of
 F
in
an
ce
 

(H
oo
pl
e)
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
12
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 b
e 
co
st
ed
 to
 e
na
bl
e 
in
cl
us
io
n 

of
 o
ve
rh
ea
d 
co
st
s.
 

P
ar
ti
al
- 
 U
ni
t 4
 (
A
gr
es
so
) 

ar
e 
lo
ok
in
g 
at
 th
e 
co
st
 o
f 

de
ve
lo
pi
ng

 th
is
 o
pt
io
n.
 

B
es
t p
ra
ct
ic
e 
to
 b
e 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
to
 e
na
bl
e 

tr
an
sf
er
 o
f k
no
w
le
dg

e.
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

F
in
an
ce
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t w

ith
 o
th
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 to
 

ob
ta
in
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
th
at
 le
ad
s 
to
 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t. 

P
ar
ti
al
- 
 E
ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 

ne
ig
hb
ou
rin
g 
co
un
ci
ls
 to
 

sh
ar
e 
pr
ac
tic
e 

P
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
of
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

on
 c
os
ts
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t a
ct
io
n.
 

H
ea
d 
of
 F
in
an
ce
 

(H
oo
pl
e)
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
13
 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
na
nc
ia
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
th
at
 

su
pp
or
ts
 d
ec
is
io
n 
m
ak
in
g.
  T

hi
s 
w
ill
 

re
qu

ire
 a
 s
hi
ft 
to
w
ar
ds
 m
an
ag

em
en
t 

ac
co
un
tin
g 
ra
th
er
 th
an
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

ac
co
un
tin
g.
 

P
ar
ti
al
 -
 T
hi
s 
ha
s 

co
m
m
en
ce
d 
th
ro
ug
h 

be
nc
hm

ar
ki
ng
 w
or
k 

ar
ou
nd
 c
os
ts
 fr
om

 L
G
 

F
ut
ur
es
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 6
 

B
en
ch
m
ar
ki
ng
 
sh
ou
ld
 
be
 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 
to
 
le
ar
n 

fr
om

 
co
m
m
er
ci
al
 
m
ar
ke
ts
 
ex
hi
bi
tin
g 

fu
nc
tio
na
l 
or
 
ca
pa
bi
lit
y 

si
m
ila
rit
ie
s 
to
 c
ou
nc
il 
se
rv
ic
es
. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

p
la

ys
 a

n
 im

p
o
rt

an
t 
p
ar

t 
in

fo
rm

in
g
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

h
o
w

 t
h
ei

r 
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
o
m

p
ar

es
 w

it
h
 

o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri
ti
es

.  
T
h
e 

ch
al

le
n
g
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

to
 f
in

d
 c

o
m

p
ar

ab
le

 e
xt

er
n
al

 n
o
n
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 
b
o
d
ie

s 
fo

r 
b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g
. 

46



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

In
ve
st
ig
at
e 
ot
he
r 
po
te
nt
ia
l 

be
nc
hm

ar
ki
ng
 

or
ga

ni
sa
tio
ns
. 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

A
 s
et
 o
f n

on
-lo
ca
l g
ov
er
nm

en
t 

or
ga

ni
sa
tio
ns
 th
at
 c
an
 b
e 
be
nc
hm

ar
ke
d 

ag
ai
ns
t. 

T
hi
s 
ha
s 
pr
ov
ed
 

ch
al
le
ng

in
g 
an
d 
 

R
ev
ie
w
 e
xi
st
in
g 

be
nc
hm

ar
ki
ng
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

to
 s
ee
k 
ev
id
en
ce
 o
f 

co
m
pa
ra
bi
lit
y 

 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

C
le
ar
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 

po
si
tio
n 
ar
ou
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 

w
or
ke
d 
w
ith
 L
G
 F
ut
ur
e 
st
o 

pr
od
uc
e 
co
m
pa
ris
on
 o
f 

un
it 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
. 

  R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 7
 

E
na
bl
in
g 
sy
st
em

s 
an
d 
to
ol
s 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 to
 m
in
im
is
e 
th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
an
d 
ru
nn
in
g 
co
st
s 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 

ch
ar
ge

s 
an
d 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ab
ou
t s
er
vi
ce
 u
se
 a
nd
 u
se
r 
be
ha
vi
ou
r 
is
 c
ap
tu
re
d 
to
 in
fo
rm

 fu
tu
re
 

pl
an
ni
ng

 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y.
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
is

 li
n
ks

 t
o
 s

u
b
si

d
y 

o
f 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

su
es

.  
T
h
e 

d
ig

it
al

 c
h
an

n
el

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 a
ss

is
t 
m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

co
lle

ct
in

g
 c

h
ar

g
es

. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

E
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 a
s 
m
an
y 
as
 

po
ss
ib
le
 o
f c
ha
rg
es
 c
an
 b
e 

pa
id
 fo

r 
vi
a 
di
gi
ta
l c
ha
nn
el
s.
 

D
ig
ita
l C

ha
nn
el
s 
P
ro
je
ct
 

M
an
ag

er
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
vo
lu
m
es
 o
f c
ha
rg
es
 p
ay
ab
le
 

vi
a 
in
te
rn
et
. 

P
ar
ti
al
- 
C
ou
nc
il 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

ha
s 
in
te
rn
et
 p
ay
m
en
t 

pr
ov
is
io
n.
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f c
ha
rg
in
g 
pr
oc
es
s 

vi
a 
ro
ot
 a
nd
 b
ra
nc
h 

re
vi
ew

s.
 

Le
ad
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 fo
r 
ro
ot
 a
nd
 

br
an
ch
 r
ev
ie
w
s 

T
o 
be
 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 

A
ss
es
sm

en
t c
om

pl
et
ed
 o
f c
os
t o
f 

ch
ar
gi
ng
 fo
r 
se
rv
ic
es
. 

C
o
m
m
en
ce
d
 -
 T
hi
s 
fo
rm

s 
a 
ke
y 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 R
oo
t a

nd
 

B
ra
nc
h 
pr
oc
es
s 
th
at
 

co
ve
rs
 a
ll 
C
ou
nc
il 

se
rv
ic
es
. A

s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 

‘d
is
co
ve
ry
’ p
ha
se
 th

is
 is
 

as
se
ss
ed
 

A
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f c
us
to
m
er
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
an
d 
pr
op
os
al
s 
fo
r 

D
ig
ita
l C

ha
nn
el
s 
P
ro
je
ct
 

M
an
ag

er
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
12
 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
on
 c
us
to
m
er
 s
eg
m
en
ta
tio
n 

an
d 
im
pa
ct
 o
f c
ha
rg
es
 o
n 
ac
tiv
ity
. 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 –
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o-

on
e 
in
 p
os
t. 
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

re
vi
ew

ed
 w
he
n 
po
st
ho
ld
er
 

47



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
n 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 

A
pp
en

di
x 
A
 

fu
rt
he
r 
da
ta
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n.
 

is
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 8
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
cl
as
si
fie
d 
to
 d
is
tin
gu

is
h 
be
tw
ee
n 
th
os
e 
th
at
 a
re
 m

an
da
to
ry
, 
di
sc
re
tio
na
ry
 a
nd
 c
om

m
er
ci
al
 t
o 

ai
d 
tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 a
nd
 c
la
rit
y 
fo
r 
st
af
f, 
co
un
ci
llo
rs
 a
nd
 th

e 
pu
bl
ic
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
ar

t 
o
f 
th

e 
20

13
/1

4 
b
u
d
g
et

 
p
ro

ce
ss

.  
T
h
is

 w
ill

 a
id

 t
ra

n
sp

ar
en

cy
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 d

eb
at

e 
ab

o
u
t 
w

h
et

h
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

su
b
si

d
is

ed
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S

uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

P
ro
vi
de
 a
na
ly
si
s 
of
 a
ll 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
ga

in
st
 

cl
as
si
fic
at
io
ns
. 

 

D
ire
ct
or
s 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

A
 c
om

pr
eh
en
si
ve
 s
ch
ed
ul
e 
of
 a
ll 
se
rv
ic
es
 

cl
as
si
fie
d.
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 –
 c
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 

w
or
ke
d 
w
ith
 L
G
 F
ut
ur
es
 

w
ho
 h
av
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t t
hi
s 

w
or
k 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
R
oo
t a

nd
 

B
ra
nc
h 
fr
am

ew
or
k.
 S
en
io
r 

m
an
ag
er
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

br
ie
fe
d 
on
 o
ut
co
m
e.
 

 

48



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Wayne Welsby, Head of Commercial Services  
on Tel: (01432) 261529 

 

 
 

 

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 10 DECEMBER 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & 
FINISH GROUP REPORT ON COUNCIL PROCUREMENT 
POLICY AND LOCAL BUSINESS AND LOCAL 
EMPLOYMENT 

REPORT BY:  WAYNE WELSBY, HEAD OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide  

4. Purpose 

To note the updated task and finish report on council procurement policy and local business and local 
employment attached as appendix A and monitor progress against the Executive Action Plan. 
 
5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) the report be noted. 

6. Key Points Summary 

• The progress delivering the recommendations is covered in the Appendix 

• Good progress has been made in key areas but the inability to recruit to category manager 
posts has hampered delivery of some objectives 

• A review of the Proactis system has meant that a more accessible means of advertising 
tendering opportunities is being explored 

AGENDA ITEM 10

49



 
 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no Alternative Options.  

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The executive response was brought to Overview & Scrutiny and approved. 

8.2 It was agreed that six months on an updated position would be brought back to the Committee 
for noting. 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 At the meeting of Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 19 March 2012 the Committee agreed 
the findings and recommendations to the Executive arising from the review of council 
procurement policy and local business and local employment (appendix A). 

9.2 In developing its response the Executive took into consideration the current financial climate 
and future efficiency savings that face local government. It also took into account the impact 
that the Council has on the local economy through its procurement practices. 

9.3 When Cabinet requested the review there was a need to understand how the rationale for 
setting fees and charges linked to service provision and how this fitted within the overall 
approach to budget policy. The move towards greater integration of fees and charges into the 
overall service delivery and budget process was indicated by Cabinet when it agreed draft 
charging and trading principles back in July. These principles required: 

 

10. Key Considerations  
 

10.1 The recommendations of the task and finish group were that: 

a. That the council’s partners should, if possible, use the council’s Proactis system to 
advertise procurement opportunities and if this is not possible give a commitment to 
share information about local suppliers. 

b. That parish councils might find it helpful to draw on the database of suppliers held on 
the Proactis system and that arrangements to share data with them should continue to 
be explored. 

c. That the role of Contract Monitoring Officers (CMO) set out in the Constitution requires 
review and clarification to ensure that there is a clear understanding of the role the 
CMO is expected to fulfil across directorates 

d. That lists showing the contracts let and who is responsible for monitoring them should 
be maintained by each directorate and held in a central location available to the 
relevant director for inspection, with a formal review of the lists say every six months. 

e. That six monthly sample audits be undertaken, perhaps as part of the audit 
programme, to provide an independent, external assessment of the council’s major 
contracts to verify whether or not the council’s assessment of the value for money and 
performance of these contracts is correct, with a report subsequently submitted to the 
relevant Cabinet Member and the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   

50



 
 

f. That a communication plan be developed to raise awareness of the Proactis system to 
try to ensure that all businesses who wish to register on the system are registered.  

g.  That the council consider how to raise business awareness and provide training and 
support to businesses to help them to equip themselves with the necessary skills to 
achieve the necessary accreditations that the council’s contracts generally require.  

h. That a plan be produced setting out how help will be provided to develop local 
capability and capacity to win contracts including encouraging the formation of local 
consortia or other means 

i. That Contract Standing Orders should be amended and it should be mandatory that all 
procurement must be undertaken via the Proactis system unless a waiver not to do so 
is approved by the Commercial Services. 

j. That compliance with the mandatory requirement that all procurement above a 
threshold of £10,000 must be undertaken via the Proactis system should be monitored 
and reviewed every quarter for one year and six monthly thereafter. 

k. That to support the embedding of the Proactis system across the organisation annual 
presentations be made to each Directorate Management Team by Commercial 
Services and two awareness sessions arranged per year for officers directly involved in 
the use of Proactis. 

l. That the council should be alert to any changes to EU procurement rules and 
benchmark its interpretation of these rules with peer authorities to ensure that any 
adverse effect on local firms is minimised 

m. That the council should review the accreditations required in its contracts for the supply 
of certain services to ensure that they are proportionate and not unnecessarily onerous 

n. That the council consider how to raise business awareness and provide training and 
support to businesses to help them to equip themselves with the necessary skills to 
achieve the necessary accreditations that the council’s contracts generally require 

o. That a plan be produced setting out how help will be provided to develop local 
capability and capacity to win contracts including encouraging the formation of local 
consortia or other means 

p. That arrangements are put in place to measure the amount of work let locally that is 
sub-contracted locally to ensure a true picture of local spend is captured 

q. That if the current model under the Amey Contract is maintained the council should 
have two councillors on the Amey Wye Valley Board with full voting rights 

r. The Council reviews the benefits of joint venture companies to see if they are distorting 
the market and consequently did not represent value for money 

s. The potential for the Council’s buying power to drive down costs be explored 

 

10.2 The full implementation of the recommendations has been hampered by the inability to recruit 
to the new Commercial Services team. The appointment of a Head of Commercial Services 
has strengthened the capability of the council but lack of staff resources has delayed the 
implementation of some of the recommendations. 

10.3 A review of the Proactis system is underway to ensure that a user friendly system is available 
better able to support involvement of local suppliers is in place.     

10.4 The updated position is contained at Appendix A.   

51



 
 

11. Equality and Human Rights 

11.1 Any decision to review council procurement policy charges will be subject to an Equality 
Impact Assessment.  It is important that the council has due regard to the relevant part of the 
general duty under legislation covering the legislation equalities.  

12. Financial Implications 

12.1 None arise as a direct response to the report. 

13. Legal Implications 

13.1 There are no legal implications 
 

14. Risk Management 

14.1 The proposed actions must be considered alongside progress within other relevant service 
areas to ensure a strategic and cohesive approach to future opportunities with regards to 
income and charging. 

15. Consultees 

15.1 None identified but future changes to some charges will require consultation  
 

16. Appendices 

16.1 Executive Response - Updated 

16.2 Task & Finish Group Report on Procurement 

17. Background Papers 

• None 

52



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
 

T
ha
t 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
sh
ou
ld
, 
if 
po
ss
ib
le
, 
us
e 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 t
o 
ad
ve
rt
is
e 
pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 

op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 a
nd
 if
 th
is
 is
 n
ot
 p
os
si
bl
e 
gi
ve
 a
 c
om
m
itm
en
t t
o 
sh
ar
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
ab
ou
t l
oc
al
 s
up
pl
ie
rs
. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
P
ro
vi
d
in
g
 P
ro
ac
ti
s 
ac
ce
ss
 t
o
 t
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l’s
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
p
ro
vi
d
es
 c
le
ar
 

b
en
ef
it
s 
fo
r 
lo
ca
l s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 t
o
 a
cc
es
s 
a 
‘o
n
e 
st
o
p
 s
h
o
p
’ o
f 
co
u
n
ci
l a
n
d
 p
ar
tn
er
’s
 t
en
d
er
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s;
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci
l, 
h
o
w
ev
er
, w
ill
 n
ee
d
 t
o
 r
ev
ie
w
 t
h
e 
fu
n
ct
io
n
al
it
y 
an
d
 s
ec
u
ri
ty
 o
f 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 
to
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
at
 in
 

p
ro
vi
d
in
g
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 o
th
er
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
co
m
p
ro
m
is
e 
 c
o
n
fi
d
en
ti
al
it
y 
o
f 
te
n
d
er
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 b
ei
n
g
 

m
an
ag
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 a
ny
 is
su
es
 a
nd
 

ris
ks
 in
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 P
ro
ac
tis
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 

m
iti
ga
te
 w
he
re
 p
os
si
bl
e.
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

A
ug
us
t 1
2 

F
ul
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f p
ro
vi
di
ng
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
 is
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
fu
ll 

is
su
es
 a
nd
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
. 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 -
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

re
m
ai
ns
 c
om
m
itt
ed
 to
 th
is
 

ob
je
ct
iv
e 
bu
t i
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

re
vi
ew
in
g 
ot
he
r 
po
te
nt
ia
l 

so
lu
tio
ns
 th
at
 m
ay
 p
ro
vi
de
 

gr
ea
te
r 
ea
se
 o
f u
se
 fo
r 

bo
th
 in
te
rn
al
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 

ex
te
rn
al
 u
se
rs
. T
hi
s 

in
cl
ud
es
 th
e 
op
tio
n 
of
 

co
lla
bo
ra
tin
g 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 b
y 
jo
in
in
g 
th
e 

S
ou
th
 W
es
t r
eg
io
na
l 

po
rt
al
. T
hi
s 
is
 d
ec
is
io
n 
is
 

on
 h
ol
d 
as
 S
W
 a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 

ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 c
on
si
de
rin
g 

th
ei
r 
fu
tu
re
 s
ol
ut
io
n 
an
d 

w
ill
 d
ec
id
e 
in
 J
an
 1
3 
if 
to
 

re
m
ai
n 
w
ith
 th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

po
rt
al
 o
r 
re
te
nd
er
. 

S
ub
je
ct
 to
 a
bo
ve
 –
 id
en
tif
y 

cl
ea
r 
co
st
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 a
nd
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
to
 

en
ab
le
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 fu
lly
 

ut
ili
se
 P
ro
ac
tis
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
H
oo
pl
e 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 

A
ug
us
t 1
2 

A
 c
le
ar
 c
os
t s
tr
uc
tu
re
 a
nd
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 

S
ee
 a
bo
ve
 

If 
ac
ce
ss
 is
 n
ot
 p
os
si
bl
e 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

A
ug
us
t 1
2 

In
fo
rm
at
io
n 
is
 fr
ee
ly
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
an
d 
sh
ar
ed
 
S
ee
 a
bo
ve
 

53



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

op
tio
ns
 e
xp
lo
re
d 
to
 s
ha
re
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
ab
ou
t l
oc
al
 

su
pp
lie
rs
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 2
 

T
ha
t 
pa
ris
h 
co
un
ci
ls
 m
ig
ht
 f
in
d 
it 
he
lp
fu
l t
o 
dr
aw
 o
n 
th
e 
da
ta
ba
se
 o
f 
su
pp
lie
rs
 h
el
d 
on
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 a
nd
 

th
at
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 to
 s
ha
re
 d
at
a 
w
ith
 th
em
 s
ho
ul
d 
co
nt
in
ue
 to
 b
e 
ex
pl
or
ed
. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 d
at
ab
as
e 
o
f 
su
p
p
lie
rs
 is
 a
 li
st
 o
f 
o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
s 
th
at
 

h
av
e 
ei
th
er
 e
xp
re
ss
ed
 a
n
 in
te
re
st
 t
o
 b
id
 f
o
r 
co
u
n
ci
l b
u
si
n
es
s 
o
r 
m
ay
 b
e 
a 
cu
rr
en
t 
su
p
p
lie
r.
 T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l 

w
ill
 e
st
ab
lis
h
 a
rr
an
g
em
en
ts
 t
o
 s
h
ar
e 
d
at
a;
 h
o
w
ev
er
 it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e 
n
o
te
d
 t
h
at
 w
h
ils
t 
th
e 
co
u
n
ci
l c
an
 s
h
ar
e 

th
is
 d
at
a 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e 
d
o
n
e 
so
 o
n
 t
h
e 
cl
ea
r 
u
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g
 t
h
at
 it
 is
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
ap
p
ro
va
l o
r 
en
d
o
rs
em
en
t 
o
f 

an
y 
sp
ec
if
ic
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
 b
y 
th
e 
au
th
o
ri
ty
  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
ex
pl
or
e 
w
ay
s 
in
 w
hi
ch
 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 d
at
ab
as
e 
of
 

su
pp
lie
rs
 o
n 
P
ro
ac
tis
 c
ou
ld
 

be
 s
ha
re
d 
w
ith
 p
ar
is
h 

co
un
ci
ls
.  

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

P
ar
is
h 
Li
ai
so
n 
an
d 
R
ur
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
O
ffi
ce
r 

S
ep
t 1
2 

D
at
ab
as
e 
of
 s
up
pl
ie
rs
 is
 fu
lly
 a
cc
es
si
bl
e 

by
 p
ar
tn
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 -
 A
 li
st
in
g 
of
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 li
st
ed
 o
n 
th
e 

P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 is
 is
su
ed
 

to
 th
e 
P
ar
is
h 
Li
ai
so
n 
an
d 

R
ur
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
O
ffi
ce
r 
fo
r 

di
st
rib
ut
io
n 
on
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

ba
si
s.
  

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 3
 

T
ha
t t
he
 r
ol
e 
of
 C
on
tr
ac
t M
on
ito
rin
g 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 (
C
M
O
) 
se
t o
ut
 in
 th
e 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n 
re
qu
ire
s 
re
vi
ew
 a
nd
 c
la
rif
ic
at
io
n 
to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 c
le
ar
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f t
he
 r
ol
e 
th
e 
C
M
O
 is
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 fu
lfi
l a
cr
os
s 
di
re
ct
or
at
es
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w
ill
 r
ev
ie
w
 t
h
e 
ro
le
 o
f 
C
M
O
 a
n
d
 e
n
su
re
 c
la
ri
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 

ro
le
 a
n
d
 r
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 is
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
ed
 t
o
 a
ll 
st
ak
eh
o
ld
er
s.
  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

R
ev
ie
w
 C
M
O
 r
ol
e 
an
d 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
e 
to
 a
ll 

st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
. 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

A
ug
us
t 

20
12
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f r
ol
e 
is
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
an
d 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
to
 a
ll 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
.  

O
n
 H
o
ld
, C
M
O
 r
ev
ie
w
 is
 

on
 h
ol
d 
du
e 
to
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 to
 

im
pl
em
en
t a
 n
ew
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

m
an
ag
em
en
t t
oo
lk
it 

54



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l. 
T
hi
s 

w
ill
 h
av
e 
a 
di
re
ct
 im
pa
ct
 

on
 th
e 
ro
le
 o
f t
he
 C
M
O
 

un
de
r 
th
e 
co
ns
tit
ut
io
n 
an
d 

an
y 
ch
an
ge
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
ad
e 

vi
a 
th
e 
A
ud
it 
an
d 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
. 

A
 T
ra
in
in
g 
ev
en
t i
s 

sc
he
du
le
d 
fo
r 
29

th
 J
an
 1
3.
  

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 4
 

T
ha
t 
lis
ts
 s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
le
t 
an
d 
w
ho
 i
s 
re
sp
on
si
bl
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ito
rin
g 
th
em
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
by
 e
ac
h 

di
re
ct
or
at
e 
an
d 
he
ld
 in
 a
 c
en
tr
al
 lo
ca
tio
n 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
to
 t
he
 r
el
ev
an
t 
di
re
ct
or
 f
or
 in
sp
ec
tio
n,
 w
ith
 a
 f
or
m
al
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 

th
e 
lis
ts
 s
ay
 e
ve
ry
 s
ix
 m
on
th
s.
  

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l’s
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
R
eg
is
te
r 
is
 c
u
rr
en
tl
y 
u
p
d
at
ed
 a
n
n
u
al
ly
 a
n
d
 

av
ai
la
b
le
 f
o
r 
re
vi
ew
/in
sp
ec
ti
o
n
 a
t 
an
y 
ti
m
e 
vi
a 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w
eb
si
te
.  
It
 is
 in
te
n
d
ed
 t
h
at
 C
o
m
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 H
o
o
p
le
 P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 w
ill
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
m
o
n
th
ly
 u
p
d
at
es
 t
o
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

O
ff
ic
er
s 
to
 in
cr
ea
se
 v
is
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
co
n
tr
ac
ts
 e
n
d
in
g
 in
 t
h
e 
n
ex
t 
9m
o
n
th
s 
o
r 
le
ss
 t
o
 im
p
ro
ve
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
. I
t 
is
 a
n
ti
ci
p
at
ed
 t
h
at
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
a 
m
o
re
 d
yn
am
ic
 p
ro
ce
ss
 t
h
an
 a
 6
 m
o
n
th
ly
 

re
vi
ew
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
is
su
e 
m
on
th
ly
 u
pd
at
es
 

of
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 r
eg
is
te
rs
 to
 th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 C
M
O
 o
n 
a 

m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 

gr
ea
te
r 
vi
si
bi
lit
y 
of
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 

an
d 
su
pp
or
t g
re
at
er
  

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

A
ug
us
t 

20
12
 

C
on
tr
ac
ts
 r
eg
is
te
rs
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
m
on
th
ly
. 

Im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
 m
on
th
ly
 

up
da
te
s 
ar
e 
se
nt
 to
 

co
nt
ra
ct
 le
ad
s.
 T
hi
s 
ha
s 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ly
 im
pr
ov
ed
 to
 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

pi
pe
lin
e 
vi
si
bi
lit
y 
an
d 

pl
an
ni
ng
   

  

55



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 5
 

T
ha
t 
si
x 
m
on
th
ly
 
sa
m
pl
e 
au
di
ts
 
be
 
un
de
rt
ak
en
, 
pe
rh
ap
s 
as
 
pa
rt
 
of
 
th
e 
au
di
t 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e,
 
to
 
pr
ov
id
e 
an
 

in
de
pe
nd
en
t, 
ex
te
rn
al
 
as
se
ss
m
en
t 
of
 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 
m
aj
or
 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
to
 
ve
rif
y 
w
he
th
er
 
or
 
no
t 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t 
of
 t
he
 v
al
ue
 f
or
 m
on
ey
 a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 o
f 
th
es
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
is
 c
or
re
ct
, 
w
ith
 a
 r
ep
or
t 
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
ly
 

su
bm
itt
ed
 to
 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 
an
d 
th
e 
C
ha
irm
an
 o
f t
he
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om
m
itt
ee
.  
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
. T
h
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm
 p
ar
t 
o
f 
au
d
it
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
p
la
n
n
in
g
.  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 a
nn
ua
l a
ud
it 
pl
an
 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
su
ffi
ci
en
t 

co
ve
ra
ge
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t a
ud
its
 

C
hi
ef
 O
ffi
ce
r:
 F
in
an
ce
 &
 

C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

Ju
ly
 2
01
2 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 th
e 
ex
is
tin
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
an
d 

en
su
re
 V
al
ue
 fo
r 
M
on
ey
 is
su
es
 a
re
 

co
ve
re
d.
 

Im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
 th
e 

an
nu
al
 a
ud
it 
pl
an
 w
as
 

re
vi
ew
ed
 a
nd
 a
gr
ee
d 
by
 

th
e 
A
ud
it 
an
d 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om
m
itt
ee
. A
m
ey
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

w
as
 a
ud
ite
d 

T
o 
en
su
re
 th
e 
A
ud
it 
&
 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 is
 

in
fo
rm
ed
 o
f p
ro
gr
es
s 

 

C
hi
ef
 O
ffi
ce
r;
 F
in
an
ce
 &
 

C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

H
ea
d 
of
 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

T
o 
br
ie
f t
he
 c
om
m
itt
ee
 o
n 
sc
op
e 
of
 

re
le
va
nt
 a
ud
its
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
de
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 in
 

pr
og
re
ss
 r
ep
or
tin
g.
 

Im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
P
ro
gr
es
s 

re
po
rt
s 
in
 p
la
ce
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
s.
 6
, 

12
 a
n
d
 1
3 

(6
) 
 T
ha
t 
a 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
pl
an
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 t
o 
tr
y 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 w
ho
 w
is
h 
to
 r
eg
is
te
r 
on
 th
e 
sy
st
em
 a
re
 r
eg
is
te
re
d.
   

(1
2)
  
T
ha
t t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
co
ns
id
er
 h
ow
 t
o 
ra
is
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 s
up
po
rt
 t
o 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

to
 h
el
p 
th
em
 t
o 
eq
ui
p 
th
em
se
lv
es
 w
ith
 t
he
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 s
ki
lls
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
ns
 t
ha
t 
th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 g
en
er
al
ly
 r
eq
ui
re
 

(1
3)
  T
ha
t a
 p
la
n 
be
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
se
tti
ng
 o
ut
 h
ow
 h
el
p 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 lo
ca
l c
ap
ab
ili
ty
 a
nd
 c
ap
ac
ity
 to
 w
in
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
th
e 
fo
rm
at
io
n 
of
 lo
ca
l c
on
so
rt
ia
 o
r 
ot
he
r 
m
ea
ns
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

A
ls
o
 c
o
ve
rs
 1
2 
&
 1
3 
- 
T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w
ill
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
lo
ca
l C
h
am
b
er
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
er
ce
 a
n
d
 o
th
er
 s
ec
to
rs
 t
o
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
o
f 
tr
ai
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 e
ve
n
ts
 t
o
 1
) 

in
cr
ea
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s,
 2
) 
th
e 
u
se
 o
f 
th
e 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 
sy
st
em
, 3
) 
‘h
o
w
 t
o
 t
en
d
er
’ 

w
o
rk
sh
o
p
s 
an
d
 4
) 
su
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
co
n
so
rt
ia
 b
o
d
ie
s 
to
 u
p
-s
ki
ll 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 s
o
 t
h
ey
 a
re
 

b
et
te
r 
in
fo
rm
ed
 t
o
 t
ry
 a
n
d
 w
in
 c
o
u
n
ci
l b
u
si
n
es
s.
  

56



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
w
ith
 th
e 
C
ha
m
be
r 

of
 C
om
m
er
ce
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 

of
 c
om
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
ev
en
ts
.  

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ta
rt
in
g 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
is
 a
gr
ee
d 
an
d 
in
 p
la
ce
 

6 
– 
O
n
 h
o
ld
 -
 d
ue
 to
 p
os
s 

ch
an
ge
 o
f P
ro
ac
tis
 (
se
e 

R
ec
 1
).
 

12
 &
 1
3 
- 
E
ng
ag
em
en
t 

ha
s 
al
re
ad
y 
st
ar
te
d 
w
ith
 

th
e 
C
ha
m
be
r 
w
ith
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 fo
cu
s 
on
 th
e 

P
ub
lic
 R
ea
lm
 te
nd
er
 

pr
oj
ec
t. 
A
 w
id
er
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t e
ve
nt
s 
an
d 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 is
 n
ow
 b
ei
ng
 

de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 b
e 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 in
 2
01
3.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 7
 

T
ha
t 
C
on
tr
ac
t 
S
ta
nd
in
g 
O
rd
er
s 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
am
en
de
d 
an
d 
it 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
m
an
da
to
ry
 t
ha
t 
al
l 
pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 
m
us
t 
be
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 v
ia
 th
e 
P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 u
nl
es
s 
a 
w
ai
ve
r 
no
t t
o 
do
 s
o 
is
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
by
 th
e 
C
om
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s.
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l a
g
re
es
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
p
ri
n
ci
p
le
 o
f 
m
an
d
at
o
ry
 u
se
 o
f 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 

b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 n
ee
d
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 a
 n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
fa
ct
o
rs
: 

• 
u
se
 o
f 
ex
is
ti
n
g
 f
ra
m
ew
o
rk
s 
– 
it
 is
 r
ec
o
g
n
is
ed
 t
h
at
 in
 s
o
m
e 
ca
se
s 
th
e 
u
se
 o
f 
es
ta
b
lis
h
ed
 f
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 

p
ro
vi
d
es
 b
et
te
r 
va
lu
e 
so
lu
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l a
n
d
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 w
o
u
ld
 n
eg
at
e 
th
e 
n
ee
d
 t
o
 a
d
ve
rt
is
e.
 

• 
P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
al
it
y 
- 
to
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
ap
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
at
e 
to
 t
h
e 
le
ve
l o
f 
sp
en
d
 / 

co
m
p
le
xi
ty
 o
f 
th
e 
g
iv
e 
p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t,
 it
 is
 r
ec
o
m
m
en
d
ed
 t
h
at
 u
se
 o
f 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 
is
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 t
en
d
er
s 
w
it
h
 

a 
va
lu
e 
ab
o
ve
 £
10
,0
00
. 

• 
th
at
 t
h
e 
d
em
an
d
s 
ca
n
 b
y 
m
an
ag
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
H
o
o
p
le
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
te
am
 a
n
d
/o
r 
a 
tr
ai
n
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 

o
th
er
 u
se
rs
 is
 im
p
le
m
en
te
d
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 th
e 
le
ve
l o
f 

re
so
ur
ce
s 
w
ith
in
 H
oo
pl
e 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

R
ev
ie
w
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
an
d 
ac
tio
ns
 a
gr
ee
d 

P
ar
tl
y 
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 -
 

P
rio
rit
y 
ha
s 
be
en
 g
iv
en
 to
 

57



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t t
o 
su
pp
or
t t
hi
s 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 a
bo
ve
 £
50
k 

in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 c
ur
re
nt
 C
S
O
 

de
m
an
ds
.  
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 

ot
he
r 
us
er
s 
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

A
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 a
nd
 

im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 –
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 

de
ci
si
on
s 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 in
 1
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 8
 

T
ha
t 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 t
he
 m
an
da
to
ry
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
t 
th
at
 a
ll 
pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 
ab
ov
e 
a 
th
re
sh
ol
d 
of
 £
10
,0
00
 m
us
t 
be
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 v
ia
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 m
on
ito
re
d 
an
d 
re
vi
ew
ed
 e
ve
ry
 q
ua
rt
er
 f
or
 o
ne
 y
ea
r 
an
d 
si
x 

m
on
th
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r.
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
S
u
b
je
ct
 t
o
 t
h
e 
fa
ct
o
rs
 in
 #
7 
a 
ro
b
u
st
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
eg
im
e 
is
 

im
p
le
m
en
te
d
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

S
ub
je
ct
 to
 th
e 
fa
ct
or
s 
in
 #
7 

a 
ro
bu
st
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
gi
m
e 

is
 im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

D
ec
 1
2 

M
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 
of
 u
se
 o
f 

P
ro
ac
tis
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
.  

S
ee
 N
o 
7.
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

vi
si
bi
lit
y 
an
d 
pl
an
ni
ng
 is
 

su
pp
or
tin
g 
th
is
 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e.
 S
up
po
rt
ed
 b
y 

A
ud
it 
P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 9
 

T
ha
t 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 t
he
 e
m
be
dd
in
g 
of
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
an
nu
al
 p
re
se
nt
at
io
ns
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
to
 

ea
ch
 D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
M
an
ag
em
en
t 
T
ea
m
 b
y 
C
om
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
tw
o 
aw
ar
en
es
s 
se
ss
io
ns
 a
rr
an
ge
d 
pe
r 
ye
ar
 

fo
r 
of
fic
er
s 
di
re
ct
ly
 in
vo
lv
ed
 in
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 P
ro
ac
tis
. 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l a
g
re
es
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
p
ro
p
o
sa
l a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 n
ee
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm
 p
ar
t 
o
f 

th
e 
ac
ti
o
n
s 
u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 in
 r
es
p
o
n
se
 t
o
 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 8
.  
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

 
H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

D
ec
 1
2 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 e
ve
nt
s 
ar
e 
ag
re
e 
an
d 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 –
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 

58



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

Im
pl
em
en
t a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

an
nu
al
 p
re
se
nt
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
se
ss
io
ns
. 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

be
in
g 
de
liv
er
ed
. 

de
ci
si
on
s 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 in
 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
1.
 A
 

m
or
e 
us
er
 fr
ie
nd
ly
 s
ol
ut
io
n 

m
ay
 r
ed
uc
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 n
ee
ds
 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l. 
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
0 

T
ha
t 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
al
er
t 
to
 a
ny
 c
ha
ng
es
 t
o 
E
U
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
ru
le
s 
an
d 
be
nc
hm
ar
k 
its
 i
nt
er
pr
et
at
io
n 
of
 

th
es
e 
ru
le
s 
w
ith
 p
ee
r 
au
th
or
iti
es
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ny
 a
dv
er
se
 e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
lo
ca
l f
irm
s 
is
 m
in
im
is
ed
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 H
ea
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
(H
o
C
S
) 
is
 a
 m
em
b
er
 o
f 

th
e 
N
at
io
n
al
 A
d
vi
so
ry
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
L
o
ca
l G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
(s
u
p
p
o
rt
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
L
G
A
) 
w
h
ic
h
 a
s 
a 
co
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

fo
ru
m
 f
o
r 
n
ew
 E
U
 P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
R
u
le
s 
an
d
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 w
el
l p
la
ce
d
 t
o
 h
av
e 
ea
rl
y 
si
g
h
t 
o
f 
ch
an
g
es
 t
o
 

p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m
in
im
is
e 
an
y 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 im
p
ac
t.
 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, t
h
e 
H
o
C
S
 is
 a
ls
o
 a
 m
em
b
er
 o
f 
th
e 

W
M
 P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
B
o
ar
d
 a
n
d
 W
M
 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
M
an
ag
er
s 
G
ro
u
p
 s
o
 h
as
 r
eg
u
la
r 
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
s 

w
it
h
 o
th
er
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
 t
o
 b
en
ch
m
ar
k 
cu
rr
en
t 
p
ra
ct
ic
es
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

N
/A
 –
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
w
ill
 

be
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
un
de
r 

bu
si
ne
ss
 a
s 
us
ua
l 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

n/
a 

n/
a 

n/
a 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
1 

T
ha
t 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l 
sh
ou
ld
 r
ev
ie
w
 t
he
 a
cc
re
di
ta
tio
ns
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
in
 i
ts
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 f
or
 t
he
 s
up
pl
y 
of
 c
er
ta
in
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 th
ey
 a
re
 p
ro
po
rt
io
na
te
 a
nd
 n
ot
 u
nn
ec
es
sa
ril
y 
on
er
ou
s 
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l a
g
re
es
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
p
ri
n
ci
p
le
s 
o
f 
th
is
 r
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
, 

im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 n
ee
d
 t
o
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 o
n
 a
 c
as
e 
b
y 
ca
se
 b
as
is
 a
s 
n
ew
 t
en
d
er
 r
eq
u
ir
em
en
ts
 e
m
er
g
e.
  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

D
ev
el
op
 a
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
co
un
ci
l 

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 

w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f a
pp
ly
in
g 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(w
ith
 s
up
po
rt
 

fr
om
 H
oo
pl
e 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t)
 

S
ep
t 1
2 

T
ra
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
in
 p
la
ce
  

P
ar
t 
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
 

su
pp
or
t a
nd
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
is
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 o
n 
a 
ca
se
 b
y 

ca
se
 b
as
is
. A
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 b
ei
ng
 

59



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

pr
op
or
tio
na
lit
y 
to
 th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

pr
ac
tic
es
 

de
ve
lo
pe
d.
 R
es
ou
rc
in
g 

ha
s 
de
la
ye
d 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n.
 A
 n
ew
 

pr
op
os
ed
 C
on
tr
ac
t 

M
an
ag
em
en
t r
eg
im
e 
be
in
g 

ex
pl
or
ed
 w
ill
 a
ls
o 
ai
d 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
is
 

ob
je
ct
iv
e.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
2 

(6
) 
 T
ha
t 
a 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
pl
an
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 t
o 
tr
y 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 w
ho
 w
is
h 
to
 r
eg
is
te
r 
on
 th
e 
sy
st
em
 a
re
 r
eg
is
te
re
d.
   

(1
2)
  
T
ha
t t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
co
ns
id
er
 h
ow
 t
o 
ra
is
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 s
up
po
rt
 t
o 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

to
 h
el
p 
th
em
 t
o 
eq
ui
p 
th
em
se
lv
es
 w
ith
 t
he
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 s
ki
lls
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
ns
 t
ha
t 
th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 g
en
er
al
ly
 r
eq
ui
re
 

(1
3)
  T
ha
t a
 p
la
n 
be
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
se
tti
ng
 o
ut
 h
ow
 h
el
p 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 lo
ca
l c
ap
ab
ili
ty
 a
nd
 c
ap
ac
ity
 to
 w
in
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
th
e 
fo
rm
at
io
n 
of
 lo
ca
l c
on
so
rt
ia
 o
r 
ot
he
r 
m
ea
ns
 

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
’s
 R
es
p
o
n
se
 

A
ls
o
 c
o
ve
rs
 6
 a
n
d
 1
3.
  
T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 i
s 
ac
ce
p
te
d
. 
 T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
ill
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
lo
ca
l 
C
h
am
b
er
 

o
f 
C
o
m
m
er
ce
 a
n
d
 o
th
er
 s
ec
to
rs
 t
o
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
o
f 
tr
ai
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 e
ve
n
ts
 t
o
 1
) 

in
cr
ea
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s,
 2
) 
th
e 
u
se
 o
f 
th
e 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 
sy
st
em
, 
3)
 ‘
h
o
w
 t
o
 t
en
d
er
’ 

w
o
rk
sh
o
p
s 
an
d
 4
) 
su
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
co
n
so
rt
ia
 b
o
d
ie
s 
to
 u
p
-s
ki
ll 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 s
o
 t
h
ey
 

ar
e 
b
et
te
r 
in
fo
rm
ed
 t
o
 t
ry
 a
n
d
 w
in
 c
o
u
n
ci
l b
u
si
n
es
s.
  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
w
ith
 th
e 
C
ha
m
be
r 

of
 C
om
m
er
ce
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 

of
 c
om
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
ev
en
ts
.  

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ta
rt
in
g 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
is
 a
gr
ee
d 
an
d 
in
 p
la
ce
 

S
ee
 6
. 

  

60



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
3 

(6
) 
 T
ha
t 
a 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
pl
an
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 t
he
 P
ro
ac
tis
 s
ys
te
m
 t
o 
tr
y 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 w
ho
 w
is
h 
to
 r
eg
is
te
r 
on
 th
e 
sy
st
em
 a
re
 r
eg
is
te
re
d.
   

(1
2)
  
T
ha
t t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
co
ns
id
er
 h
ow
 t
o 
ra
is
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 s
up
po
rt
 t
o 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

to
 h
el
p 
th
em
 t
o 
eq
ui
p 
th
em
se
lv
es
 w
ith
 t
he
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 s
ki
lls
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
ns
 t
ha
t 
th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 g
en
er
al
ly
 r
eq
ui
re
 

(1
3)
  T
ha
t a
 p
la
n 
be
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
se
tti
ng
 o
ut
 h
ow
 h
el
p 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 lo
ca
l c
ap
ab
ili
ty
 a
nd
 c
ap
ac
ity
 to
 w
in
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
th
e 
fo
rm
at
io
n 
of
 lo
ca
l c
on
so
rt
ia
 o
r 
ot
he
r 
m
ea
ns
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

A
ls
o
 c
o
ve
rs
 6
 a
n
d
 1
2.
  T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w
ill
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
lo
ca
l C
h
am
b
er
 

o
f 
C
o
m
m
er
ce
 a
n
d
 o
th
er
 s
ec
to
rs
 t
o
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
o
f 
tr
ai
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 e
ve
n
ts
 t
o
 1
) 

in
cr
ea
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
o
f 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s,
 2
) 
th
e 
u
se
 o
f 
th
e 
P
ro
ac
ti
s 
sy
st
em
, 3
) 
‘h
o
w
 t
o
 t
en
d
er
’ 

w
o
rk
sh
o
p
s 
an
d
 4
) 
su
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
co
n
so
rt
ia
 b
o
d
ie
s 
to
 u
p
-s
ki
ll 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 s
o
 t
h
ey
 a
re
 

b
et
te
r 
in
fo
rm
ed
 t
o
 t
ry
 a
n
d
 w
in
 c
o
u
n
ci
l b
u
si
n
es
s.
  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
w
ith
 th
e 
C
ha
m
be
r 

of
 C
om
m
er
ce
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 

of
 c
om
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
ev
en
ts
.  

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ta
rt
in
g 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
is
 a
gr
ee
d 
an
d 
in
 p
la
ce
 

S
ee
 6
. 

  R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
4 

T
ha
t 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 a
re
 p
ut
 i
n 
pl
ac
e 
to
 m
ea
su
re
 t
he
 a
m
ou
nt
 o
f 
w
or
k 
le
t 
lo
ca
lly
 t
ha
t 
is
 s
ub
-c
on
tr
ac
te
d 
lo
ca
lly
 t
o 

en
su
re
 a
 tr
ue
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f l
oc
al
 s
pe
nd
 is
 c
ap
tu
re
d 
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
A
 n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
s,
 (
e.
g
 C
L
E
S
.o
rg
.u
k)
 h
as
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 d
et
ai
le
d
 

an
al
ys
is
 o
f 
th
e 
im
p
ac
t 
o
f 
co
u
n
ci
l p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
sp
en
d
 o
n
 t
h
e 
lo
ca
l e
co
n
o
m
y 
fo
r 
o
th
er
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
. T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci
l w
ill
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 b
en
ch
m
ar
ki
n
g
 a
n
al
ys
is
 t
o
 e
st
ab
lis
h
 t
h
e 
co
st
s 
o
f 
co
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 s
u
ch
 t
h
is
 

re
q
u
ir
em
en
t 
ag
ai
n
st
 p
o
te
n
ti
al
 in
-h
o
u
se
 r
es
o
u
rc
es
.  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

P
ut
 in
 p
la
ce
 s
ys
te
m
s 
to
 

ca
pt
ur
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n.
  

R
ev
ie
w
 o
pt
io
ns
 o
n 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

S
ep
t 1
2 

A
ct
iv
ity
 to
 m
ee
t t
he
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 o
f t
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 

an
d 
im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

P
ar
tl
y 
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
 a
 

ne
w
 s
pe
nd
 a
na
ly
si
s 

sy
st
em
 b
ei
ng
 im
pl
em
en
te
d 

61



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

un
de
rt
ak
in
g 
th
is
 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
an
d 

id
en
tif
y 
re
co
m
m
en
de
d 

so
lu
tio
n 

F
in
an
ce
 

w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de
 g
re
at
er
 c
la
rit
y 

on
 s
pe
nd
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

su
pp
lie
rs
. M
ec
ha
ni
sm
s 
to
 

ca
pt
ur
e 
su
bc
on
tr
ac
te
d 

sp
en
d 
ar
e 
be
in
g 
ex
pl
or
ed
. 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
5 

T
ha
t 
if 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 
m
od
el
 u
nd
er
 t
he
 A
m
ey
 C
on
tr
ac
t 
is
 m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l s
ho
ul
d 
ha
ve
 t
w
o 
co
un
ci
llo
rs
 o
n 
th
e 

A
m
ey
 W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
B
oa
rd
 w
ith
 fu
ll 
vo
tin
g 
rig
ht
s 
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
is
 is
 b
ei
n
g
 e
xp
lo
re
d
 a
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
th
e 
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
s 
w
it
h
 A
m
ey
 a
b
o
u
t 

fu
tu
re
 d
ir
ec
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
ar
ra
n
g
em
en
t.
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

T
o 
ex
pl
or
e 
th
e 
go
ve
rn
an
ce
 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
jo
in
t 

ve
nt
ur
e 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f P
la
ce
s 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

T
o 
ha
ve
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
on
 th
e 

A
m
ey
 W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
B
oa
rd
 

N
o
 lo
n
g
er
 a
p
p
lic
ab
le
 -
  

A
m
ey
 c
on
tr
ac
t n
ot
 b
ei
ng
 

ex
te
nd
ed
. 

  R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
6 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
re
vi
ew
s 
th
e 
be
ne
fit
s 
of
 j
oi
nt
 v
en
tu
re
 c
om
pa
ni
es
 t
o 
se
e 
if 
th
ey
 a
re
 d
is
to
rt
in
g 
th
e 
m
ar
ke
t 
an
d 

co
ns
eq
ue
nt
ly
 d
id
 n
ot
 r
ep
re
se
nt
 v
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l c
an
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 a
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
ve
n
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
an
ie
s 
as
 

re
co
m
m
en
d
ed
.  
A
n
y 
d
ec
is
io
n
 t
o
 e
st
ab
lis
h
 a
 jo
in
t 
ve
n
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
an
y 
is
 t
es
te
d
 a
t 
th
e 
ti
m
e 
o
f 
es
ta
b
lis
h
m
en
t 

to
 e
n
su
re
 it
 is
 t
h
e 
m
o
st
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
m
o
d
el
.  
D
el
iv
er
y 
is
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
ft
er
 a
n
 a
rr
an
g
em
en
t 
is
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
. 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f j
oi
nt
 v
en
tu
re
 

co
m
pa
ni
es
. 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

N
ov
 2
01
2 

R
ev
ie
w
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 a
nd
 

re
po
rt
ed
. 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 –
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 th
e 

re
cr
ui
tm
en
t o
f a
dd
iti
on
al
 

C
om
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

re
so
ur
ce
s.
 

 

62



O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
l P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
P
o
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 N
o
. 1
7 

T
he
 p
ot
en
tia
l f
or
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
bu
yi
ng
 p
ow
er
 to
 d
riv
e 
do
w
n 
co
st
s 
be
 e
xp
lo
re
d 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 is
 a
cc
ep
te
d
.  
T
h
e 
co
u
n
ci
l i
s 
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g
 a
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
ch
an
g
e 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
to
 

m
ax
im
is
e 
it
s 
b
u
yi
n
g
 p
o
w
er
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 im
p
le
m
en
ti
n
g
 a
 C
at
eg
o
ry
 M
an
ag
em
en
t 
ap
p
ro
ac
h
 t
o
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
- 

su
p
p
o
rt
ed
 b
y 
ro
b
u
st
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
M
an
ag
em
en
t 
an
d
 S
u
p
p
lie
r 
R
el
at
io
n
sh
ip
 M
an
ag
em
en
t.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e 

u
n
d
er
p
in
n
ed
 b
y 
co
m
m
o
n
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 (
in
cl
u
d
es
 P
ro
ac
ti
s)
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
sp
en
d
 d
at
a 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
ap
ac
it
y/
ca
p
ab
ili
ty
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
f 
ke
y 
st
ak
eh
o
ld
er
s.
   
 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
hi
gh
 q
ua
lit
y 

sp
en
d 
da
ta
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ca
pa
bi
lit
y 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

A
ug
us
t 

20
12
 

C
om
pe
tit
iv
e 
sp
en
d 
an
al
ys
is
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
 

an
d 
us
ed
 b
y 
C
om
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 

dr
iv
e 
st
ra
te
gy
. 

P
ar
tl
y 
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
 –
 a
 

ne
w
 s
pe
nd
 a
na
ly
si
s 

sy
st
em
 is
 b
ei
ng
 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
an
d 
da
ta
 is
 

cu
rr
en
tly
 b
ei
ng
 a
na
ly
se
d.
 

D
ev
el
op
 s
ys
te
m
s 
to
 s
up
pl
y 

m
an
ag
em
en
t i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

H
ea
d 
of
 IT
C
 (
H
oo
pl
e)
 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

C
on
tin
uo
us
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 

sy
st
em
s 
an
d 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 

im
pl
em
en
te
d 

A
 n
ew
 C
on
tr
ac
t 

M
an
ag
em
en
t m
od
el
 is
 

be
in
g 
ex
pl
or
ed
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
e 

ob
je
ct
iv
e.
 

Im
pl
em
en
t C
at
eg
or
y 

M
an
ag
em
en
t  
re
gi
m
e 
 

H
ea
d 
of
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
ep
t 2
01
2 

A
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 a
re
 in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 

C
at
 M
gt
 r
eg
im
e 
is
 b
ei
ng
 im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
at
te
m
pt
ed
 to
 

re
cr
ui
t C
at
eg
or
y 
m
an
ag
er
s 

bu
t w
as
 u
na
bl
e 
to
 a
pp
oi
nt
 

to
 th
e 
po
st
s.
 H
ow
ev
er
 th
e 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 a
re
 in
 p
la
ce
.  

 

63



64



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Rob Hemblade, Parks, Countryside and Leisure 
Development Manager 01432 261981 

 
  

 

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
10 DECEMBER 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: 
UPDATE TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK & FINISH GROUP 
REPORT ON TOURIST AND TEMPORARY EVENT SIGNAGE 

REPORT BY:  Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning 

 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide  

4. Purpose 

To note the contents of the report and to seek the views of the General Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the draft Policy and Guidance Notes, arising since the Task & Finish Review.  
 
5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) the report and progress is noted; and 

(b) The committee provide a view on the draft policy and guidance notes 

 

6. Key Points Summary 

• In July 2011 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee commissioned a task and finish group to 
review Tourist Signage 

• The review was completed in March 2012. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed the 
findings and recommendations and in April 2012 wrote to the executive requesting a response 
to the recommendations 

AGENDA ITEM 11

65



 
 

• The executive responded in July 2012 setting out an action plan and timetable which was 
approved by the committee with a request for an update after 6 months. 

• This report and attachments provides an update on progress. 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 The alternative option is to retain the current guidance notes and policies. However these 
have been reviewed and considered to be out of date, unsupportive of local business and non- 
reflective of the current emphasis on community engagement. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 Overview and Scrutiny has recognised that the current Tourist Signage policy needs revising. 
The views of the committee on the proposed policy and guidance notes would be welcome. 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 In July 2011 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee commissioned a Task and Finish group to 
undertake a review of Tourist Signing (Brown Signs). At the first meeting of the group the 
scope was reviewed and Temporary event signage was added as it had a close bearing on 
the subject. The final agreed scope for the review was therefore: 

• The review Tourist signing policy 
• To review Tourist signing delivery 
• To review the guidance provide on temporary event signage 
• To review the temporary event signage delivery 
 

10. Key Considerations 

10.1 In July 2012 the Overview and Scrutiny committee considered the findings of the Task and 
Finish Group set up to review Tourism and temporary event signage policies and delivery. 
Eight recommendations were put forward by the task and Finish Group along with executive’s 
response. The executive’s responses included a number of actions and timetable which has 
been updated and is attached in the supporting documents. 

10.2 After consideration, it was decided the best way to move forward was to compile a package of 
guidance notes covering tourist signage, business signage and temporary event signage 
under an overarching policy. The guidance notes will provide clear advice and directions to 
business and organisation wishing to apply for signage adjacent to and on highways. In 
regards to business signage and temporary event signage, Herefordshire Council are setting 
out what they will not enforce against as technically, signage on or adjacent to a highway 
needs to be authorised. 

10.3 The draft policy consultation is now underway and has included local ward members, parish 
councils, local tourism businesses, The Council for the protection of Rural England, Amey 
Herefordshire and the Planning service. Useful discussions have also been carried out with 
Visit Herefordshire who are supportive of the direction of the policy and are helping with the 
consultation. The consultation is due to end on the 21st December 2012. However due to 
Parish Council meeting timetables is has been agreed that parish Councils can submit 
comments up to the 17th January 2013. Based on this a revised timetable has been produced.  

66



 
 

10.4 The draft policy along with the 3 supporting guidance notes have been attached to the report 
and comprise of the following: 

• Draft Tourism signage and Temporary event policy – this sets out the general direction 
Herefordshire council are taking which is to provide greater support to business whilst 
ensuring protection for the environment and road safety, along with greater involvement of 
local communities 

• Draft Tourist Signage Policy – this has been considerably simplified and provides far more 
support to local businesses. The emphasis is on encouraging business to apply for signs 
rather than acting as a deterrent which often results in illegal signs and excess clutter. A 
requirement to involve the local community in the decision making process has been 
introduced. This will ensure greater local engagement and will give communities a direct say 
in the installation of infrastructure which affects the areas they live in and from which business 
operate form. 

• Draft temporary event signage – the previous differences between commercial and non-
commercial events has been removed and the requirement to remove signs after an event 
has finished has been strengthened.  

• Draft business signage – this a  new form of signage designed to encourage those business 
that either do not meet the criteria for brown signs, or wish to have something more individual 
than a brown sign, to apply for direction signs. The emphasis will be on the look of the signs 
to make sure they fit with the environment and, similar to temporary event signage, it will set 
out what Herefordshire Council’s Highways and Planning services will tolerate and not enforce 
against. Local community organisations will have a key role in the decision making process 
alongside officers 

10.5 The emphasis on all three documents is to encourage rather than discourage groups, 
business and organisations to apply for signage which will in turn reduce the increasing 
proliferation of clutter, improve road safety and help promote rural businesses. Those 
organisations wishing to run events will have clarity around what is expected of them and 
clear guidance on how to ensure the signage element of event organisation is carried out 
safely and in a way that ensures the event is well promoted and signposted. There is a far 
greater role for local communities who will be part of the decision making process and for the 
first time will have a say on what signage is erected in their areas.  Costs for signage will be 
kept to a minimum with the emphasis being on covering expenses rather than making a profit. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 The current procedures do not involve local communities in the decision making process in 
respect of new permanent signage. In light of the fact that very often it is businesses based 
within rural communities applying for signs it seems clear that local people should have a say. 
The new policy and guidance notes for business and tourism signage therefore puts local 
communities very much in the decision making process and applicants will need the support of 
local parish councils and ward members for their proposals. This will be a new role and 
therefore parish councils and ward members are being consulted. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 There is no Equality or Human Rights Impact 

67



 
 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 There are no additional cost implications for the authority. New signs will need to be paid for 
by the applicant. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 Given that signage erected on the highway must comply with the relevant highway regulations 
the Council, as highway authority, cannot authorise the erection of signage that is not in 
compliance with these provisions. However, it does has discretion to take enforcement action, 
depending on the circumstances.  

 

15. Risk Management 

• If agreed, the new policy and guidance notes will help provide greater clarity around what is expected, 
hence helping to reduce sign clutter, improve road safety and help promote rural businesses. 

• If agreed, the new policy and guidance notes require the full involvement of local parish councils and 
ward members in the decision making process. Risks around the fact that local communities vary in 
size and capacity will be managed through ensuring that their views are taken into account as part of 
any consultation and subsequent implementation. 

• If declined, the risk of retaining the current out of date guidance notes and policies is that these will 
not support local business, nor reflect the current emphasis on community involvement. 

 

16. Consultees 

16.1 The draft policy is currently out to consultation with Parish Councils, Local Ward Members, 
Tourism businesses, Chamber of Commerce, CPRE and the Areas of Outstanding natural 
Beauty.  Visit Herefordshire, Highways and Planning Services have also been consulted 

17. Appendices 

17.1 Draft Tourism and Temporary Event Policy 

Draft tourism signage policy 

Draft temporary event guidance notes 

Draft business guidance notes 

18. Background Papers 

18.1 Executive response to Overview and Scrutiny Committee Task and Finish group 
recommendations 

68



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
 A
pp
en
di
x 
A
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s
  

1.
 

Th
e 

ei
gh

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 ta

sk
 a

nd
 fi

ni
sh

 g
ro

up
 w

er
e 

th
at

: 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

1 
 

a)
 

Th
at

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

t S
ig

ni
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
; 

b)
 

Th
at

 a
ll 

cr
ite

ria
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

re
 re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
m

or
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r b
ro

w
n 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 : 

I. 
Th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
 n

at
io

na
l q

ua
lit

y 
sc

he
m

e 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
, w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, a
 

lo
ca

l q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 u
se

d 
in

st
ea

d 
of

 a
 n

at
io

na
l q

ua
lit

y 
sc

he
m

e 
or

 a
s 

an
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e.

   
II.
 

Al
l q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

sc
he

m
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

le
va

nt
 a

nd
 v

al
id

 
III

. 
Th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

“i
” 

To
ur

is
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Ce
nt

re
 is

 re
vi

se
d.

 
 Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
2 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

 e
nt

itl
ed

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
N

ot
e:

 S
ig

ns
 p

la
ce

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
bo

un
da

ry
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

:- 

a)
 

Th
e 

di
ff

er
en

t r
ul

es
 fo

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 n
on

-c
om

m
er

ci
al

 e
ve

nt
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 

b)
 

D
ire

ct
io

na
l s

ig
na

ge
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
llo

w
ed

 e
ar

ly
 th

an
 7

2 
ho

ur
s 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 

c)
 

Th
e 

ra
pi

d 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f s
ig

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
ev

en
t o

rg
an

is
er

 a
ft

er
 a

n 
ev

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 ri
go

ro
us

ly
 

en
fo

rc
ed

. 
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

3 

W
he

re
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e,
 u

sa
ge

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

of
 s

ym
bo

ls
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 w
or

ds
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
m

or
e 

us
e 

of
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ig
na

ge
. 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

4 

Re
du

nd
an

t s
ig

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 re
m

ov
ed

 a
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
ft

er
 th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
ve

 

 

69



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
 A
pp
en
di
x 
A
 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 re
qu

ire
d.

 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

5 

A 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t t
o 

en
su

re
 re

as
on

ab
le

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 m

et
 b

ut
 th

at
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 s

ee
k 

to
 m

ak
e 

a 
pr

of
it 

on
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 to
ur

is
m

 
si

gn
in

g 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

6 

Th
at

 a
 w

id
er

 re
vi

ew
 o

f a
ll 

hi
gh

w
ay

 s
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t w

ith
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

be
in

g 
to

 
re

du
ce

 s
ig

n 
cl

ut
te

r w
he

re
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e.
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

7 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f a

ll 
si

gn
ag

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 is
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
nd

 a
ll 

gu
id

an
ce

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 s

ig
na

ge
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

ei
th

er
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

r h
ig

hw
ay

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

e 
re

co
nc

ile
d 

w
ith

 
cu

rr
en

t r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

8 

In
 re

vi
si

ng
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

‘H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ou
ris

t S
ig

ni
ng

 P
ol

ic
y’

 (a
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
1)

 a
nd

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 n
ot

e:
 S

ig
ns

 p
la

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

(a
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
2)

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 ro

le
 o

f t
he

 T
ow

n 
an

d 
Pa

ris
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 c
ou

ld
 p

la
y 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s,

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
lis

m
 a

ge
nd

a 

 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
R
es
po
ns
e 

T
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
an
d
 t
h
e 
re
se
ar
ch
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
n
 b
y 
th
e 
re
vi
ew
 a
re
 n
o
te
d
. A
 n
ew
 

p
o
lic
y 
st
at
em
en
t 
w
ill
 n
o
w
 b
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
 t
ak
in
g
 a
cc
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
an
d
 

th
en
 s
ta
ke
h
o
ld
er
s 
co
n
su
lt
ed
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 f
in
al
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. T
h
e 
ai
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
to
 d
ev
el
o
p
 a
 s
im
p
le
 

an
d
 s
tr
ai
g
h
t 
fo
rw
ar
d
 p
o
lic
y 
th
at
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s 
lo
ca
l b
u
si
n
es
s 
an
d
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
es
 t
o
u
ri
sm
.  
T
h
e 

p
ri
n
ci
p
le
 o
f 
fu
ll 
co
st
 r
ec
o
ve
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
es
ta
b
lis
h
ed
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
p
o
lic
y 
w
ill
 

 

70



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
 A
pp
en
di
x 
A
 

en
su
re
 t
h
at
 r
o
ad
 s
af
et
y 
is
 n
o
t 
co
m
p
ro
m
is
ed
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
en
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
is
 p
re
se
rv
ed
.  

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

B
y 
W
he
n 

T
ar
ge
t/S
uc
ce
ss
 c
rit
er
ia
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
 

D
ra
ft 
T
ou
ris
t S
ig
na
ge
 

P
ol
ic
y 
st
at
em

en
t 

pr
ep
ar
ed
 

D
ire
ct
or
 fo
r 
P
la
ce
s 

an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
  

Ju
ly
 2
01
2 

D
ra
ft 
po
lic
y 
pr
ep
ar
ed
 fo
r 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 

P
la
ce
 B
as
ed
 

C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 
to
 

co
m
pl
et
e 
dr
af
t p
ol
ic
y 

by
 m
id
 J
ul
y 
20
12
.  
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
on
 d
ra
ft 

T
ou
ris
t S
ig
na
ge
 P
ol
ic
y 

st
at
em

en
t t
o 
be
 c
ar
rie
d 

ou
t w
ith
 L
oc
al
 M
em

be
rs
, 

P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
nd
 k
ey
 

st
ak
eh
ol
de
rs
 

 

D
ire
ct
or
 fo
r 
P
la
ce
s 

an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
12
 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
lin
e 

w
ith
 c
or
po
ra
te
 g
ui
de
lin
es
 w
ith
 

Lo
ca
l M
em

be
rs
 P
ar
is
h 
co
un
ci
ls
 

an
d 
ke
y 
S
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s.
 T
o 

in
cl
ud
e 
T
ou
ris
m
 b
us
in
es
se
s,
 

P
la
nn
in
g,
 B
us
in
es
s 
E
nt
er
pr
is
e,
 

C
am

pa
ig
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
or
 

R
ur
al
 E
ng
la
nd
 a
nd
 H
ig
hw
ay
s 

A
ge
nc
y 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
to
 b
e 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 b
y 
en
d 
of
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
.  

In
iti
al
 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t w
ith
 

B
en
 G
ill
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
w
ith
 

P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 

is
su
ed
 m
id
 

N
ov
em

be
r 
20
12
 

du
e 
ba
ck
 2
1 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
 

ex
ce
pt
 fo
r 
P
ar
is
h 

C
ou
nc
ils
 m
id
-

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
13
   

 

F
in
al
 D
ra
ft 
P
re
pa
re
d 

 
D
ire
ct
or
 fo
r 
P
la
ce
s 

an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
12
 

R
es
ul
ts
 fr
om

 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 
to
 b
e 

co
lla
te
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 e
vi
de
nc
e 
to
 

su
pp
or
t p
ol
ic
y.
 F
in
al
 d
ra
ft 

pr
ep
ar
ed
 to
 r
ef
le
ct
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
.  

F
in
al
 d
ra
ft 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 

by
 e
nd
 o
f O

ct
ob
er
 

20
12
  

F
in
al
 D
ra
ft 
no
w
 

du
e 
en
d 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
12
 

R
ev
is
ed
 T
ou
ris
t S
ig
na
ge
 

P
ol
ic
y 
st
at
em

en
t 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 

D
ire
ct
or
 fo
r 
P
la
ce
s 

an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
12
 

R
ev
is
ed
 T
ou
ris
t S
ig
na
ge
 P
ol
ic
y 

st
at
em

en
t t
o 
be
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
by
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
fo
r 
H
ig
hw
ay
s 

an
d 
T
ra
ns
po
rt
at
io
n 

R
ev
is
ed
 p
ol
ic
y 
to
 b
e 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
en
d 
of
 

N
ov
em

be
r 
20
12
  

A
pp
ro
va
l n
ow
 

du
e 
en
d 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
 

71



D
ra
ft 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ta
sk
 a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 g
ro
up
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
 A
pp
en
di
x 
A
 

   

72



 

Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil 
Twitter: http://twitter.com/HfdsCouncil 
Flickr: http://www.flickr.com/photos/hfdscouncil/ 
$yrypf2lv.doc   V0.1 

Friday, 30 November 2012 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  

TOURISM AND TEMPORARY EVENT SIGNAGE POLICY 
 

Introduction 
 
The focus of this policy and guidance notes is to support local businesses, especially those in rural 
areas, and empower local communities to have a greater say in the signage within their areas.  
 
Well-designed tourism and temporary event signage can support the local economy and improve the 
customer experience for highway users and local communities. Poorly designed signage, whether it is 
located within the highway boundary or on private land adjacent to a highway can cause problems for 
highway users and detract from the local environment. In many cases the difference between good and 

bad design is a matter of balance and perception. Herefordshire Council’s role is to ensure the right 
balance is made between highway safety, environmental damage and supporting local businesses. We 
must also operate within regulations, such as exist for planning and highways. This policy is aimed at 
ensuring the right balance is achieved though solutions that comply with the law. 
 

Key Aims  
 

• Support tourism and local businesses; 
• Promote community engagement; 
• Improve road safety; 
• Reduce environmental damage. 

 

Tourism and local businesses 
 
Tourism is a key industry within the county and Herefordshire Council will support the use of signs to 
raise awareness of the location of facilities and attractions that promote the economic health and 
cultural wellbeing of our County. New guidance will be introduced to support rural business and 
activities who do not meet the criteria for brown signs but need to guide customers to their premises 

Local communities 
 

73



 

2  Version number 1.0 $yrypf2lv.doc 

The benefits and impact of signs is felt most at a local level. Local communities will therefore have a 
key role in the approval, design and location of signs within their locality. Local communities will also 
be encouraged to work with providers to ensure the detrimental environmental impact that signage can 
have is reduced as much as possible. 

Road safety 
 
Signs play an important role in ensuring road users arrive at their intended destination efficiently and 
safely. Road signs are also a distraction, therefore signs will need to be kept to a minimum and the 
information contained within a sign will provide only the detail required to allow the driver to find 
their destination. Road signage is not the only guide to travellers, and should work with street name 
plates, the destinations own publicity media, and other readily available information to direct the 
travelling public firstly to the right locality, and then on to their final destination. No sign should 
impede forward visibility, cause obstruction, confuse or distract drivers to the extent that it will cause 
undue risk to highway users to an unacceptable level. 

Environment 
 
Herefordshire Council will seek to enhance our environment and reduce environmental damage. Signs 
can have both a positive and negative impact on the environment.  If located correctly they can ensure 
visitors arrive at their destination by the most direct route.  However, too many signs cause 
environmental clutter and can threaten one of the attractions of our county, its beauty.  

Eligibility criteria 
 
Applicants for Brown or Tourist signs should be able to demonstrate they have met certain basic 
criteria to ensure that visitors expectations are met on arrival at their destination.  

Process 
 

Herefordshire Council’s aim is to reduce ‘red tape’ and ensure the process of applying for signage is 
open, engaging and efficient and achieves its objective. 

Costs 
 
There are inevitably costs associated with the approval and installations of signs. Whilst Herefordshire 
Council must ensure all their costs are met to eliminate any unnecessary burden on tax payers, they 
will not seek to profit. Costs will be clearly set out, along with the standard of service applicants can 
expect. These costs will take account of the whole life of the sign, so that they can remain as effective 
guidance to the travelling public now and in the future. 
 

Clutter 
 
Signage clutter can come about as the result of redundant signs not being removed, badly thought out 
procedures, incremental development and the installation of unauthorised signs. The impact of such 
clutter can lead to safety issues and detract from the visual beauty of the county. Local communities 
and providers will therefore be invited to play an active role in helping reduce signage clutter along in 
partnership with Herefordshire Council. 

74



 

3  Version number 1.0 $yrypf2lv.doc 

 

Highways Agency and neighbouring authorities 
 
Trunk Roads such, as the A49, and Motorways, as the M50 are managed by the Highways Agency 
who have their own criteria for signs. Neighbouring authorities also have their own approach to 
signage. Herefordshire Council will continue to work with the Highways Agency and its neighbours to 
ensure compatibility between the policies of respective organisations, recognising that many journeys 
to destinations within the County will have started from elsewhere in the World.  

 

75



76



 

 

DRAFT HEREFORDSHIRE TOURIST SIGNING GUIDANCE NOTES 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1  Brown on white tourist signs play a key role in supporting rural tourism 

based businesses and enabling visitors to the county to move around the 
road network efficiently and safely by providing clear directional 
information. At the same time this document has by necessity been 
guided by a desire to not see the county littered with excessive signs and 
current statutory guidelines which provide a framework for all signage 
within the country. It is also important to recognise that there is a cost to 
administering, installing and removing redundant tourist signs and that 
these costs are fair and reasonable to all parties. 

 
1.2  The intention of this policy is set out clearly how Herefordshire Council 

will administer and authorise the installation of tourist signs which 
provides clarity to those wishing to install signs 

 
1.3  The provision of tourist signing on the motorway and trunk road network 

is dealt with by the Highways Agency. Within Herefordshire, this applies 
to the A49 and M50 The Highways Agency publication “We’re just off the 
Main Road” provides advice on traffic signs for tourist businesses in 
England. 

 
1.4  Government guidance on the provision of tourist signing is contained in 

the following three documents: 
 

• TA93/04 – Guidance for Tourist Signposting – General Introduction 
• TD52/04P – Tourist Signing – Trunk Roads 
• TA94/04P – Tourist Signing – Local Roads 

 
2. KEY PRINCIPLES 
 
2.1   The objective of this guidance is to provide clear advice on the provision 

of tourist signing that meets the needs of the road user and the tourist 
industry, whilst being consistent with the safe and efficient management 
of traffic, and minimising the impact of signing on the environment. 

 
2.2  Tourist signing should not be used purely as a marketing or advertising 

tool, and requests for signing that are made simply to promote a tourist 
destination will not be approved. A clear road safety and / or 
environmental benefit will need to be demonstrated before signing 
requests will be accepted. 

 
2.4   All signs installed on the highway network will need to be fully compliant 

with The Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions (TSRGD) and 
associated guidance. (Ref. Statutory Instruments 2002 No. 3113 The 
Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002). TSRGD sets out 
the design principles for road signs including tourist signing, specifying 

77



 

 

criteria on sign dimensions, size of lettering, and siting. The Council’s 
Traffic Management Team will be able to advise applicants on any 
updated TSRGD guidance. 

 
2.5   In general five destinations is regarded as the maximum that drivers can 

absorb at a single junction, or four on all purpose dual carriageway roads 
with speeds in excess of 50 mph.   

 
2.6   From the initial tourist sign, it is essential that there is clear and 

consistent signing along the entire route to the tourist destination being 
signposted. The need for continuity will involve signing at junctions along 
the route, particularly where a change of road is involved. Along longer 
sections of a route, reminder signs may be required to reassure drivers 
that they have not missed a turn. Such signs should be at minimum 
intervals of one mile and maximum intervals of five miles. 

 
2.7   It is recognised that road signs have an impact on the local environment, 

and therefore it is intended that the provision of tourist signing should be 
carefully designed so as to minimise the impact on the very environment 
that attracts tourists to Herefordshire in the first place. Accordingly, 
tourist signing should complement rather than duplicate existing signing, 
and where possible should be incorporated into existing signs rather than 
require the installation of new signs. For rural businesses, tourist based 
or otherwise, who wish to produce their own bespoke directional signs, 
there is separate guidance entitled Business signs in the countryside 
available. However it is important to note that there is a presumption for 
tourist based businesses to apply for brown signs and that an 
organisation cannot have both types of signs. 

 
2.8   In particular, to minimise the impact of new signs on the environment, 

there will be a general presumption against white on brown signs to 
tourist facilities that a visitor would normally expect to find within an 
urban area, in particular shops, cinemas, accommodation, restaurants, 
cafés, etc. 

 
 
2.9   Herefordshire Council funds the provision and maintenance of general 

road signing on the highway network in its capacity as Local Highway 
Authority. However, tourist signing will only be provided where it is 
requested by a specific tourist destination, where it is considered to meet 
the criteria outlined within this guidance, and where that tourist 
destination funds the manufacturing, installation and maintenance costs 
associated with that signing. Tourist signs will remain in the ownership of 
the Authority, but in the event of them being stolen, damaged or 
destroyed, the applicant will be expected to pay the cost of subsequent 
repair or replacement.  When the signs require replacement through age 
the applicant will be required to pay the cost of replacement.   

 
2.10 The full cost for the supply and erection of the proposed tourism signs 

will be borne in full by the applicant, and Herefordshire Council will only 

78



 

 

arrange for the signs to be manufactured and erected on receipt of this 
amount. This amount will also include costs for sign removal should the 
attraction close down, cease trading, or no longer meet the required 
standards as set out in this policy. 

 
2.11  Generic signing schemes or use of symbols instead of words to groups 

of attractions or facilities, will be actively.  Similarly on approach to 
towns, an Historic Towns type sign may be considered more appropriate 
than individual establishment signing.  These signs will then incorporate 
appropriate symbols to be followed within the town.  With respect to such 
signs there will need to be a lead applicant who will need to coordinate 
facilities and funds 
 

 
 
3. DEFINITION OF TOURIST DESTINATIONS 
 
3.1   A tourist destination is defined as a permanently established attraction 

or facility which: 
 

(a) Attracts or is used by visitors to an area; and 
(b) Is open to the public without prior booking during its normal opening 
     hours. 

 
3.2    Tourist attractions include 
 

• Visitor centres, 
• Theme parks, 
• Historic buildings, 
• Museums, 
• Zoos and Safari Parks, 
• Parks and gardens, 
• Natural attractions (such as nature reserves and viewpoints), 
• Areas of special interest, 
• Country tours and routes, 
• Sports centres, 
• Concert venues, 
• Theatres and, 
• Cinemas. 
 

3.3     Tourist facilities include 
 

• Hotels, guesthouses, bed and breakfast and other serviced   
accommodation, 

• Public houses, 
• Restaurants, 
• Holiday, touring and camping parks, 
• Picnic sites and, 
• Tourist Information Centres. 

 

79



 

 

To be eligible for the provision of tourist signing, facilities offering 
accommodation will need to be accredited in an identified local or 
national quality assurance scheme. Similarly, holiday, touring or 
camping parks will need to have a reasonable number of pitches 
available for casual and overnight use, and be accredited. 

 
3.4   Retail centres, garden centres and exhibition centres are specifically 

excluded from classification as tourist destinations, and where signing 
is considered appropriate for such facilities this should be done using 
normal directional signing. 

 
4. CRITERIA FOR THE PROVISION OF TOURIST SIGNING 
 
4.1     The identification of a particular tourist destination as a tourist attraction 

or facility under the definitions listed above does not automatically 
mean that the provision of tourist signing will be accepted for that 
destination. This section of the policy sets out the specific criteria that 
need to be met before the provision of tourist signing will be approved. 

 
4.2    Eligible tourist destinations should have adequate parking, toilets, and 

publicity material, which should be of good quality 
 
Parking 
 
4.3     Parking provision could either be on site or close by, and should include 

disabled, cycle and coach parking where appropriate. Where it is close 
by rather than at the destination, the tourist signing should direct 
visitors to the parking rather than the destination itself. Pedestrian 
signing should then be provided on the safest route linking the parking 
facility to the destination, and should ensure continuous signing of the 
route in both directions (i.e. from car park to destination and back 
again). 

 
Toilet Facilities 
 
4.4  The destination should have adequate toilets on site or close by, 

including facilities for disabled people. 
 
Publicity 
 
4.5    Publicity material produced for the destination should have clear and 

accurate information including directions of how to reach the 
destination by road and, where appropriate, by public transport, 
walking and cycling. Such material may include leaflets, information 
contained within guidebooks, web sites, and at Tourist Information 
Centres. Where possible, directions should include reference to 
destinations that are already well sign-posted, such as settlement 
names, and to road numbers. Local names for roads or junctions 
should be avoided unless well signposted, as visitors will generally not 
be aware of such names. 

80



 

 

 
Quality 
 
4.6   Destinations will be expected to be of generally good quality, well 

maintained and to adhere to the appropriate accessibility standards, 
including the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 requirements. 
Membership of a recognised national or regional scheme for 
maintaining quality standards, will be generally required for a tourist 
destination to be considered for tourist signing provision. Evidence of 
such membership will be required from the applicant.  

 
Existing Signs 
 
4.7   The provision of tourist signing will be conditional on the permanent 

removal of any advertisement signs relating to that destination from 
private land adjacent to the highway or within the highway boundary. 
This shall be done prior to the installation of the tourist signing. This is 
to ensure that the provision of the tourist signing does not add to 
signing clutter and results in the consolidation of signing rather than 
proliferation.  

 
Tourist Information Centres / Points 
 
4.8     Signing to Tourist Information Centres (TIC) will only be provided where 

those centres are networked. Signing to Tourist Information Points 
(TIPs) will only be provided where the relevant authority enters into a 
Service Level Agreement to commit to ensuring that the TIP is properly 
maintained with visitor information.  

 
Bypassed Communities 
 
4.9    Bypassed community signs will only be provided for settlements with a 

population less than 10,000 and where adequate direction signing to 
that settlement does not already exist. 

 
Local Communities 
 
4.10     The impact of tourism signing is most significant at the local level and 

Herefordshire Council are keen to ensure local communities are fully 
engaged in the process. Applicants will therefore need to gain the 
support of their local Town or Parish Council before submitting an 
application for signing. 

 
Other Criteria 
 
4.11   Tourist signing for tourist facilities will not be provided where those 

facilities are located on or adjacent to an “A” or “B” road, where they 
are located within a settlement that already has directional signing in 
place, or where the facility does not meet the criteria relating to 
quality etc. outlined above. It is the responsibility of the owner of the 

81



 

 

facility to ensure that their publicity contains clear instructions to 
visitors on how to reach their establishment, and tourist signing will 
only be provided where it is necessary to provide additional 
information to drivers on road safety grounds. This will generally only 
be the case where tourist facilities are located in relatively isolated 
locations that are more difficult to find. 

 
4.12     Tourist signing for tourist attractions will only be provided where those 

attractions meet the criteria outlined above, where they attract at least 
40,000 visitors per year (or where visitor numbers in the busiest 
month exceeds 20% of this figure), where they are nationally 
recognised attractions (e.g. they are in the care of English Heritage or 
The National Trust), or where they are of regional importance (e.g. 
Country Parks, Cathedrals / Historic Churches). Within towns and 
cities, tourist signing will only be provided to direct drivers to the most 
appropriate car park for each tourist destination by the most 
appropriate route. 

 
4.13    In general tourist signing will be provided from the most appropriate 

location(s) upon the “A” or “B” road network. Signing will then guide 
motorists from that location to the tourist destination by the most 
appropriate route. It is for the Highway Authority to decide what forms 
the most appropriate route. 

 
4.14  Signing over a wider area may be considered for tourist destinations 

attracting larger numbers of visitors.  
 
 
 
 
5. PROCEDURE 
 
Initial discussion with officer to discuss plan and eligibility 
 
Applicant to submit formal application to HC containing the following: 
 

• Fee 
• Completed form 
• Evidence of consultation with Parish Council and Local member* 
• Evidence of consultation with other stakeholders* 

 
* In order to ensure that local communities and other stakeholders are fully 
engaged in this process, applicants will need to seek approval of the parish or 
town council and the local member. The applicant will also need to gauge the 
views of other stakeholders such as other local businesses, neighbours etc. 
 
Local  Councils will be asked to consider : 
 

• Whether signs are required / benefits / threats 
• The visual impact / Clutter 

82



 

 

• Design and locations 
• Opportunity to amalgamate with other signs and businesses 
• Impact on aspects such as traffic movement 
• Criteria set out by Herefordshire Council. 

 
An applicant must have the support of the Local Council and Local Member 
before an application is submitted. 
 
Once the application is submitted, officers will add their views which will 
concentrate of location, highway safety and compliance with statutory 
guidance. A final report will then be submitted to the decision maker with a 
copy going to the applicant. The applicant will be advised of the decision and 
advised either: 
 

• The application is successful and timescale within which time the works 
will be competed. 

• The application is unsuccessful as it stands but what could be changed 
to make it successful. 

• The application is rejected and the reasons why.  
 
The parish council will be advised of the final decision. There may be an 
opportunity for the Parish Council through the lengthsman scheme to arrange 
to have the signs installed which will help reduce costs. This will depend on 
the roads and locations and the final decision will remain with the highway 
authority. 
 
5.4 If successful, the applicant will also need to bear the cost of design, 
manufacture, installation and future maintenance of the tourist signing. The 
Traffic Management Team will notify the applicant of the approximate cost 
when they notify the applicant of the approval of their application. If the 
applicant does not respond within two months of being notified of the success 
of their application and of the approximate costs, it will be assumed that they 
do not wish to proceed with the installation of the signing. Payment to cover 
the notified costs for administration, design, manufacture and installation 
would be expected prior to any works commencing. 
 
5.5 For applications where both Highways Agency and County Council 
approval will be required, the application should initially be submitted to the 
County Council who will then arrange for the necessary discussions to be held 
with the Highways Agency. Similarly, where an application will involve the 
installation of tourist signing on the local road network within neighbouring 
local authority areas, the initial application should be made to the County 
Council who will then arrange for the discussion of the application with the 
appropriate authorities. 
 
5.6 Once installed all signs will be the property of the County Council as Local 
Highway Authority. The Council will retain the right to remove tourist signing 
where these are to be incorporated in an overall signing scheme for that 
locality (e.g. being combined with other road signing on the network). The 
Council will also review road signing provision as part of other road 

83



 

 

maintenance or improvements schemes, and retains the right to remove 
tourist signing where the tourist destination no longer complies with the 
criteria applying at that time to the provision of tourist signing. Furthermore 
should the signs fail to be supported by the tourist destination or the parish or 
town council, or the business cease to trade, then the County Council will 
remove the whole series of signs and make reparations to recover the costs 
of the works. 
 
November 2012 
 
 

84



 

 

 
Draft GUIDANCE NOTE 

 

Temporary Signs placed within the highway boundary in 
Herefordshire 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
Herefordshire Council (the Council) has produced this guidance note to set standards for the 
placing of temporary advertising and directional signs within county highways which are unlikely 
to attract enforcement action.  The Council wishes to encourage the economic viability of the 
county but this has to be in a way which is balanced against the highway dangers caused by 
drivers endeavouring to read unauthorised signs. 
 
In recent years there has been a steady increase in the number of unauthorised signs sited within 
the highway boundary across much of the county road network.  The Council has also been 
receiving an increasing number of complaints from the public about the clutter caused by these 
signs, and this is of particular concern in the Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  The majority 
of the unauthorised signs are advertising commercial ventures such as public houses, tea-shops, 
sales, garden centres and properties for sale, as well as regular events such as car boot sales, 
and less frequent non-commercial or charitable events, such as school events, community 
functions, village fêtes and festivals. 
 
Because of the risks associated with the proliferation of unauthorised signs, no permanent 
commercial advertising signs on county highways will be allowed by the highway service as 
detaileded in Section 4, The primary concern is that unauthorised signs erected within the 
highway boundary are adversely affecting the safety of highway users, such as in the following 
ways. 
 
• The signs are frequently sited in locations that obstruct visibility from side road junctions and 

accesses, and forward visibility “through” bends. 
• The signs provide visual distractions that divert drivers’ attention away from the road ahead. 
• The signs sited on footways frequently obstruct the safe passage of pedestrians, particularly 

the visually impaired and disabled. 
• The construction of the signs may be a dangerous and potentially lethal object for vehicles 

to hit should they leave the carriageway. 
 
These risks can be associated with any location; however it is of particular concern when 
unauthorised signs appear at sites with a known accident history. Should this practice be 
permitted to continue, there is a real risk of serious incidents occurring on county highways for 
which the Council may be deemed liable.  (County highways do not include the M50, the A49, 
part of the A40 (from the county boundary with Monmouthshire to the Overross roundabout), and 
the short length of the A449 (from the Overross roundabout to the M50) which are the 
responsibility of the Highways Agency.)   
 
 
 
 
2 THE LEGAL BACKGROUND 
 
The Highways Act 1980 specifies offences relating to activities on the highway, imposes duties on 
the Council and also gives the Council power to enforce its responsibilities. 
 
The main areas relating to advertising and directional signs within the highway are those 
concerned with the unauthorised painting, inscribing or affixing any picture, letter, sign or other 

85



 

 

mark on the surface of a highway, tree, structure or works on or in a highway; the removal of any 
sign, etc.; and the details of the offences. 
 
All unauthorised traffic signs within the highway boundary are illegal.  All authorised traffic signs 
are specified in traffic regulations, and this includes white on brown tourism signs and temporary 
signs erected by approved bodies such as the AA and RAC.   
 
The Traffic Signs Manual warns that “An unauthorised sign in the highway is an obstruction.  The 
possible consequences of erecting or permitting the erection of obstructions may be severe and 
those responsible could lay themselves open to a claim for damages; for example if the 
obstruction is the cause of accident or of injury in a collision.” 
 
This guidance note aims to minimise the need for exercising such powers by setting acceptable 
standards. 
 
3 LOCAL EVENT SIGNING 
 
Whilst not giving formal prior written consent for signage, for the benefit of local communities the 
Council is unlikely to take action on highway grounds with regard to signs advertising and 
providing directions to local events, such as village fêtes and fairs that are considered to be 
primarily for the benefit of the local community, providing the following conditions are met.  
 
• The sign does not constitute an obstruction or a hazard to highway users including 

pedestrians. 
• The sign is not erected in any area that constitutes a visibility splay for junctions or 

accesses, nor shall it obstruct drivers’ sight lines at bends. 
• The size, detail described, number, and/or positioning of the sign does not unduly distract 

drivers’ attention. 
• The sign is not erected at any site that has a significant collision history during the last 10 

years as advised by the Council’s transportation accident investigation team 
• The sign is constructed in such a way that does not represent a danger to vehicles that 

might collide with it. 
• The sign face is manufactured on a suitable lightweight material such as Correx, wood, or 

ply and not exceed 10mm in thickness. 
• The sign face must be no larger than 0.27 sq m, such as 900mm by 300mm, and must be 

securely attached to a stake no larger than 50mm by 50mm in thickness and firmly placed in 
the ground.  The top of the sign must not exceed 1 metre in height above ground level. 

• The sign is not to be affixed to street furniture without obtaining prior written permission of 
the Council. 

• The sign must not be erected more than 14 days in advance of an event, and must be 
removed no later than 7 days after.  Any damage to the highway or apparatus within it 
caused by the sign’s presence must be made good to the satisfaction of the Council, who 
may seek to recover the costs of remedial works if any damage to the highway is not made 
good. 
In the context of this guidance, sales, special offers, new or refurbished business opening 
and similar are not considered events and will be regarded as commercial signing as set out 
in paragraph 4 
 
Depending on the nature and length of the event the Highways Engineer may require an 
application through and authorised body such as the RAC or AA 

 
 
 
 
 
4 COMMERCIAL SIGNING 
 

86



 

 

With the exception of temporary event signage and regular local seasonal activities, unauthorised 
signing (including posters, placards, banners and advertising boards), erected anywhere within 
the boundary of county highways, that seeks to advertise businesses, services orgoods will be 
discouraged on a countywide basis.  The enforcement of this policy will be applied consistently 
across the county using a common sense approach. 
 
Where subject to the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, any sign may 
only be erected in accordance with the planning permission obtained, which will be enforced by 
the Council’s planning service.   
 
Action is unlikely to be taken on highway grounds to remove signs about regular local seasonal 
activities.   
 
Street furniture and pavement cafés are subject to the terms and conditions detailed in the 
‘Highways Amenity Licenses for Pavement Cafés’ information pack and guidelines, which is 
available from the Markets and Fairs office of the Council. 
 
The use of banners to advertise goods and commercial services within the highway boundary or 
upon any highway structure will not be permitted.  The use of these items on private land or 
premises will be subject to any statutory planning regulations and will be regulated by the 
Council’s planning service. 
 
A separate guidance note is available for commercial business that wish to provide directional 
sign to their location 
 
 
6 CASE LAW 
 
There is extensive case law on the placing of signs, advertising boards and the like within the 
highway.  The conditions contained within this guidance note establish when it is unlikely that 
action will be taken by the Council on highway grounds against those who place unauthorised 
signs in the highway.  However, anyone who places items on the highway is potentially liable to 
any person who suffers personal injury or damage to property caused by that item.  Therefore it 
may be advisable for such persons to consider obtaining public liability indemnity insurance in the 
event of such claims. 
 
7 PROCESSES TO BE FOLLOWED WHEN THE CONDITIONS FOR THE PLACING 

OF SIGNS WITHIN THE HIGHWAY ARE NOT MET 
 
This guidance note sets acceptable standards for the placing of signs on county highways.  
Where the conditions are not met, action may be taken by re-positioning, removing, warning or 
prosecuting. 
 
As part of routine highway inspections or in responding to complaints, any sign that is deemed 
unauthorised in accordance with this guidance note and constitutes an immediate danger will be 
removed from the highway and retained. 
 
For similar signs that are deemed unauthorised in accordance with this guidance note but do not 
constitute an immediate danger, the owner will be requested to remove them or to reposition 
them in accordance with the conditions of this guidance note within 48 hours.  If the owner cannot 
be identified or traced, or if the sign is not removed within the stated time period, the Council will 
arrange for its removal.  Where previous warnings have been given, immediate removal of the 
sign(s) may take place.  
 
Evidence of persistent offenders will be recorded and the relevant legislation will be used to 
pursue the matter.  A breach of the policy can lead to immediate prosecution, but in the majority 

87



 

 

of cases an initial written warning will be issued by the Council with subsequent offences subject 
to prosecution. 
 
Any items removed from the highway will be retained for collection by the owner.  The items will 
be disposed of if they are not collected within a period of one month.  The Council may seek to 
recharge the owners any expenses incurred in removing and storing unauthorised signs. 
 
8 OTHER LICENCES 
 
The Council can legally place items of street furniture such as road signs, trees and seats on 
county highways.  In addition, the Council may issue licences for the erection of scaffolding, for 
the placing of builders’ skips and for the provision of outside catering facilities in accordance with 
the relevant specific regulations. 
 
9 FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
This guidance note advises whether the placing of temporary event signs on county highways is 
acceptable to the highways service.  It does not extend to other items which may not be covered 
by the examples described above. 
 
This guidance note does not absolve anyone from any statutory, or non-statutory, risk, with 
regard to personal injury or damage to property, incurred by depositing anything on the highway. 
Similarly this guidance note does not override the powers of a police officer or the planning 
Authority. 
 
This guidance note is without prejudice to the powers to license other amenities on county 
highways in accordance with the provisions of the Highways Act 1980.  It does not confer any 
right or privilege or permit any breach of statutory requirements, but outlines the Council’s normal 
approach in such matters.  It reserves the right to enforce any appropriate statutory requirement 
where considered necessary. 
 
10 MODIFICATIONS, ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 
 
The conditions, procedures and requirements specified within this guidance note may be 
modified, altered or amended at anytime without notice as the Council deems appropriate. 
 
Dated 7th November 2012 
 

88



 

 

DRAFT 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCILS GUIDANCE NOTE FOR 
ADVERTISEMENTS AND BUISINESS SIGNS IN THE OPEN 

COUNTRYSIDE 
 
Introduction 
 
The Council has always been concerned about the detrimental impact of the 
uncontrolled erection of advertisements and signs on the character and appearance of 
the County and the potential impact to highway safety. 
 
As a result of this concern this guidance note has been produced to enable signs to be 
erected where appropriate. 
 
Not unnaturally however and particularly in times of economic recession, businesses 
in the countryside, especially those geared to the tourist industry or passing trade, may 
wish to make their presence known by signing. It is also accepted that in many cases 
some signing is necessary if the visitors are even to find the facilities. Such signing 
therefore serves a valuable dual function. However, excessive and inappropriate 
signing can be visually harmful and potentially a highway safety hazard. It is 
therefore important to strike the right balance. 
 
The purpose of this guidance is to provide advice direction as to what signage the 
Council considers to be reasonably necessary and what is appropriate in visual terms 
within Herefordshire. 
 
The Legal Background 
 
The Highways Act 1980 specifies offences relating to activities on the highway 
imposes duties on the Council and also gives the Council power to enforce its 
responsibilities. 
 
All unauthorised traffic signs within the highway boundary are illegal. All authorised 
traffic signs are specified in traffic regulations, and this includes white on brown 
tourism signs and temporary signs erected by approved bodies such as the AA and 
RAC. 
 
The Traffic Signs Manual warns that ‘An unauthorised sign in the highway is an 
obstruction. The possible consequences of erecting or permitting the erection of 
obstructions may be severe and those responsibilities could lay themselves open to a 
claim for damage: for example if the obstruction is the cause of accident or injury in a 
collision’  
 
This guidance note aims to minimise the need for exercising such powers by setting 
acceptable standards. 
 
 
 
 

89



 

 

 
 
Guidance  
 
Signs fall into categories: 

1 Signs within the curtilage of the premises to which they relate 
2 Signs outside the curtilage of the premises which can advertise but are usually 

directional. 
 

There appears to be few issues with signs on business premises, as they are normally 
controlled by way of the submission of a planning application, or in some cases, 
through confirmation that the proposed sign does not require formal planning 
permission as it is considered to be permitted development under the Town and 
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) regulations 1992. Directional signs 
located on private land not within the premises to which they relate will always 
require advertisement consent.  
 
Where a sign is considered reasonably necessary, the Council is keen to guide 
businesses towards erecting signs appropriate to their setting. It is important that 
directional advertisement signs do not conflict with or in any way mimic standard 
traffic signs and they are not located on highway land in a manner that obstructs 
visibility splays, a hazard to the public or distract drivers to the extent that it will 
increase the risk to all highway users to an unacceptable level. 
 
Herefordshire Council retains the right to remove or take action in regard to signs that 
are deemed to be a hazard in the highway, in a location where the cumulative impact 
is detrimental to the environment and those that do not comply with the principle of 
this document. 
 
Road signage is not the only guide to travellers, and should use work street name 
plates, the destinations own publicity media, and other readily available information 
to guide the travelling public firstly to the right locality, and then onto their final 
destination. 
 
Signs have both a positive and negative impact on the environment. Located correctly 
they can ensure visitors arrive at their destination by the most direct route.  However, 
too many signs cause environmental clutter and can threaten one of the reasons why 
visitors come to the county.  
 
Outlined below are principles of what is considered to be appropriate in terms of 
location and design. 
 

• Evidence for the need is required to minimise the impact of illegal signs on the 
highway. Advance directional signs may be accommodated if the access is 
considered hazardous in location terms. 

• The location must not obstruct visibility splays or deem to be positioned and / 
or configured so as to be an unacceptable distraction to road users. 

• Impede the highway or use of the verges such that the sign becomes 
detrimental to the highway user, 

• Signs should not exceed 1.5m2 in area and have a maximum height of 2.5m. 

90



 

 

• Text on the sign should be limited to just the business name. 
• Lettering must be in a clear text with the height dimension suitable for the 

speed of the road. 
• Background colours and lettering must be sympathetic to the environment and 

setting. 
• The sign and posts must be suitable for the location. 
• The location of the signs must be subject to risk assessment in terms of 

statutory undertaker’s apparatus such as Welsh water, BT, Electricity etc. 
• The signs must not be reflective. 
• To avoid a proliferation of inappropriate signs, the sign may require direction 

to the locality of a Bossiness Park. 
• The sign needs to be maintained by the applicant to ensure the quality, safety 

and the tidiness of the sign.  
 
Procedure 
 

1. Consider Submitting initial proposals to Local Members, parish Councils for 
support. 

2. Consult with Herefordshire Councils Planning Authority as to the 
acceptability of the design. 

3. Consult with Amey Herefordshire as to the acceptability of the design and 
location. 

4. Apply to Herefordshire Council for permission who will consult with 
Herefordshire Highways as to the acceptability of the location and sign design. 
If the sign is acceptable in the highway, permission from highways will not be 
given but the sign will be deemed acceptable and not enforced against. 

5. Decision Notice Issued 
6. If approved the sign can be erected, permission lasts for 5 years, after which 

the sign must be removed or reapply for permission. 
 

 
 
Costs 
 
There are inevitably costs associated with the approval and installations of signs. 
Herefordshire Council must ensure all their costs are met but they will not seek to 
profit. Costs will clearly be set out along with the standard of service applicants can 
expect. This cost will take account of the whole life of the sign, so that they can 
remain as effective guidance to the travelling public now and in the future. 
 
Clutter 
 
Signage clutter can come about as the result of redundant signs not being removed, 
badly thought out procedures, incremental development and the installation of 
unauthorised signs. The impact of sign clutter can be a safety issue and can detract 
from the visual beauty of the county. Local communities and providers will have an 
active role in helping reduce signage clutter along with Herefordshire Council. 
 
 
 

91



 

 

Highways Agency and neighbouring authorities 
 
Trunk Roads such, as the A49, and Motorways, as the M50 are managed by the 
Highways Agency who have their own criteria for signs. Neighbouring authorities 
also have their own approach to signage. Herefordshire Council will continue to 
develop the partnership working with the Highways Agency and our neighbours to 
ensure there is compatibility between the policies of the organisations, recognising 
that many journeys to destinations within the County will have started from elsewhere 
in the World.  
 
 
November 2012 
 

92



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Paul James, Democratic Services Officer 
 on Tel: (01432) 260460 

 
  

 

MEETING: GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 10 DECEMBER 2012 

TITLE OF REPORT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – LAW, GOVERNANCE 
AND RESILIENCE 

 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide.  

4. Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 
. 

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: the work programme as appended be noted, subject to any comments the 
Committee wished to make. 

6. Key Points Summary 

• The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on current 
work. 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the priorities 
facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the work programme.  
However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure that the work programme is 
focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable within the existing resources available. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The Committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that scrutiny is 
focused, effective and produces clear outcomes. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

93



 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 An outline work programme only is appended for this meeting.  This is because the 
programme is under continuous review. 

10. Key Considerations 

10.1 The work programme needs to focus on the key issues of concern and be manageable 
allowing for urgent items or matters that have been called-in. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s 
residents. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 The topics selected need to have regard for equality and Human rights issues. 
 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 The cost of the work of the Scrutiny Committee will have to be met within existing 
resources.  It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an assessment 
to support appropriate processes. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 The Council is required to deliver an Overview and Scrutiny function. 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Overview & Scrutiny function does not 
operate effectively.   The arrangements for the development of the work programme should 
help mitigate this risk. 

16. Consultees 

16.1 Following initial consultations on topics for scrutiny with Directors and Members of the 
Cabinet, all members of the Council were invited to suggest items for scrutiny.  

17. Appendices 

17.1 An outline work programme for the Committee. 

Herefordshire Public Services Rolling Programme. 

. 

94



 

18. Background Papers 

18.1 None identified. 

 

95



96



 GENERAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

ITEMS IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAME 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Monday 14 JANUARY 2013 at 10.00am 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy  

To receive a presentation on the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and consider the report to Cabinet and make 
recommendations to Cabinet.  (Cabinet on 17 Jan) 

Governance of Hereford 
Futures 

Following the report on 12 Oct 2012 To report on: project 
management; target measurement and tracking; information 
management and future monitoring arrangements. 

Completed Task & Finish 
Reviews: Monitoring progress 
against the Executive Action 
Plans 

To monitor progress against the Executive Action Plan arising 
from the following Task & Finish Reviews: 

• Planning System Review – Development Control and 
the operation of the Constitution. 

Monday 11 FEBRUARY 2013 at 10..00am 

LDF Core Strategy To consider the Core Strategy process and make 
recommendations to Cabinet (Cabinet on 21 Feb). 

Annual consideration of the 
Community Safety Strategy 

To consider and comment on the Community Safety Strategy. 
(Note: Scrutiny is obliged to consider community safety 
issues at least once per year.) 

Monday 4 MARCH 2013 at 10.00am 

Root and Branch Reviews To consider Phase 2 of the Reviews (as they relate to this 
Committee) 

Monday 8 APRIL 2013 at 10.00am 

  
Monday 13 MAY 2013 at 2.30pm 

  

JULY 2013 

Music Service Agreed in July 2011 to review after 2 years. 

OCTOBER 2013 

Root and Branch Reviews To consider Phase 3 of the Reviews (as they relate to this 
Committee) 

T&F – Income & Charging -  
Projected additional Income 

O&SC 19 March 2012 added to the T&F Report that a report 
be made in Oct 2013 setting out how much of the projected 
additional income had been achieved and reviewing the 
intended and unintended consequences of new/additional 
charges. 

 
 
 
 

97



 
 
The following issues have been identified for consideration but not scheduled:  
 

Local Development Framework  (see item at 11 Feb 2013) 

Local Transport Plan 

Corporate Delivery Plan 

Root and Branch Reviews – (pre consideration by Cabinet) 

Performance Report on Amey 

Performance Report on Hoople 

Performance Report on Waste Management 

Broadband 

Park and ride  (latest position requested by briefing note – see 4 July 12) Briefing note 
issued Nov 2012.) 

Performance Monitoring 

Document control and information including the website;  

Cycle Routes;  (latest position requested by briefing note – see 4 July 12. Briefing note 
issued Nov 2012.) 

Legal Services Improvement Plan 

 

98



 

Suggestions from the Public (30 September 2011 on) 

Suggestion that the Council’s consultation processes were 
flawed, exposing the Council’s decisions to the risk of challenge, 
and the processes should therefore be reviewed by the 
Committee. 

OSC September 11 

Request that the Committee consider the future of the libraries 
programme for the County. 

OSC November 11 

That the possibility of creating an Eastern Bypass for Hereford 
along a route close to the Aylestone Ridge should be explored. 

OSC December 11 

That the quality of Council surveys and the use of results of 
surveys should be examined. (Later clarified by e-mail – to refer 
to “the integrity of the Council’s research process”/ how 
research is commissioned, conducted, appraised and used. 

OSC December 11 & OSC 
13 April, and OSC 4 July 
2012. 

LTP3 and the Link Road.  How Cabinet anticipates making a 
decision on a compulsory purchase order for the ‘Link Road’ on 
14 June 2012 when the new Local Transport Plan (LTP3) is not 
due to be considered by Council until July 2012 

OSC 13 April 

Concern over the ever expanding remit of Hereford Futures. 
When will the company provide a formal report to Council and 
make its accounts available?  

OSC 13 April 

The role of organisations which are promoting via the 
Herefordshire Council Parish Liaison Officer, the Living Villages 
and Herefordshire 20/20 events.  

OSC 13 April 

The role of the Parish Liaison Officer and whether it should be 
allowed to promote political events.  

OSC 13 April 

That the Committee carry out a full review of the Local 
Transport Plan (LTP) at its earliest opportunity and sustain its 
focus on the Plan by including it within the Committee’s work 
plan. 

OSC 8 June 

That the Committee should examine how the plans for 
development of the Enterprise Action Zone at Rotherwas could 
proceed without links to the LTP and LDF in place 

OSC 8 June 

That if councillors are being directed to make decisions on the 
basis that officers have failed to comply with National Planning 
Policy Framework and statutory obligations, what was being 
done to address the situation?  
 

When will the 5 year housing land supply figures and basis of 
calculation be available?  
 

What risk does this pose to the reputation of the Council and 
financial risk arising from possible appeals by developers? 
 

These were considered to be questions, rather than suggestions 
for Scrutiny, an answer has been provided by the AD 
 

It is proposed that this matter should therefore not be included 

OSC 14 September 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99



on the Work Programme 
 
This was reiterated at the meeting on 12 October 

 
 
OSC 12 October 2012 

 

100



T
as
k 
an
d 
F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
s 
–P

ro
gr
es
s 
R
ep
or
t 

G
en
er
al
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 ID
E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 F
O
R
 F
E
A
S
IB
IL
IT
Y
 S
T
U
D
Y
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
ev
ie
w
 

S
ta
tu
s 

F
re
e 
S
ch
oo
ls
 

C
ha
irm

an
 h
as
 r
eq
ue
st
ed
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
co
nc
er
ni
ng
 fr
ee
 s
ch
oo
ls
 a
nd
 w
ill
 d
ec
id
e 
w
he
th
er
 a
 r
ev
ie
w
 is
 r
eq

ui
re
d.
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 
of
 a
rm

’s
 le
ng
th
 p
ub
lic
 

co
m
pa
ni
es
 

C
ha
irm

an
 is
 in
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 th

e 
D
ep
ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
co
nc
er
ni
ng

 th
e 
sc
ru
tin
y 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
pu
bl
ic
 li
m
ite
d 

co
m
pa
ni
es
.  
 

R
oa
d 
S
ur
fa
ce
s 
(P
ot
ho
le
s)
 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  O

ffi
ce
r 
re
sp
on
se
 is
 th
at
 to
pi
c 
w
ill
 b
e 
co
ve
re
d 
by
 S
tr
ee
t S

ce
ne
 R
oo
t a

nd
 B
ra
nc
h 
R
ev
ie
w
. 

T
ou
ris
m
 U
se
 o
f t
he
 R
iv
er
 W

ye
 
F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 o
n-
go

in
g.
 N
ot
 n
ow

 p
ro
ce
ed
in
g 

Le
ga

l S
er
vi
ce
s 
  

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  S

co
pi
ng
 to
 b
e 
co
nf
irm

ed
. 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
&
 M
an
ag

em
en
t 

of
 J
oi
nt
 V
en
tu
re
s/
P
ar
tn
er
in
g 

A
rr
an
ge

m
en
ts
  –
 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  S

co
pi
ng
 to
 b
e 
co
nf
irm

ed
  

 

A
cc
om

m
od
at
io
n 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  S

co
pi
ng
 to
 b
e 
co
nf
irm

ed
. 

D
ig
ita
l C

ha
nn
el
s 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  R

ep
or
t o
n 
di
gi
ta
l c
ha
nn
el
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 a
nd
 li
nk
s 
w
ith
 B
ro
ad
ba
nd
 to
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
to
 th

e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 in
 O
ct
ob
er
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
w
ha
t n

ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
.  

S
in
ce
 th

e 
ab
ov
e 
th
e 
V
ic
e 
C
ha
ir 
ha
s 
be
en
 in
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 th

e 
A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 P
eo
pl
e 
P
ol
ic
y 
an
d 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

an
d 
fu
rt
he
r 
w
or
k 
is
 b
ei
ng
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
on
 s
co
pi
ng
 o
f t
he
 r
ev
ie
w
 (
27
.1
1.
12
) 

 L
oc
al
ity
 W

or
ki
ng
  

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  S

co
pi
ng
 to
 b
e 
co
nf
irm

ed
. R

ep
or
t t
o 
be
 m
ad
e 
to
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 in
 O
ct
ob
er
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
w
ha
t 

ne
ed
s 
to
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
. 

T
ra
ffi
c 
S
pe
ed
 S
ig
ns
 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 c
om

pl
et
e.
  O

ffi
ce
r 
re
sp
on
se
 is
 th
at
 to
pi
c 
w
ill
 b
e 
co
ve
re
d 
by
 S
tr
ee
t S

ce
ne
 R
oo
t a

nd
 B
ra
nc
h 
R
ev
ie
w
. 

M
ar
ke
t T

ow
ns
 S
ho
p 
F
ro
nt
s 

F
ea
si
bi
lit
y 
S
tu
dy
 o
n-
go

in
g.
  O

ffi
ce
r 
re
sp
on
se
 is
 th
at
 th
is
 c
ou
ld
 b
e 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 in
 a
 R
oo
t a
nd
 B
ra
nc
h 
R
ev
ie
w
 lo
ok
in
g 

in
to
 th

e 
pa
rt
 th
at
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
co
ns
er
va
tio
n 
w
or
k 
in
 g
en
er
al
 a
nd
 m
ar
ke
t t
ow

n 
sh
op
 fr
on
ts
 c
an
 p
la
y 
in
 a
 c
on
se
rv
at
io
n-
le
d 

re
ge

ne
ra
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 m
ar
ke
t t
ow

ns
.  

101



 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 IN
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
s 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

C
om

m
un
ity
 In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 L
ev
y 
– 

dr
af
t p

ol
ic
y 
fo
r 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

20
/1
1/
12
 

G
ro
up
 m

et
 to
 fi
na
lis
e 
th
e 
re
po
rt
 c
on
ta
in
ed
 in
 th

is
 a
ge

nd
a.
  R

ep
or
t c
on
ta
in
s 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 th

at
 

th
e 
G
ro
up
 b
e 
re
co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
 in
 N
ew

 Y
ea
r 
to
 c
on
tin
ue
 w
or
k 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
re
le
as
e 
of
 n
ew

 e
vi
de
nc
e.
 

H
ou
si
ng

 A
llo
ca
tio
ns
 P
ol
ic
y 
an
d 

E
ffe

ct
iv
e 
U
se
 o
f t
he
 H
ou
si
ng

 S
to
ck
 

18
/6
/1
2 

6/
9/
12
 

8/
10
/1
2 

15
/1
1/
12
 

C
on
si
de
ra
tio
n 
of
 b
ac
kg
ro
un
d 
m
at
er
ia
l. 

M
et
 to

 d
is
cu
ss
 p
ol
ic
y 
op
tio
ns
. 

D
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 o
f F

or
ce
s 

C
on
si
de
ra
tio
n 
of
 fu
rt
he
r 
ev
id
en
ce
 p
rio
r 
to
 d
ra
fti
ng
 o
f t
he
 r
ep
or
t. 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 A
W
A
IT
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 F
R
O
M
 T
H
E
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

T
he
re
 a
re
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o 

re
vi
ew

s 
in
 th

is
 s
ec
tio
n.
 

 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
B
JE
C
T
 T
O
 M
O
N
IT
O
R
IN
G
 O
F
 T
H
E
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

C
ou
nc
il 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t P

ol
ic
y 

an
d 
Lo
ca
l B

us
in
es
s 
an
d 
Lo
ca
l 

E
m
pl
oy
m
en
t 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
ep
or
te
d 
to
 O
S
C
 4
 J
ul
y.
 S
ix
 m

on
th
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 p
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 

fo
r 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
. C

on
ta
in
ed
 in
 th

is
 a
ge

nd
a.
 

In
co
m
e 
an
d 
C
ha
rg
in
g 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
ep
or
te
d 
to
 O
S
C
 4
 J
ul
y.
 S
ix
 m

on
th
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 p
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 

fo
r 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
. C

on
ta
in
ed
 in
 th

is
 a
ge

nd
a 

P
la
nn
in
g 
S
ys
te
m
 R
ev
ie
w
 –
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C

on
tr
ol
 a
nd
 th

e 
op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
ep
or
te
d 
to
 O
S
C
 4
 J
ul
y.
 S
ix
 m

on
th
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 p
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 

fo
r 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
. C

on
ta
in
ed
 in
 th

is
 a
ge

nd
a.
 

T
ou
ris
t S

ig
ni
ng
 (
B
ro
w
n 
S
ig
ns
) 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
ep
or
te
d 
to
 O
S
C
 4
 J
ul
y.
 S
ix
 m

on
th
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 p
ro
gr
am

m
ed
 

fo
r 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
12
. C

on
ta
in
ed
 in
 th

is
 a
ge

nd
a.
 

 

102



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
ol
lin
g 
P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
– 
IN
T
E
R
N
A
L 
W
O
R
K
IN
G
 D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
 

 N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

  

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

15
/1
1/
12
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
 

15
/1
1/
12
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
IN
G
 

W
es
t M
er
ci
a 

S
up
pl
ie
s 

E
nt
er
ed
 o
n 
R
P
 

12
/1
0/
12
 

 

T
o 
as
k 
C
ab
in
et
 to
 te
rm
in
at
e 
th
e 

ex
is
tin
g 
ag
re
em
en
t w
ith
 W
M
S
 

N
/A
  

01
/1
1/
12
 

07
/1
1/
12
 

D
C
E
/D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

22
/1
1/
12
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 &
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

LB
 6
/9
/1
2 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
IN
G
 

D
is
po
sa
l o
f 

W
ils
on
 B
ro
ok
 

C
ot
ta
ge
s,
 

G
le
w
st
on
e 
an
d 

th
e 
R
et
en
tio
n 
of
 

th
e 
C
la
w
ba
ck
 b
y 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

H
ou
si
ng
 L
td
 

T
o 
se
ek
 c
ab
in
et
 m
em
be
r 
ap
pr
ov
al
 fo
r 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 H
ou
si
ng
 L
td
 (
H
H
L)
 to
 

re
ta
in
 a
 p
ro
po
rt
io
n 
of
 th
e 
cl
aw
-b
ac
k 

fr
om
 th
e 
sa
le
 o
f 3
 p
ro
pe
rt
ie
s 
kn
ow
n 

as
 W
ils
on
 B
ro
ok
 C
ot
ta
ge
s,
 G
le
w
st
on
e 

R
os
s 
on
 W
ye
 fo
llo
w
in
g 
di
sp
os
al
 o
n 

th
e 
op
en
 m
ar
ke
t. 

N
/A
 

21
/1
1/
12
 

N
/A
 

D
C
E
/C
O
 F
&
C
/ 

R
ic
ha
rd
 G
ab
b 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

22
/1
1/
12
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 &
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

H
P
S
LT
 4
/9
/1
2 

LB
 6
/9
/1
2 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
IN
G
 

T
he
 V
or
te
x,
 

N
ew
to
n 
F
ar
m
, 

H
er
ef
or
d 
 

T
o 
en
do
rs
e 
th
e 
di
sp
os
al
 o
f a
n 

un
de
si
gn
at
ed
 p
ie
ce
 o
f l
an
d 
kn
ow
n 
as
 

th
e 
V
or
te
x 
at
 N
ew
to
n 
F
ar
m
, H
er
ef
or
d 

cu
rr
en
tly
 in
 th
e 
ow
ne
rs
hi
p 
of
 th
e 
Lo
ca
l 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 H
ou
si
ng
 

Lt
d,
 to
 a
ss
is
t i
n 
fa
ci
lit
at
in
g 
th
e 
w
id
er
 

re
ge
ne
ra
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
si
te
 k
no
w
n 
as
 th
e 

O
va
l. 

N
/A
 

21
/1
1/
12
 

N
/A
 

D
C
E
/C
O
 F
&
C
/ 

Ja
ne
 T
ho
m
as
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

103



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

  

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

O
ffi
ce
r 

D
ec
is
io
n 
 

22
/1
1/
12
 

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

A
pp
ro
va
l t
o 
le
t 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
fo
r 

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 

st
ra
te
gy
 

co
m
po
ne
nt
 

sc
he
m
es
 

th
ro
ug
h 
W
es
t 

M
id
la
nd
s 

co
nt
ra
ct
or
 

ne
tw
or
k 

T
o 
se
ek
 a
pp
ro
va
l t
o 
le
t t
ho
se
 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 w
ith
 

th
e 
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 

co
m
po
ne
nt
 s
ch
em
es
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 

w
es
t m
id
la
nd
s 
co
nt
ra
ct
or
 fr
am
ew
or
k 

 
 

 
D
C
X
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
T
he
 P
la
nn
in
g 

A
pp
lic
at
io
n 

P
ro
ce
ss
 –
 

N
ot
ifi
ca
tio
n 
to
 

P
ar
is
h 

C
ou
nc
ill
or
s 

T
o 
es
ta
bl
is
h 
th
e 
op
er
at
in
g 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 

w
ith
 r
es
pe
ct
 to
 h
ow
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 

un
de
rt
ak
es
 th
e 
no
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 p
la
nn
in
g 

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 to
 P
ar
is
h 
C
ou
nc
ils
. 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

M
ik
e 
W
ill
m
on
t 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
P
la
nn
in
g 

A
pp
lic
at
io
n 

N
ei
gh
bo
ur
 

N
ot
ifi
ca
tio
n 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 th
e 
op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 

re
qu
ire
m
en
t t
o 
un
de
rt
ak
e 
th
e 

ne
ig
hb
ou
r 
no
tif
ic
at
io
n 
on
 p
la
nn
in
g 

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

M
ik
e 
W
ill
m
on
t 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
P
la
nn
in
g 

A
pp
lic
at
io
ns
 

R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 

T
o 
se
t o
ut
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
th
e 

re
vi
ew
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
P
la
nn
in
g 

A
pp
lic
at
io
n 
R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

M
ik
e 
W
ill
m
on
t 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
P
re
-A
pp
lic
at
io
n 

A
dv
ic
e 
C
ha
rg
in
g 

T
o 
re
vi
ew
 a
nd
 r
ev
is
e 
th
e 
op
er
at
io
n 
of
 

th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

M
ik
e 
W
ill
m
on
t 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

104



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

  

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 
re
qu
ire
d 

 

 
C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

29
/1
1/
12
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

H
ea
lt
h
 &
 

W
el
lb
ei
n
g
 

K
ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 

29
/1
1/
12
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t o
f 

T
el
ec
ar
e 

T
o 
se
ek
 a
pp
ro
va
l o
f t
he
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

of
 a
 r
em
od
el
le
d 
an
d 
re
-m
an
ag
ed
 

te
le
ca
re
 s
er
vi
ce
. 

N
ot
ic
e 
pu
bl
is
he
d 
04
/0
9/
12
 

21
/1
1/
12
 

22
/1
1/
12
 

D
fo
rP
S
 / 

C
hr
is
 B
ai
rd
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 &
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

D
ec
is
io
n 
da
te
? 

C
M
 N
ov
em
be
r 

H
P
S
LT
 0
6/
11
/1
2 

LB
 0
8/
11
/1
2 

T
en
an
cy
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

 
N
/A
 

A
t l
ea
st
 

on
e 

w
or
ki
ng
 

da
y 
be
fo
re
 

D
ec
is
io
n 

du
e 
to
 b
e 

ta
ke
n 

N
/A
 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r?
 

  
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

105



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 2
01
2 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
12
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 &
 

In
fr
as
tr
u
ct
u
re
 

D
ec
is
io
n 

D
ec
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
M
 B
rie
fin
g 

23
/8
/1
2 

H
P
S
LT
 4
/9
/1
2 

LB
 2
0/
9/
12
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 

Le
vy
 

D
at
e 
en
te
re
d 
on
 

R
P
 5
/0
9/
12
 

T
o 
en
do
rs
e 
th
e 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f 

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 s
ch
em
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 

th
e 
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 D
el
iv
er
y 
P
la
n 
w
hi
ch
 

in
fo
rm
s 
th
e 
C
om
m
un
ity
 In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 

Le
vy
 c
ha
rg
in
g 
sc
he
du
le
 a
nd
, a
pp
ro
ve
 

th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
pr
io
rit
is
at
io
n 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 

to
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
os
e 
sc
he
m
es
 

N
/A
 

A
t l
ea
st
 

on
e 

w
or
ki
ng
 

da
y 
be
fo
re
 

D
ec
is
io
n 

du
e 
to
 b
e 

ta
ke
n 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

A
nd
re
w
 

A
sh
cr
of
t /
 

Y
vo
nn
e 

C
ol
em
an
 

A
&
G
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

5/
12
/1
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

5/
12
/1
2 

 
R
ep
or
t o
f t
he
 

st
an
da
rd
s 
pa
ne
l 

22
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
12
 

T
o 
as
k 
A
 &
 G
 to
 a
pp
ro
ve
 th
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
 In
de
pe
nd
en
t 

P
er
so
n.
 If
 th
e 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
ar
e 

ap
pr
ov
ed
, t
he
re
 w
ill
 b
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 to
 C
ou
nc
il 

on
 4
 J
an
 1
3 

N
/A
 

21
 

N
ov
em
be
r 

20
12
 

27
 N
ov
em
be
r 

20
12
 

C
hr
is
 C
ha
pm
an
, 

A
ss
t D
ir.
 L
aw
, 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
&
 

R
es
ili
en
ce
 &
 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

O
ffi
ce
r 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

13
/1
2/
12
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

13
/1
2/
12

 

C
ab
in
et
 1
3/
12
/1
2 

T
he
 W
as
te
 

C
on
tr
ac
t I
ss
ue
  

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 fu
tu
re
 o
pt
io
ns
 fo
r W
as
te
 

C
on
tr
ac
t 

E
nt
er
ed
 o
n 
R
P
 5
/1
0/
12
 

06
/1
1/
12
 (
G
en
er
al
 

E
xc
ep
tio
n 
– 
N
ot
ic
e 
w
as
 

du
e 
to
 b
e 
pu
bl
is
he
d 

2/
11
/1
2)
 

29
/1
1/
12
 

05
/1
2/
12
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
/A
nd
y 

T
ec
to
r 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

106



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

13
/1
2/
12
 

 

C
M
B
 2
9/
10
/1
2 

H
P
S
LT
 0
6/
11
/1
2 

LB
 (
po
lic
y 

se
ss
io
n)
 –
 

08
/1
1/
12
  

LB
 (
si
gn
 o
ff)
 –
 

22
/1
1/
12

 

M
aj
or
 S
ch
em
e 

F
un
di
ng
 

M
aj
or
 S
ch
em
e 
F
un
di
ng
 D
ev
ol
ut
io
n 

an
d 
th
e 
es
ta
bl
is
hm
en
t o
f t
he
 L
oc
al
 

T
ra
ns
po
rt
 B
od
y 
ac
ro
ss
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
, 

S
hr
op
sh
ire
 a
nd
 T
el
fo
rd
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
iti
es
 

 
29
/1
1/
12
 

05
/1
2/
12
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

13
/1
2/
12
 

 
B
ud
ge
t U
pd
at
e 

20
13
/1
4 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
po
si
tio
n 

 
29
/1
1/
12
 

5/
12
/1
2 

D
of
 C
S
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

26
/1
2/
12
 

 
D
ep
lo
ym
en
t o
f 

H
om
e 
to
 S
ch
oo
l 

T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

E
sc
or
ts
 

T
o 
br
ie
f P
eo
pl
es
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 o
n 
th
e 
op
tio
ns
 

re
ga
rd
in
g 
th
e 
de
pl
oy
m
en
t o
f H
om
e 
to
 

S
ch
oo
l E
sc
or
ts
. 

N
/A
 

 
N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
S
  

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

107



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6 

JA
N
U
A
R
Y
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

4/
1/
13
 

 
B
ou
nd
ar
y 

C
om
m
is
si
on
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/0
1/
13
 

 
 

 
4/
12
/1
2 

3/
1/
13
 

9/
1/
13
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/1
/1
3 

R
em
ov
e 

(1
9/
10
/1
2)
 

de
ci
si
on
 to
 

be
 ta
ke
n 

sp
rin
g 
20
13
 

C
ab
in
et
  J
an
/F
eb
 

13
 

H
P
S
LT
 1
7/
07
/1
2 

&
 1
1/
12
/1
2 

LB
  2
0/
12
/1
2 

S
m
al
l S
ch
oo
ls
 

P
ol
ic
y 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
do
cu
m
en
t t
o 
be
 s
en
t o
ut
 

to
 s
ch
oo
ls
. 

N
/A
 

3 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
13
 

9 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
13
 
D
fo
rP
S
 a
nd
 

R
ob
 R
ei
d 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/1
/1
3 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 =
  

 

 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

20
13
/2
01
6 

T
o 
se
t t
he
 o
ve
ra
ll 
fin
an
ci
al
 fr
am
ew
or
k 

fo
r 
th
e 
ne
xt
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s 
an
d 
ad
vi
se
 o
n 

th
e 
fu
tu
re
 fu
nd
in
g 
en
vi
ro
nm
en
t 

04
/1
2/
12
 

03
/0
1/
13
 

09
/0
1/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/0
1/
12
 

 

LT
 –
 

LB
 -
 

P
ub
lic
 H
ea
lth
 

T
ra
ns
iti
on
 P
la
n 

T
o 
up
da
te
 th
e 
C
ab
in
et
 o
n 
th
e 
P
ub
lic
 

H
ea
lth
 T
ra
ns
iti
on
 a
nd
 a
gr
ee
 th
e 

co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 
In
te
nt
io
ns
 a
nd
 r
e-

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t p
rio
rit
is
at
io
n 

 

04
/1
2/
12
 

03
/0
1/
13
 

09
/0
1/
13
 

D
fo
rP
H
 / 
A
la
n 

H
ol
m
es
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/0
1/
13
 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 =
  

 

 
Lo
ca
l T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

P
la
n 

 
04
/1
2/
12
 

03
/0
1/
13
 

09
/0
1/
13
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

R
ic
ha
rd
 B
al
l 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

108



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
7 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

17
/1
/1
3  ?
 

 

 
E
nt
er
pr
is
e 
Z
on
e 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

P
ap
er
 

 
 

 
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

N
ic
k 
W
eb
st
er
 

A
&
G
  

18
/1
/1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

18
/1
/1
3 

 
 

 
N
/A
 

4 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
13
 

10
 J
an
ua
ry
 

20
13
 

 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

109



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8 

F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

18
/0
2/
13
 

 
 

 
 

4/
2/
13
 

8/
2/
13
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
  

18
/0
2/
12
 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 =
 

 

 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
P
ay
 

P
ol
ic
y 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 

 
08
/0
1/
13
 

04
/0
2/
13
 

08
/0
2/
13
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
&
G
  

19
/2
/1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
 

19
/2
/1
3 

 
 

 
N
/A
 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
13
 

11
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
13
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

21
/0
2/
13
 

 
 

 
11
/1
/1
3 

7/
1/
13
 

13
/2
/1
3 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

21
/2
/1
3 

C
ab
in
et
 2
1/
02
/1
3 

H
P
S
LT
 2
2/
01
/1
3 

LB
 3
1/
01
/1
3 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

R
ep
or
t 

T
hi
rd
 Q
ua
rt
er
 r
ep
or
t 

N
/A
 

7 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
13
 

13
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
13
 

D
C
E
/J
en
ny
 

Le
w
is
 

 
 

B
ud
ge
t 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

R
ep
or
t  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

110



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9 

M
A
R
C
H
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

 
 

 
 

22
/2
/1
3 

28
/2
/1
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 

 

 
C
ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 

R
es
ol
ut
io
n 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

 
A
nn
ua
l P
ay
 

P
ol
ic
y 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 
 

28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

 
Le
ad
er
’s
 R
ep
or
t 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 P
an
el
 

R
ep
or
t 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

N
/A
 

H
er
ef
or
d 
an
d 

W
or
ce
st
er
 F
ire
 

an
d 
R
es
cu
e 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
R
ep
or
t 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
13
 

N
/A
 

? 
 W
es
t 

M
id
la
nd
s 
P
ol
ic
e 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
R
ep
or
t 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
C
E
/ C
O
 F
&
C
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

08
/0
3/
12
 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 1
7/
01
/1
2 

Lo
ca
l T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

P
la
n 

 
28
/0
1/
13
 

22
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

R
ic
ha
rd
 B
al
l 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

14
/0
3/
13
 

 
 

 
1/
2/
13
 

28
/2
/1
3 

6/
3/
13
 

 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

111



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

14
/3
/1
3 

C
ab
in
et
 1
4/
03
/1
3 

R
es
po
ns
e 
to
 

Lo
ca
l 

G
ov
er
nm
en
t 

B
ou
nd
ar
y 

C
om
m
is
si
on
 

w
ar
di
ng
 

pr
op
os
al
s 

 
N
/A
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

06
/0
3/
13
 

D
C
E
/H
of
G
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

14
/3
/1
3  

LT
 –
 0
4/
12
/1
2 

LB
 –
 1
3/
12
/1
2 

P
ub
lic
 H
ea
lth
 

A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
th
e 
an
nu
al
 P
ub
lic
 H
ea
lth
 

re
po
rt
 

 

04
/1
2/
12
 

03
/0
1/
13
 

09
/0
1/
13
 

D
of
P
H
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

14
/3
/1
3 

B
&
P
F
 it
em
 =
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 1
4/
03
/1
3 
 

H
P
S
LT
 1
1/
02
/1
3 

LB
  2
1/
02
/1
3 

C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
pl
an
 fo
r 
20
13
/1
4 

01
/0
2/
13
 

28
/0
2/
13
 

06
/0
3/
13
 

D
C
E
/J
en
ny
 

Le
w
is
 

A
&
G
  

15
/3
/1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

15
/3
/1
3 

 
 

 
N
/A
 

1 
M
ar
ch
 

20
13
 

7 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

112



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
11

 

A
P
R
IL
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

A
&
G
  

16
/4
/1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

16
/4
/1
3 

 
 

 
N
/A
 

2 
A
pr
il 

20
13
 

8 
A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 

25
/1
0/
12
 

R
ev
is
ed
 d
at
e 

A
pr
il 
20
13
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
&
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

b
er
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
se
 &
 

C
u
lt
u
re
 D
ec
is
io
n 

25
/1
0/
12
 

B
ut
te
rm
ar
ke
t 

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
t 

T
o 
es
ta
bl
is
h 
if 
an
d 
ho
w
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 

w
is
he
s 
to
 fu
nd
 th
e 
re
fu
rb
is
hm
en
t o
f 

th
e 
B
ut
te
rm
ar
ke
t a
nd
 to
 c
le
ar
ly
 s
et
 

ou
t t
he
 o
pt
io
ns
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 m
an
ag
in
g 

th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t s
ho
ul
d 
it 

pr
og
re
ss
. 

 
 

N
/A
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 

 C
hr
is
 J
en
ne
r 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

18
/0
4/
13
 

 
 

 
6/
3/
13
 

4/
4/
13
 

10
/4
/1
3 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

18
/4
/1
3 

 

 
R
oo
t a
nd
 B
ra
nc
h 

- 
 P
ha
se
 1
 

Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

&
 P
ha
se
 2
 a
nd
 3
 

P
ro
po
sa
ls
 

 
 

4 
A
pr
il 

20
13
 

10
 A
pr
il 
20
13
 

D
of
C
S
 / 

D
on
na
 

E
th
er
to
n 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

113



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
12

 

M
A
Y
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

A
&
G
  

13
/5
/1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
 

13
/5
/1
3 

 
 

 
N
/A
 

2 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

 
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

16
/0
5/
13
 

 
 

 
4/
4/
13
 

1/
5/
13
 

8/
5/
13
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

16
/5
/1
3 

 
Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

1 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

8 
M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

16
/5
/1
3 

 
B
ud
ge
t 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

1 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

8 
M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/0
5/
13
 

 
 

 
 

9 
M
ay
 1
3 

16
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t 

on
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

D
ec
is
io
ns
  

T
o 
m
on
ito
r 
th
e 
op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 

pr
ov
is
io
ns
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 c
al
l-i
n 
an
d 
 

ur
ge
nc
y 

N
/A
 

9 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

16
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
  

24
/5
/1
3 

 
Le
ad
er
’s
 R
ep
or
t 

 
 

9 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

16
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 P
an
el
 
 

 
9 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

16
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

A
ud
it 
&
 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

9 
M
ay
 

20
13
 

16
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

114



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
13

 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

G
en
er
al
 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

S
oc
ia
l C
ar
e 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

24
/5
/1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

R
eg
ul
at
or
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

115



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14

 

JU
N
E
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Ju
ne
 2
01
3 

(O
rig
in
al
 

D
at
e:
 

21
/2
/1
3)
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 2
1/
02
/1
3 

C
M
 O
ct
  

H
P
S
LT
 0
8/
02
/1
3 

LB
 1
0/
01
/1
2 

H
ou
si
ng
 

A
llo
ca
tio
ns
 

A
do
pt
io
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

T
he
 H
ou
si
ng
 A
llo
ca
tio
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

de
sc
rib
es
 th
e 
cr
ite
ria
 th
at
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 C
ou
nc
il 
us
es
 to
 

pr
io
rit
is
e 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 h
ou
si
ng
 fo
r 
th
os
e 

w
ith
 a
 h
ou
si
ng
 n
ee
d.
 T
he
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
ity
 is
 u
si
ng
 p
ow
er
s 
un
de
r 
th
e 

Lo
ca
lis
m
 A
ct
 2
01
1 
w
hi
ch
 g
iv
es
 

in
cr
ea
se
d 
fle
xi
bi
lit
y 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 it
s 
po
lic
y 

to
 e
na
bl
e 
th
em
 to
 m
an
ag
e 
th
ei
r 

ho
us
in
g 
re
gi
st
er
s 
w
hi
ch
 b
et
te
r 
re
fle
ct
s 

lo
ca
l d
em
an
d,
 w
hi
ls
t s
til
l p
ro
te
ct
in
g 

th
e 
m
os
t v
ul
ne
ra
bl
e.
  

N
/A
 

 
12
/0
6/
13
 

D
fo
rP
&
C
 / 

R
ic
ha
rd
 G
ab
b 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

116



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
15

 

JU
LY
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

A
&
G
  

Ju
ly
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l A
ud
it 

F
ee
 L
et
te
r 
an
d 

P
la
n 

 
N
/A
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

S
ta
te
m
en
t 

 
N
/A
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l I
nt
er
na
l 

A
ud
it 
P
la
n 

 
N
/A
 

 
 

 

A
&
G
  

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
A
&
G
C
 W
or
k 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

 
N
/A
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
Le
ad
er
’s
 R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

N
/A
 

H
er
ef
or
d 
an
d 

W
or
ce
st
er
 F
ire
 

an
d 
R
es
cu
e 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

 
Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

117



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
16

 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

 
 

B
ud
ge
t 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

118



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
17

 

S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

S
ep
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

119



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
18

 

 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

O
ct
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

O
ct
 2
01
3 

 
Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

B
ud
ge
t 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

120



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
19

 

N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

F
IN
A
L 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 
A
N
D
  

 
W
H
E
T
H
E
R
 

K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 / 
 

B
R
IE
F
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 

 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

C
om
m
itt
ee
  

C
ab
in
et
 M
em
be
r 

B
rie
fin
g 

O
S
C
 o
r 
H
O
S
C
 

 Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
s 
B
rie
fin
g 

 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 T
IT
LE
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

 

S
T
A
T
U
T
O
R
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
 

F
IN
A
L 
P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 D
A
T
E
S
 

 

 

  28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 

 

 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 

no
tic
e 

re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 

da
ys
’ n
ot
ic
e 
of
 

re
as
on
s 

re
qu
ire
d 

 
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 

D
E
A
D
LI
N
E
 

A
G
E
N
D
A
 

P
U
B
LI
C
A
T
IO
N
 / 

D
E
S
P
A
T
C
H
 

 

- 
O
R
 -
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
E
M
B
E
R
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 –
 

O
&
S
C
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 

5 
D
A
Y
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

N
O
T
IC
E
 P
E
R
IO
D
 

D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
 

 
 A
N
D
 

 
LE
A
D
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

N
o
v 
20
13
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

N
ov
 1
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

N
o
v 
20
13
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

N
ov
 1
3 

 
A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t –
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

N
ov
 1
3 

 
Le
ad
er
’s
 R
ep
or
t 

 
 

 
 

 

 

N
O
T
E
: 
 T
H
E
 L
O
C
A
L 
A
U
T
H
O
R
IT
IE
S
 (
E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 A
R
R
A
N
G
E
M
E
N
T
S
) 

(M
E
E
T
IN
G
S
 A
N
D
 A
C
C
E
S
S
 T
O
 IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
) 
(E
N
G
LA
N
D
) 
R
E
G
U
LA
T
IO
N
S
 2
01
2:
 

 
 

  
 

E
X
E
M
P
T
/ 

C
O
N
F
ID
E
N
T
IA
L
 

P
ub
lis
he
d 
de
ta
ils
 m
us
t i
nc
lu
de
: D
et
ai
ls
 o
f t
he
 K
E
Y
 d
ec
is
io
n 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n;
 D
ec
is
io
n 
m
ak
er
’s
 n
am
e 
an
d 
tit
le
, o
r 
na
m
e 
of
 c
om
m
itt
ee
 a
nd
 fu
ll 

m
em
be
rs
hi
p;
 D
at
e 
de
ci
si
on
 to
 b
e 
m
ad
e;
 P
ur
po
se
; S
up
po
rt
in
g 
do
cu
m
en
ts
; C
on
ta
ct
 d
et
ai
ls
 fo
r 
su
bm
itt
in
g 
or
 r
ec
ei
vi
ng
 d
oc
um
en
ts
/ i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

28
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 n
ot
ic
e 
of
 p
riv
at
e 
m
ee
tin
g 
(e
xc
lu
si
on
) 
re
qu
ire
d 
A
N
D
 5
 c
le
ar
 d
ay
s’
 n
ot
ic
e 
of
 r
ea
so
ns
 fo
r 
pr
iv
at
e 
m
ee
tin
g 

(e
xc
lu
si
on
) 
re
qu
ire
d.
  W
he
re
 th
e 
D
ec
is
io
n 
is
 to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n 
by
 C
ab
in
et
, t
he
 n
ot
ic
e 
m
ay
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 th
e 
C
ab
in
et
 A
ge
nd
a.
 

 

E
X
E
M
P
T
 

121



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20

 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 IT
E
M
S
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

9 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

 
 

 
 

 
C
al
l-i
n:
 V
ar
ia
tio
n 
of
 R
et
ai
l Q
ua
rt
er
 

(O
ld
 L
iv
es
to
ck
 M
ar
ke
t)
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t A
gr
ee
m
en
t 

 
 

 

10
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
12
 

 
 

 
 

 
B
ud
ge
t a
nd
 E
m
er
gi
ng
 O
pt
io
ns
 

20
13
/1
4 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
po
si
tio
n 

 
 

 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
: 

C
om
m
un
ity
 In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 L
ev
y 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
fin
di
ng
s 
of
 th
e 
C
om
m
un
ity
 In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 L
ev
y 
(C
IL
) 
T
as
k 

&
 F
in
is
h 
G
ro
up
. (
C
ab
in
et
 o
n 
17
 D
ec
em
be
r)
 

 
 

 
C
om
pl
et
ed
 T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 

R
ev
ie
w
s:
 M
on
ito
rin
g 
pr
og
re
ss
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
ns
 

T
o 
m
on
ito
r 
pr
og
re
ss
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
om
 th
e 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
s:
 

• 
P
la
nn
in
g 
S
ys
te
m
 R
ev
ie
w
 –
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C
on
tr
ol
 a
nd
 th
e 

op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n.
 

• 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t P
ol
ic
y 
an
d 
Lo
ca
l B
us
in
es
s 
an
d 
Lo
ca
l 

E
m
pl
oy
m
en
t. 

• 
In
co
m
e 
an
d 
C
ha
rg
in
g.
 

• 
T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em
po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
. 

 
 

14
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
pr
es
en
ta
tio
n 
on
 th
e 
M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 

co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
re
po
rt
 to
 C
ab
in
et
 a
nd
 m
ak
e 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 to
 C
ab
in
et
.  
 

C
ab
in
et
 

C
ou
nc
il 

17
 J
an
 1
3 

18
 F
eb
13
 

 
 

 
 

 

11
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
 

 
 

 
 

 
LD
F
 C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
pr
oc
es
s 
an
d 
m
ak
e 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 to
 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
ab
in
et
 

 

 
A
nn
ua
l c
on
si
de
ra
tio
n 
of
 th
e 

C
om
m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 a
nd
 c
om
m
en
t o
n 
th
e 
C
om
m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
(S
cr
ut
in
y 
is
 

ob
lig
ed
 to
 c
on
si
de
r 
co
m
m
un
ity
 s
af
et
y 
is
su
es
 a
t l
ea
st
 o
nc
e 
pe
r 
ye
ar
).
 

 
 

4 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8 
A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
 M
ay
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

122



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
21

 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 IT
E
M
S
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

 
 

 
 

 

Ju
ly
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

Ju
ly
 1
3 

M
us
ic
 S
er
vi
ce
 

A
gr
ee
d 
in
 J
ul
y 
20
11
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
fte
r 
2 
ye
ar
s.
 

 
 

O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

 
 

 
 

O
ct
ob
er
 1
3 

T
as
k 
an
d 
F
in
is
h 
G
ro
up
 –
 In
co
m
e 

an
d 
C
ha
rg
in
g 
– 
P
ro
je
ct
ed
 

ad
di
tio
na
l i
nc
om
e 

 
 

 

123



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
22

 

 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 IT
E
M
S
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 

D
at
e 

16
 N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
01
2 

 
 

 
 

 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
n 
fo
r 
D
el
iv
er
y 
A
du
lt 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
t c
on
ta
in
in
g 
a 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
s 
ou
tli
ni
ng
 th
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
th
at
 a
re
 b
ei
ng
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
la
n.
 (
Ju
ly
12
) 

 
 

 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
of
 C
hi
ld
re
n 
in
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
th
e 
re
vi
ew
 o
f S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
of
 C
hi
ld
re
n 

 
 

 
O
F
S
T
E
D
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
O
F
S
T
E
D
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
R
ep
or
t p
ub
lis
he
d 
on
 1
8 
O
ct
ob
er
, 

an
d 
th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t B
oa
rd
 A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
th
at
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
as
 a
 

re
su
lt 
of
 th
e 
re
po
rt
’s
 fi
nd
in
gs
. 

 
 

14
 D
ec
em

b
er
 2
01
2 

 
 

 
 

 
D
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 2
ge
th
er
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
st
  

N
O
T
E
: C
on
te
nt
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
up
da
te
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 p
re
se
nt
 c
le
ar
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y;
 w
ith
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
to
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 a
dv
an
ce
 

of
 th
e 
m
ee
tin
g 
an
d 
w
ith
 e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g 
to
 h
av
e 
a 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po
se
.  
  

 
 

 
C
om
pl
et
ed
 T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 

R
ev
ie
w
s:
 M
on
ito
rin
g 
pr
og
re
ss
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
ns
 

T
o 
m
on
ito
r 
pr
og
re
ss
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
om
 th
e 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
s:
 

• 
A
du
lt 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
in
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
. 

• 
P
la
nn
in
g 
S
ys
te
m
 R
ev
ie
w
 –
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C
on
tr
ol
 a
nd
 th
e 

op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n.
 

• 
C
ou
nc
il 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t P
ol
ic
y 
an
d 
Lo
ca
l B
us
in
es
s 
an
d 
Lo
ca
l 

E
m
pl
oy
m
en
t. 

• 
In
co
m
e 
an
d 
C
ha
rg
in
g.
 

• 
T
ou
ris
t a
nd
 T
em
po
ra
ry
 E
ve
nt
 S
ig
na
ge
. 

 
 

 
C
om
pl
et
ed
 T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 

R
ev
ie
w
s:
 M
on
ito
rin
g 
pr
og
re
ss
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
ns
 

T
o 
m
on
ito
r 
pr
og
re
ss
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
om
 th
e 

T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
n 
A
du
lt 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
in
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
. 

 

 
 

 
D
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
N
H
S
 

T
ru
st
 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
 o
f t
he
 T
ru
st
, a
nd
 to
 d
is
cu
ss
 

po
te
nt
ia
l o
ut
 c
om
es
 s
ho
ul
d 
th
e 
T
ru
st
’s
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
sa
vi
ng
s 
no
t b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed
  

 
 

11
 J
an
u
ar
y 
20
12
 

 
 

 
 

124



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
23

 

 
D
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
: 

C
lin
ic
al
 C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

N
H
S
 W
es
t M
er
ci
a 
C
lu
st
er
 

N
O
T
E
: C
on
te
nt
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
up
da
te
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 p
re
se
nt
 c
le
ar
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y;
 w
ith
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
to
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 a
dv
an
ce
 

of
 th
e 
m
ee
tin
g 
an
d 
w
ith
 e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g 
to
 h
av
e 
a 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po
se
.  
 

 C
lu
st
er
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 d
at
a 
to
 b
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 
qu
ar
te
rly
. C
om
m
itt
ee
 to
 a
ss
es
s 

th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
 (
Ju
ly
 1
2)
 

 
 

 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
es
po
ns
es
 to
 T
as
k 
an
d 

F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
 -
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e 
T
as
k 
&
 F
in
is
h 
R
ev
ie
w
 in
to
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
of
 C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
to
 c
on
si
de
r 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

 
 

 
R
ec
ov
er
y 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
pr
og
re
ss
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
th
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

 
 

7 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
12
 

 
 

 
 

 
H
ea
lth
 &
 W
el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 –
 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
nd
 o
pe
ra
tio
n 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
H
ea
lth
 &
 W
el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 p
rio
r 
to
 th
e 
B
oa
rd
 

be
co
m
in
g 
fo
rm
al
ly
 c
on
st
itu
te
d 
on
 1
 A
pr
il 
20
13
 

 
 

 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
of
 H
ea
lth
 W
at
ch

 
T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
of
 H
ea
lth
 W
at
ch

 
 

 

22
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
 

 
 

 
2g
et
he
r 
N
H
S
 T
ru
st
  

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
T
ru
st
’s
 A
nn
ua
l P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
13
/1
4.
   

 
 

 
W
es
t M
id
la
nd
s 
A
m
bu
la
nc
e 
N
H
S
 

T
ru
st
 

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
T
ru
st
’s
 A
nn
ua
l P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
13
/1
4.
   

 
 

 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
n 
fo
r 
D
el
iv
er
in
g 
A
du
lt 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
t c
on
ta
in
in
g 
a 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
s 
ou
tli
ni
ng
 th
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
th
at
 a
re
 b
ei
ng
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

P
la
n.
 (
Ju
ly
12
) 

 
 

12
 A
p
ri
l 2
01
2 

 
 

 
 

 
W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
N
H
S
 T
ru
st
; 

C
lin
ic
al
 C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g 
G
ro
up
; 

an
d 
N
H
S
 W
es
t M
er
ci
a 
C
lu
st
er
. 

   S
tr
ok
e 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
T
ru
st
’s
 A
nn
ua
l P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
13
/1
4.
  

C
on
te
nt
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
up
da
te
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 p
re
se
nt
 c
le
ar
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

de
liv
er
y;
 w
ith
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
to
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 a
dv
an
ce
 o
f t
he
 

m
ee
tin
g 
an
d 
w
ith
 e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g 
to
 h
av
e 
a 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po
se
.  
(M
ay
 1
2)
  

C
lu
st
er
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 d
at
a 
to
 b
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 
qu
ar
te
rly
. C
om
m
itt
ee
 to
 a
ss
es
s 

th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
 (
Ju
ly
 1
2)
 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
an
 u
pd
at
e.
 

 
 

125



   d:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\d
at

a\
ag

en
da

ite
m

do
cs

\1
\9

\2
\a

i0
00

29
29

1\
$l

hl
c1

ut
t.

do
cx

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
24

 

 
W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
N
H
S
 T
ru
st
; 

C
lin
ic
al
 C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g 
G
ro
up
; 

an
d 
N
H
S
 W
es
t M
er
ci
a 
C
lu
st
er
. 

   S
tr
ok
e 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
T
ru
st
’s
 A
nn
ua
l P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
13
/1
4.
  

C
on
te
nt
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
up
da
te
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
ey
 p
re
se
nt
 c
le
ar
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

de
liv
er
y;
 w
ith
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
to
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 a
dv
an
ce
 o
f t
he
 

m
ee
tin
g 
an
d 
w
ith
 e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g 
to
 h
av
e 
a 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po
se
.  
(M
ay
 1
2)
  

C
lu
st
er
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 d
at
a 
to
 b
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 
qu
ar
te
rly
. C
om
m
itt
ee
 to
 a
ss
es
s 

th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 
po
pu
la
tio
n.
 (
Ju
ly
 1
2)
 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
an
 u
pd
at
e.
 

 
 

2 
M
ay
 2
01
2 

 
 

 
 

  

126


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	8 Task & Finish Group Report - Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Review
	CIL T&F Group report to GO&SC 10.12.12

	9 Update to the Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Group Report on Fees & Charging
	Fees and Charge Executive Response Nov 2012

	10 Update to the Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Group Report on Council Procurement Policy and Local Business and Local Employment
	Procurement Executive Response Nov 2012 (1)

	11 Update to the Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Group report on Tourist and Temporary Event Signage
	Executive response
	HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL TOURISM AND TEMPORARY EVENT SIGNAGE POLICY
	Draft tourism sign guidance notes (2)
	Guidance notes Signs placed within the highway boundary in Herefordshire (2)
	Business sign guidance notes draft

	12 Committee Work Programme
	GO&SC work prog at 28.11.12
	ProgressonCurrentReviewsat 28.11.12
	7 Ex Roll Prg 30Nov12


